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CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Let's get
started. |If everybody would take their seats
or stop private conversations and take them
out side. Thank you.

(Mc off.) Good norning, and wel cone
to snowy Al bany (inaudible). 1'mlLiz
Krueger, the finance chair of the Senate, and
|"mjoined this norning by ny Assenbly
partner, the chair of the Assenbly Ways and
Means Committee, Hel ene Weinstein.

These are joint hearings. Today is
the 11th of 13 hearings conducted by the --

(Mc turned on.)

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Damm, sorry.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Let's try again.
There you go. H . Forget the "dam."

| think you probably already know, |'m
Li z Krueger, this is Helene Winstein --

Fi nance, Ways and Means.

This is the 11th of 13 heari ngs
conducted by the joint fiscal conmttees of
the Legislature regarding the Governor's

proposed budget for the state fiscal year
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'23-'24. These hearings are conducted
pursuant to the New York State Constitution
and Legi sl ative Law.

Today the Senate Fi nance Conmttee and
Assenbly Ways and Means Conmittee will hear
testimony concerning the Governor's proposed
budget for the Departnment of Health, the
Depart ment of Financial Services, and
Medi cai d.

Fol | owi ng each testinony there will be
sonme tinme for questions fromthe chairs of
the fiscal commttees and other |egislators
fromthe rel evant conmttees.

| will now introduce nmenbers fromthe
Senat e, and Assenbl ynenber Hel ene Winstein
will introduce nenbers fromthe Assenbly.

And usually the ranker is Tom O Mara, but
today we have a special guest, the ranker of
Heal th, Senator @Gllivan, who will be playing
the role of ranker for all the issues today,

t hank you.

And just to introduce the nenbers of
my conference first, I amjoined by Senator

Qustavo Rivera, the chair of Health; Senator
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Webb, sitting on the Assenbly side down here.
She likes it down there. Senator My,
Senat or Liu, Senator Mrie and Senat or Brouk.
And sone ot her Senators may show up as the
heari ng conti nues.

I'I'l hand it to Helene first.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEIN: So for the

Assenbly we have the chair of our Health

Comm ttee, Assenbl ywoman Paulin. And we have

col | eagues Assenbl yman Bores, Assenbl yman
Braunst ei n, Assenbl yman Bronson
Assenbl ywoman Lunsford, Assenbl yman McDonal d,
and Assenbl yman Steck. And we probably w |
have sone ot hers joining us.

M. Ra, would you like to introduce
your col | eagues?

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Sure.

Good norning, everybody. W are
j oi ned by Assenbl ynman Jensen, the ranking
menber on the Health Committee, as well as
Assenbl ynmenbers Gandol fo, Byrnes and
Bl unencr anz.

CHAl RWOVAN WVEI NSTEI' N: Senat e.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: And, sorry,
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Senator Gallivan will introduce his nenbers.
SENATOR GALLIVAN.  We are al so joi ned
by Senator Hel m ng and Senator Ashby.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So before we get
started --
SENATOR GALLIVAN.  Hold on, |I'msorry.
And Senat or Rhoads, of the grand entrance.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So before we get
started with our first panel, | want to go
over sonme of the basic rules for our budget
heari ngs.
Governmental w tnesses get 10 m nutes
each. Nongovernnental w tnesses get three
m nutes each. Al right, and so we'll just
go -- since there are three of you testifying
on this panel, we will let you go, what, 10,
10, 10, and then we will start questioning.
For legislators to ask questions of
Wi tnesses: Chairs Winstein and Krueger and
rel evant conmttee chairs get 10 mnutes to
ask questions and a second round of three
m nutes. Rankers get five m nutes, no second
rounds. All other nmenbers get three mnutes,

no second rounds.
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It's especially inportant for
| egislators to listen. Wen you ask a
guestion, that three m nutes, five mnutes,
or 10 m nutes includes the amount of tine the
panel has to answer your question. So pl ease
don't do Hel ene and ny | east favorite
activity. Wen you have three mnutes on the
clock, don't ask a 2 m nute and 45 second
guestion and then assume sonebody's going to
be able to answer you.

Sanme thing if you have five mnutes or
10 minutes. Think about leaving tine for the
answer .

Now, if the answer is actually too
|l ong or technical for you to answer in the
anount of tinme given -- that's whether you're
a government rep or an advocate or comunity
menber -- you can always get back to us in
witing. And we might say that to you
Pl ease get us the answer in witing. And if
you give it to -- send it to Hel ene and
nmyself, we will nake sure all nmenbers of the
committees get the answers.

So no matter who asks the question, if
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you're following up in witing, get it to the
two of us and we'll make sure everyone is
getting those answers, which are very

hel pful .

Nongover nnent al wi tnesses, again, get
three mnutes. And the nenbers only have
three m nutes, whether you' re a nenber of the
conmmttee, a ranker, or a chair.

The cl ocks are in obvious places.

Yest erday they weren't working so well.

Today they seemto be back. So you will hear
a sound and see a yellow |ight when you have
one mnute left. So don't panic, just
realize you only have a mnute left, so think
t hrough speedi ng up what you're saying to us
or how you're answeri ng.

W have a gavel. W don't use it,
really. W think about using it. And we
still haven't decided whether we use it on
the person or the table. So |I'murging you,
don't test us.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | keep sayi ng

that in public. This is going to conme back
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to haunt nme, isn't it? WMaybe. Maybe.

So we have as our first panel of
guests Janmes MDonal d, acting conm ssioner of
the New York State Departnment of Health; Amr
Bassiri, Medicaid director, also with the
New York State Departnment of Health. The
acting comm ssioner is testifying; the
Medi caid director is here to answer questions
but doesn't have separate testinony.

And then we have Adrienne Harris,
superintendent of the New York State
Depart ment of Financial Services. And just
to clarify, while DFS has nmany different
responsibilities and many different concerns
that the Legislature has, she's only here
today to deal with issues of health
i nsurance, not -- while | personally love to
bend her ear about cryptocurrency, | wll not
be doing that today in today's hearing. It's
just about health and her role in health
i nsur ance.

And with that |1'mgoing to ask
Acting Comm ssioner McDonald to speak first,

pl ease.
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: So good
nor ni ng, Chairpersons Krueger, Wi nstein,
Rivera, and Paulin. 1It's great to be here
this morning. And | also want to greet the
menbers of the Senate and Assenbly health and
fiscal committees.

My name is Dr. Jim MDonald. | thank
you for the opportunity to testify on behal f
of Governor Hochul's FY --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Can you pull the
mc alittle closer? 1'msorry.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  1'd be
happy to pull it closer.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Sone
of themwork better than others.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Thank
you. You know, and really we're going to be
tal ki ng about the health and wel | -bei ng of
all New Yorkers. And joining nme today is
Megan Bal dwi n, the acting executive deputy
conmi ssioner, and Amr Bassiri, our Medicaid
director.

You know, by the way, today marks ny

ninth week on the job as acting health
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commi ssioner. Before joining the Departnent
of Health in July of '22 as the nedi cal
director of the Ofice of Public Health, |
spent the |last 10 years at the Rhode Island
Departnment of Health in various |eadership
roles, the last one being the interim
director of health, which is anal ogous to

bei ng the comm ssioner of health here in

New Yor k.
Just by way of training, I'm
board-certified in pediatrics. |'malso

board-certified in general preventive
nmedi ci ne and public health.

| did want to take a nmonment just to

thank Dr. Mary Bassett. And, you know, quite

frankly it's an honor to follow in her
footsteps here. You know, she really laid a
very inportant groundwork for the departnment,
and it's work that we nust continue to do to
rebuild the departnent, and also just to
continue to place health equity at the center
of everything we do at the New York State
Depart nment of Health.

You know, to that end, | am proud that
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| ast year the departnent created the Ofice
of Health Equity and Human Rights. This
of fice defines the overarching vision,
framework and strategy to achi eve a diverse,
equi tabl e and inclusive departnment, with the
goal of elimnating disparities and advanci ng
health equity to inprove the health and
wel | ness of all New Yorkers. This office is
staffed by over 600 individuals across
mul tidisciplinary teams, and is essential to
advancing New York State's Health Equity
| npact Assessnent, the Transgender Wl | ness
Equity Fund, and endi ng preventabl e
epi dem cs, including H'V, hepatitis C and
congenital syphilis.

The FY '24 Executive Budget is a
bl ueprint for better health in New York. Not
only does it continue to build on the current
fiscal year's historic healthcare
i nvestnments, but its enphasis on public
health infrastructure aligns with the
departnment's focus on health equity. This
budget allows us to envision a stronger

health systemfor all New Yorkers that can




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

18

neet the challenges of the future while
continuing to address persistent health
di sparities.

To create a healthier future and
elimnate health disparities, we nmust nake it
easier for people to access prinmary care.
This includes closing the gap on the
uni nsur ed, addressing nedi cal debt, and
forgi ng pat hways to connect New Yorkers with
primary care providers. New York enacted
several inportant coverage expansions in the
FY ' 23 budget, includi ng expandi ng Medi cai d
eligibility for all adults, elimnating
Child Health Plus prem uns, and covering
mental health benefits. Together, these
coverage expansions account for $100 mllion
of new investnments and will hel p hundreds of
t housands of New Yorkers.

The Departnent of Health is al so
seeki ng federal waiver approval to expand
Essential Plan coverage to additional
| ow-i ncorme individuals, increasing our
eligibility to 250 percent of the federa

poverty | evel.
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Expandi ng i nsurance coverage dovetails
wi th our enphasis on connecting nore
New Yorkers to primary care providers.
Governor Hochul has proposed investnents in
interventions that will ease the way for the
underserved to access care. This includes
i ncreasi ng Medi caid rei nbursenent rates for
primary care through an annual benchmarking
of Medicaid' s physician fee schedule to
80 percent of Medicare's rate; an increase to
the nurse practitioner fee schedule; as well
as reinbursenent for primary care providers
for adm ni stering adverse chil dhood
experiences, or ACEs, screening.

In addition, the Medicaid programw ||
i ncrease rates for school -based health
centers by 10 percent.

The FY '24 Executive Budget al so
i ncludes various investnents to enhance
energency nedical services statewide. It
provides $7.6 mllion in increased funding
for EMS resources, devel oping an EMS
recruitnment and retention program

contracting with EMS agenci es for disaster
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response readi ness, and expanded educati onal
and nmental health prograns.

Capi tal equi pment resources wll be
provi ded to enhance statew de availability of
anbul ances in areas that need EMS support.
The budget al so provides innovative delivery
nodel s to hel p reduce pressures of the
heal t hcare system provide patients with nore
options to receive care, and bring nore
nmedi cal care into the comunity.

Addi tionally, the budget invests over
$18 mllion to increase ambul ance provider
rates for nore conplex trips, to further
expand access to EMS services across the
st at e.

" m pl eased to report that since
creating the Ofice of Aging and Long- Term
Care six nonths ago, the team has undertaken
a great deal of work to support a m ssion of
fostering policy, programs and services that
neet the needs of aging and disabl ed
New Yorkers. This includes the creation of
Governor Hochul's Master Plan for Aging, in

partnership with other agencies, that wll
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lay the foundation for building safe, |ivable
comunities for agi ng New Yorkers.

The Executive Budget further supports
our drive to create a sustainable aging and
| ong-term care systemthat rewards quality,

i ncreases long-term care provider
transparency, creates a pathway for caregiver
opportunity and flexibility and, nost
importantly, ensures access to aging services
and quality long-termcare, while working to
elimnate health disparities.

Turning to maternal health, racial
disparities remain a significant and deeply
troubling problem wth Black wonen about
four times nore likely than white wonen to
di e from pregnancy-rel ated conplications. To
address this gap and ensure that pregnancy
and childbirth is safe for all New Yorkers,
Medi cai d coverage for doula services will be
expanded for all pregnant, birthing and
post partum Medi cai d-enrol | ed i ndi vidual s
t hrough 12 nont hs post partum

To protect our children fromthe harns

of | ead exposure, Governor Hochul is
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proposing a programto drastically reduce the
risk of |ead exposure in rental properties,
as each year nearly 7,000 children in

New York are di agnosed with dangerously

el evated bl ood | ead | evel s.

Governor Hochul's proposal to ban the
sal e of flavored tobacco products, including
ment hol , woul d be a huge step forward for
public health. Flavors nmake it easier for
people to start snoking, and harder to quit.
Tobacco conpani es have hooked m | lions of
Bl ack and Hi spanic New Yorkers on their
deadly products. The Governor's proposal,
whi ch focuses enforcenent entirely on
retailers, not individuals, wll protect our
children, save lives, and address
| ongst andi ng raci al inequity.

Finally, as we enter a transitional
phase in our COVID response, it is
appropriate to highlight the critical role
that our internationally renowned
Wadswort h Labs have played. Recogni zing the
nati onal significance of Wadswort h,

Gover nor Hochul included a total of
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$1.7 billion in her 2023-'24 Executive Budget
to build a new, state-of-the-art public
health research | aboratory in Al bany. The
additional $967 mllion, building on top of
the $750 mllion previously earmarked, wll
allow the five separate sites of the
Wadsworth Center to be consolidated within
one, at the eastern edge of the Harriman

O fice Canmpus, making it easier to coordinate
the work of these great |abs.

In closing, | want to thank the chairs
for inviting me to testify. | look forward
to working with you to inprove the health and
wel | -being of all New Yorkers. Your
partnership is inportant to nme -- and it's
essential so we can hel p ensure your
constituents are well-served.

Thank you, and | do | ook forward to
answering your questions.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much, Conm ssi oner.

And now Supervisor Harris --
Superintendent. Wiit, which are you?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:
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Superi nt endent .

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
Good norning. | would |ike to thank
Chairs Krueger and Weinstein, Wprin, Rivera
and Paulin, ranking nmenbers and all nenbers,
for inviting me to testify al ongside ny
esteened col | eagues fromthe Departnent of
Heal t h.

My name is Adrienne Harris, and | am
privileged to have the opportunity to present
today's testinony as the superintendent of
t he Departnent of Financial Services. DFS s
mssion is to build an equitable,
transparent, and resilient financial system
that benefits individuals and supports
busi nesses. Through engagenent, data-driven
regul ati on and policy, and operati onal
excel | ence, the departnment and its enpl oyees
are responsi ble for enpowering consuners and
protecting themfromfinancial harm ensuring
the health of the entities we regul ate;
driving economc growmh in New York through

responsi bl e i nnovati on; and preserving the
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stability of the global financial system

The departnent regul ates the
activities of approximtely 3,000 banki ng,
i nsurance, virtual currency, and ot her
financial institutions, with assets totaling
nore than $9 trillion. DFS provides an
average of nearly $1 billion to the state and
New Yor kers every year through restitution to
consuners and heal t hcare providers, penalties
paid to the State General Fund, and DFS
assessment revenue reappropriated to ot her
state entities. The departnent’'s operating
expenses are assessed upon our regul ated
entities and are not a cost to New York
t axpayers.

| continue to believe that responsible
mar ket growt h and consuner protection are
mut ual Iy supporting concepts and not
conpeting concerns. A healthy market grows
when consuners have confidence in the
products offered and the providers offering
them | look forward to continuing to work
wi th Governor Hochul, the Legislature, sister

agenci es, and other inportant stakeholders to
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advance policies that support access to
guality financial services for al
New Yor kers.

It has been 17 nonths since | joined
the departnent, and | am endl essly proud of
what we have acconplished. 1In this time, DFS
has proposed anendnents to New York's
cybersecurity regul ation; issued
nati on-| eadi ng virtual currency gui dance on
st abl ecoi ns, insolvency, insider trading, and
bl ockchai n anal ytics; managed the
national -security inpacts of the war in
Ukrai ne; finalized a disclosure regulation
for small business |enders, and much nore.

More broadly, DFS has expanded its
focus on kitchen-table issues, taking a nore
proactive approach to protecting consuners by
i npl enenti ng new | aws, promul gating new
regul ations, issuing regulatory gui dance, and
returning noney directly to New Yorkers in
the formof restitution.

| nstead of accepting an outdated
nmet hodol ogy for check-cashing fees that

granted annual automatic fee increases, the
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team created a new, data-driven fee structure
t hat considers consuner needs. |Instead of
acqui escing to historic limtations on what
could be done on overdraft fees, the team at
DFS i ssued nation-1| eadi ng gui dance
prohi biting unfair and deceptive practices.
I nstead of viewing climate risk as a
self-contained i ssue, the team nade sure that
our proposed banking climte gui dance did not
have uni nt ended consequences for New Yorkers
who are already disproportionately inpacted
by climate change. And instead of accepting
t he | ongstanding belief that health equity
shoul d be tackl ed exclusively by public
heal th plans, the departnent issued a request
for data fromcomercial health insurers to
hel p address health inequities. These are
just a few exanples of how the departnent is
taki ng proactive steps to create better
out cones for New Yorkers.

In the unfortunate circunstance where
we find, through exam nations and
i nvestigations, that a conpany has harned

New Yorkers, we do everything in our power to
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make consumers whole. To that end, in 2022

t he departnent returned nore than

$151 million to New Yorkers in restitution --
nore than double the year prior. This is a
clear rem nder to New Yorkers that their
government is working for them

In addition to the team s trenendous
policy and regul atory work, we are working
within DFS to rebuild the departnent around
what | call the "three P 's" -- policy,
process, and peopl e.

When it comes to policy, we have
adopted a data-driven approach to
pol i cymaki ng, rather than one based on
i deol ogy. The departnent is engagi ng nore
than ever with all stakeholders in order to
make decisions that will positively inpact
New Yor ker s.

When it comes to process, it is
critically inportant to me that we strive for
operational excellence at DFS, ensuring that
deci sion-making is efficient, transparent,
and fair. W have created an operations

Division and hired the departnment's
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first-ever chief technology officer to build
systens and i npl enment technology required to
regul ate the fast-noving narkets we oversee.

Lastly, | could not be prouder of the
peopl e that make up this agency. None of the
work at DFS is possible without this
dedi cated team that continues to produce
amazi ng work, especially given the |evel of
staffing and support avail abl e.

Since the nmerger of the Banking and
| nsurance departnents in 2011, DFS has been
staffed at a skeletal |evel and denied the
fundi ng needed to respond to a changi ng
mar ket pl ace. Due to the inval uabl e support
of the Governor and Legislature, the FY '23
budget fully funded the departnent for the
first time inits history, allow ng the
agency to hire staff that had been needed for
years. Since January 2022 we have hired
194 new staff and pronoted 194 team nenbers,
maki ng progress agai nst our five-year
strategic plan.

Continuing to hire top talent at a

rapid pace is a high priority for FY '"24. In
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t he past year, market turbul ence has affected
a nunber of entities that DFS regul ates, and
in each instance DFS staff have worked around
the clock to manage risk and ensure that

New York markets and consuners are protected.

Even with the departnent's recent
hiring success, however, historic failures to
mai nt ai n adequate staffing | evels, conbined
with ongoing attrition -- including attrition
to federal financial regulators who pay, on
average, 30-50 percent nore -- requires us to
continue this inmportant work of hiring in
order to fully execute our growi ng m ssion.

| remain fully confident that with the
requi site resources, DFS can cenent its role
as a preem nent and gl obal | y-respected
regul ator, and New York's place as the
financial capital of the world.

As | said last year, | think DFS can
best serve New Yorkers by working closely and
col |l aboratively with all of you. | |ook
forward to today's hearing and the work we
wi |l continue throughout this budget process

and into the future. And |I'm happy to take




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

31

your questi ons.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

| know we' ve been joined by
Senat or Hi nchey.

Any ot her Republican Senators? Nope.
Any Assenbl ynmenber s?

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Yes. We've
been joi ned by Assenbl yman Weprin, chair of
our I nsurance Conmittee; Assenbl yworman

Kel | es; Assenbl yman Sayegh; Assenbl yworman

Si nmon.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER:  And our first
guestioner will be Senator Myrie, three
m nut es.

SENATOR MYRI E:  Thank you,

Madam Chai r.

Thank you, Superintendent. Good to
see you. And thank you, Acting Conm ssioner
and the staff that have joined --

(Interruption by protesters.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Fol ks, we're
asking you to --

(Continued interruption.)
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CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, fol ks,
we're going to ask you to please take your
prot est outside.

(Continued interruption; mc cut.)

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: -- that you'l
just sign up to testify, because | think
everybody here today is trying to address the
sanme issues. So we're going to ask everyone
who's protesting to please either go back to
your seats and |isten or |eave the room And
| have to ask the four or five gentlenen who
have sat down in front to please renove
t hensel ves before the Sergeant-at-Arns need
to, and we don't want to go down that road.

And again, | don't believe you
actually asked to testify, so we didn't
refuse you the right to testify. So pl ease
respect everybody who is here hoping to get
their turn to testify.

(Protestor interruption.)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: | know. And you
came the other week, you're like their --

(Protestor interruption.)

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Thank
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you. We're asking you to go now.

(Continued interruption.)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, thank you.
Thank you. Thank you. And actually it turns
out you said you' re Housing Wrks, right? So
they did sign up to testify, so let them know
they don't have a tinme later either. Okay?
There's no nore tinme for Housi ng Wrks after
this protest today. You' ve already used up
their tinme. Thank you.

(Protestor: "That can't happen.")

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: That can be,
actual ly, because | run the Finance Conmittee
today. So please, everybody, excuse
your sel ves now or take your seats and listen
to the other people who are here as well to
testify on many issues you care about and we
all care about.

(Continued interruption.)

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. kay,
can you --

(Continued interruption.)

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. Thank

you.
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(Continued interruption.) GCkay,
folks -- (gaveling). W're going to take a
recess until the protest is over. Thank you
for your patience.

(Hal f - hour recess taken.)

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Hello
agai n, everyone. W're going to -- oh, good,
we're back on air and |I'm back on m crophone.
And sorry for the inconvenience for those of
you who know you're now going to wait even
| onger before you can testify today.

But to go back to where we were, |
bel i eve Senator Myrie was going to be the
first questioner.

SENATOR MYRI E:  Thank you,

Madam Chair. Denocracy at work, right?

Acting Comm ssioner, | was born in a
safety-net hospital. | represent four
safety-net hospitals in the heart of Central
Br ookl yn serving predom nantly Bl ack and
brown patients. And in this budget the
Governor has given our safety-net hospitals
nothing. Historically our safety-net

hospital s struggle. They serve the needi est




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

35

patients. W don't have a conmercial insured
pool. It's a Medicaid-insured pool. They
are struggling with their finances. And the
state, on a perennial basis, sinply offers

t hem one-tine shots.

My only question is, What are we doing
for our safety-net hospitals? Wy is there
nothing in the budget for then? W need
structural reform not a one-tine shot. And
|"mcurious as to why we have to make this
case every single year, whereas hospitals and
other institutions in predonm nantly white and
nore affl uent nei ghborhoods don't have to
make that case.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  So
safety-net hospitals are very inportant to
t he Governor and to nyself and the Depart nent
of Health. And, you know, agree with you
that, you know, we need our safety-net
hospitals; there's no debating that.

| think there actually is quite a bit
in the budget for safety-net hospitals,

t hough. Let nme wal k through a coupl e of

t hose points, and then I'Il go to Medicaid
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Director Bassiri to hit sone of those points
as wel | .

But, you know, we did do the
Statewide Il awards. In fact, $200 mllion
just went out Monday. W have $1.6 billion
in Statewide for -- that's com ng out this
year as well. There's another billion com ng
in Statew de V.

You know, | do think there's other
t hings here as well, you know, for rural
hospitals, which are affected by this as
well. W do have the direct paynent
tenpl ates, which is about a billion dollars.
We have the VAPAP program and Vital Access
Provider grants. The 5 percent increase in
Medicaid is the largest increase we've had in
20 years.

And, you know, | think there's other
things as well, you know, quite frankly, we
need to do to help reduce costs for
hospitals. One of the things |I've heard from
every hospital admnistration is they need to
be able to be predict costs, and staffing is

a big issue for them
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So | think there's sonme things we're
doing with -- you know, for nursing staffing,
in other words, traveling nursing, to help
control costs and get some transparency in
that space. W're doing sonme things with
Certificate of Need reformwhich will help
sonme hospitals as well.

And | think we're doing sone things
with scope of practice as well. You know,
scope of practice, to nme, there's sone nodest
changes in this budget that | think will help
all the hospitals, including safety-net
hospi tal s.

And, you know, just to be clear, there
has been a 286 percent increase, you know, in
funding of hospitals, safety-net hospitals,
since FY '20. The $700 million from| ast
year was a one-tine deal -- and I'msorry, |
used up all the tine.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbly. First testifier?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you. And
no, |'mnot Hel ene Wi nstein.

(Laughter.)
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: My first
guestion relates to COVID-19. The Depart nent
of Health and Human Services is planning for
the public health energency at the federal
|l evel to expire at the end of May -- or
m ddl e of May. What is the expectation at
the state level in terms of, you know, when
do you anticipate the expiration of the
executive order, including the scope issues?
And | just wondered if you would comrent
about the departnent’'s readiness relating to
the end of the energency.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes, so
the end of the emergency bei ng decl ared by
the federal governnment is May 11, 2023.
| mportant to note that the PREP Act continues
till Cctober 1, 2024.

| think when you differentiate the
endi ng of the federal energency, the national
energency, from biologically and
epi dem ol ogi cally what's going to happen.
Because just because May 1l1lth is going to
come and go, it doesn't mean the pandemic is

gone. Because the pandemic is still going to
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be around perhaps another year or two. You
know, | think what we've seen is because of

t he vacci ne, because of treatnent, because of
prevention strategies, we've learned to |live
with this. You know, which -- that's an
important thing. W have learned to live
with it.

| s the departnent prepared for the
next pandem c? Yes, we are. You know, we've
|l ost a |lot of people, but quite frankly we
have a lot of resilient people who' ve stayed
with us.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULIN: | just wonder,
you know, do you then expect that the
executive order would continue? Because it's
t he Governor --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  So the
only executive order left that 1'm aware of
is Executive Order 4, which is about
heal thcare staffing. And it's on healthcare
staffing, it is not connected to the pandem c
directly. So that will continue, quite
frankly, | hope not very long. If we get the

scope of practice changes through and if we
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get the EMS budget changes through, we may
not need Executive Order 4 anynore, quite
frankly. But what we're hearing from
hospi tal s and nursing hones and from EMS
providers right nowis they still need
Executive Order 4. So we would | ove nothing
nore than to nove beyond that.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Next question relates to workforce
i ssues. You know, we -- workforce issues are
hitting all sectors of the healthcare
community. And | wondered, you know, what
approaches that the departnment is going to be
using to address them And, you know, w |
it depend or will it be different in
different regions of the state?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
SO0 -- are you asking nostly about how t he
Department of Health's going to address its
own workforce? O workforce throughout --
heal t hcare t hroughout the state? Because
they're slightly different.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  You know - -

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: W
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coul d do bot h.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Yes. | nean,
you coul d address both. But really primarily
nursi ng shortages, EMS workers, hone care
ai des. You know, the ganut.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
the ganut. Let's do the ganut.

So yeah, there is the $3 an hour
i ncrease for hone care workers -- $2 | ast
year, $1 this year. You know, hone care
wor kers increasing 32.9 percent since '17,
the fastest-growi ng area of healthcare,
peri od.

You know, for nursing, there is noney
in this budget for nurses. There's not just
| oan repaynment noney, but there's other
trai ning noney. There's | oan repaynent for
physi ci ans as wel | .

You know, when it comes to increasing
heal t hcare workers, one of the things we have
to be very candid about is they just need
time to actually be devel oped and trai ned.

You know, I'ma little concerned about

our nursing pipeline, quite honestly, about,
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you know, we need to be able to train nore
nurses, but we need nursing faculty to do
that. There's only so nuch of that that the
Department of Health controls. | think the
scope of practice changes woul d hel p.

think interstate |icensure conpacts, though,
are inportant.

The nursing interstate |icensure
conpact is a lot like the driver's license
conpact that New York State is part of, where
you and | can drive to any state in the
country. But could you inagine if we were
to, with our New York State driver's license,
go to Florida and be told we need the Florida
driver's license. That's what we do with the
nurses right now.

For the physician conpact it's
different. But it will definitely help the
wor kf orce as wel | .

| know Medicaid Director Bassiri has
some issues here as well. He can give you
some nore specifics.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Thank you,

Comm ssioner. And thank you for the
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guestion, Assenbl ymenber Paulin.

W -- you know, in |ast year's budget
t he Governor did enact a $20 billion
investnent in healthcare and in workforce.

It did include the heal thcare workforce bonus
programin this | ast year.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Except this
year, you know, with the indexing to m ninmm
wage, we're effectively taking it away.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI:  No.

That -- this is a bonus paynent that has been
made to workers through the pandemc --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Ch, the bonus
paynent, yes.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  -- that we
spent about $1.5 billion, state investnent,
to about 600,000 workers in this year. That
programw || extend for another year.

W al so have an 1115 waiver that we're
pursuing for the Medicaid program And in
t hat waiver we have $1.5 billion allocated
for workforce that will address what you're
referring to with region-specific training

and professionals that need to be devel oped.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So naybe you
can coment or, you know, any of the -- |
guess the people on the right, my right, you
know, on the issue of -- you know, the issue
of indexing the m ni mum wage and then
t herefore phasing out the -- or the, in
effect, taking away the increase for hone
care workers.

VEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI:  So
understand that the index does not include
home care workers at this tine. However, we
did inplement a $3 increase for hone care
wor kers | ast year, as Conm ssioner MDonal d
said: $2 last year, $1 in -- comng in
October. So it doesn't nake sense to index
at this time because the increase that we've
put in place is significantly higher than
what that index would be.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So woul d you
anticipate indexing in the future?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
that discussion is certainly something that
we'll be willing to have. Based on our

anal ysis, that would not occur until at | east
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2029, 2030.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So, okay, on to
a new subject, because | want to get a few
nore, you know, questions in. Hospital
funding. Can you address or tell us, you
know, the five hospitals that will take the
| argest cut in the decrease in the Indigent
Care Pool nmoney? And can you assure the
Legi sl ature, you know, related to Senator
Myrie's question of the safety-net hospitals,
that we're not going to see nany hospitals go
out of business?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI:  Yes, | can
t ake that one.

So the first question on the Indigent
Care Pool, the reduction will only be to
hospitals that do not neet the average
government payer m x requirement, which is
78 percent. So if you don't have 78 percent
Medi cai d pl us Medi care payer m x, you would
be subject to the reduction.

We actually applied this sane
nmet hodol ogy of a reduction in 2020. And it's

t he sane hospitals that would be inpacted by
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that. And they are not safety-net hospitals.
Those hospitals are protected fromthe
reducti on.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: | assune we'l |
get a list eventually.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  You
absolutely wll.

Wth respect to the safety-net
guestion, as Dr. MDonal d shared earlier, we
have been investing in safety-net hospitals
through a cadre of different prograns. W' ve
been maxi m zing the federal revenue that we
can get match on so that we get as much
support as possible to those hospitals.

They' re conplicated prograns, but we
are commtted to ensuring that the distressed
hospital s get the funding they need. W
believe the $2 billion that we're allocating
for themis sufficient. |t does not include
the 5 percent rate increase that we're
i mpl enenting, nor does it include investnents
in the Essential Plan for inpatient and
out patient --

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULIN:  So you believe
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that the hospitals, we won't have -- we won't
suffer fromclosures as a result of the
pl anni ng by the departnent in this budget.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: W are not
expecting any closures.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  340B.
hesitate to bring it up. Many of the 340B
entities will be taking a major hit if we
enact the Executive Budget. And the funding
for Nei ghborhood Health Centers in particular
is a year-to-year budget add. Shouldn't the
fundi ng be guaranteed in the future instead
of this nmethod? And, you know, conpoundi ng
t he probl em for Nei ghborhood Health Centers,
t hey haven't been rebased in a long tine.
you know, is that a consideration going
f orward?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So I'11
hol d on the rebasi ng because there's only a
mnute left. | do want to answer your
guestion on the safety net.

The proposal that we have to keep the
health centers whole is a pernanent proposal.

It is putting in a new nmethodol ogy into our
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state plan anendnent, which is the agreenent
we have with the federal governnent as to
what they' Il pay for and what we pay for in
the Medicaid program It's how the rest of
their reinbursenent is established.

So we are maki ng a pernmanent
i nvestment, and we are reinvesting every
single dollar that the health centers have
stated they need, directly back to themin
such a way that we believe they're actually
going to get a benefit and they are not going
to be taking a cut.

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN PAULI N: So, you know,
"1l give up ny last 30 seconds because |
don't know that 1'Il squeeze in another
guestion in tine, because | get to conme back
for a second round.

So with that, Senate.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. And
you only get three m nutes on your second
round. Sorry, Any.

The next Senator is Senator Brouk.

SENATOR BROUK: Can you hear ne okay?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes.
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SENATOR BROUK: Ch, good, | got a good
one. (Ckay, thank you so nuch, and thanks for
your patience today as we're starting a
little bit later.

Acting Comm ssioner, you nentioned
doula care in your oral and witten
testinmony, and | think it's crucial that we
tal k about this issue. You know, we're
sitting here in the United States, where you
mght inmagine it is the safest place to have
achild; in fact, it is not. It is actually
the worst place in the devel oping world where
you would want to have a child, based on
mat ernal nortality rates.

When we | ook at New York State, we
rank 25th in maternal nortality conpared to,
you know, other states. Wen we | ook at
pl aces |i ke New York City, Black wonen are
nine tines nore likely to die in childbirth
Statewi de, we are three to four tines nore
likely to die in childbirth. And one of the
reasons why doul as are so inportant is
because that is a way that we conbat that

statistic. W essentially can save babies
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lives and their nothers' lives by making sure
t hat everyone has access to a doul a.

For anyone who doesn't know --
soneone -- it's a nonclinician who offers
i nformational, enotional, and physical
support prenatal, during the birthing
process, and postpartum

So let's dig into the proposal that
you brought to us today fromthe Executive
Budget. You say that in this
Executive Budget, doula care would be
Medi cai d-rei mbursable, is that correct?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes.

SENATOR BROUK: Ckay. And what are
the rates for that Medicaid reinbursenment?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  It's
going to go to $1500.

SENATCR BROUK: Fifteen hundred
dollars. And what does that include?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  It's
the doula care for the entire pregnancy and
t he postpartum peri od.

You know, it was $600; we had t hat

pilot in Erie County and Ki ngs County.
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{Unintelligible} and nobody set up from Ki ngs
County, but we had about 50 doulas in Erie
County. So this is a pretty substantia
i ncrease.

You know, one of the things | saw when
| | ooked at the perinatal hearings that
Chair CGottfried and Chair Paulin hosted
Novenber 30th of 2021 was several doul as
testified, you know, they nmade really clear
how i nportant this was not just culturally,
but how they save lives. And | totally agree
with you. | nean, there's a fair anount of
research that tal ks about the inportance of
doul as just saving lives.

And, you know, quite frankly, birth
needs to be a celestial experience in
New Yor k.

SENATOR BROUK: Coul dn't agree nore.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  One of
the things | pulled out of the perinatal
hearing is, it isn't.

And, you know, | just got back; 1've
been away for a long tine. But quite frankly

we need to inprove not just birth outcones,
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whi ch are very inportant to ne, but just
birth, period. Because one of the things |
pul l ed out of the perinatal hearings was
wonen felt controlled, they didn't fee
respected, they didn't feel like they were
able to make the decisions they need to make.
That just shouldn't be the case.

And so --

SENATOR BROUK: A hundred percent
agree with you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  And so
| think a doula is a great idea.

SENATOR BROUK: Thank you. |'m going
to take a few nore seconds because | think
you're absolutely right, and you took the
words right out of my nouth. This can save
lives, we see decreases in cesarean rates, we
see decreases in length of |abor.

The thing | want to urge you to
continue to consider, though, is making sure
that this is getting inplenented as quickly
as possible, and that you do consi der higher
rates. Because we do know that the $1900

rate is nmuch closer to an equitable
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rei nmbursenent rate. Thank you

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Thank
you for your feedback

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbly. (Pause.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN.  Oh, sorry, |I'm
not used to being in this role.

Assenbl yman David Weprin, who has
10 m nutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Thank you,
Madam Chair. |'mgoing to direct mnmy question
to the comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Fi nanci al Services, Superintendent Harris.

Superintendent Harris, long-termcare
i nsurance prem umrates have increased beyond
what nost New Yorkers can afford. These
significant increases threaten to force these
pol i cyhol ders to cancel their policies that
they have dutifully paid into for nany years.
What is the Departnment of Financial Services
doing to ensure that |long-termcare prem uns
stay affordable to policyhol ders?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:

Absol utely. Thank you so nuch, Assenbl yrman
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for that question.

As you know, you and | have tal ked
about long-termcare on a coupl e of
occasions. At the departnent, we are tasked
wi th balancing rate increases and the inpact
on consuners with the safety and soundness of
the institutions that we regulate. |It's
i nportant that they have the noney, that they
can pay clains when they beconme due. But
long-termcare is a national problem Just
as we are seeing the rates increasing in
New York, we see that all over the country,
and consuners faced with this terrible
deci sion of paying increased rates or
accepting a decline in benefits.

So there's a couple of things that we
have done and are doing at the Departnent of
Fi nanci al Services. First, |I have directed
the teamto do a historical |ookback, both in
New York and around the country, to exam ne
t he poor assunptions that have been nmade by
regul ators and industry in the past that |ed
to poor pricing.

Many of these books of business suffer
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from poor assunptions where people did not
understand that people were going to live

| onger, they didn't understand what was goi ng
to happen to the cost of healthcare, they
made bad assunpti ons about how people were
going to get rid of policies and how | ong

t hey woul d keep them And again, this was
somet hi ng we saw nati onw de.

But in ny view, regulators and
i ndustry around the country -- including here
in New York, unfortunately -- did not adjust
t he data qui ckly enough once they knew those
assunptions were no good. And so |'ve
directed the teamto do a | ookback and do an
exam nation so that we can put some sunlight
on this issue and hopefully make better
deci si ons goi ng forward.

The other thing that we're doing, as
you know, is the Governor has put a health
guarantee fund in the Executive Budget.

New York is the only state in the country
wi t hout a heal thcare guarantee fund. And
this is inportant with respect to |ong-term

care because right now in New York, if you
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have a constituent who buys a long-termcare
policy through a life insurance conpany, we
have a |ife guarantee fund. And if that
conpany becone insolvent, your constituent
has the protection of that fund should that
conpany becone insol vent.

| f that constituent were to buy the
same policy through a healthcare insurer and
that health insurer becane insolvent, that
constituent would have no protection. And to
me, that's not a good public policy outcone.

So right nowin New York is we're the
only state without a heal thcare guarantee
fund. Qbviously we work very hard at the
department to nake sure that entities remain
safe and sound. But in the event that they
don't or in the event -- we have a live
exanpl e now where another state has noved to
put a long-termcare conpany into
I iquidation, essentially forcing our hand
here in New York. W want that fund in place
to protect consuners.

ASSEMBLYMAN VPRI N: W t hout

di scl osing any confidential information, is
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there a fear in New York potentially of a
conmpany goi ng i nsol vent ?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: So we have
one conpany where we've filed for
rehabilitation | ast week. This was a conpany
where the parent conpany is a
Pennsyl vani a- based conpany. Pennsyl vani a
noved to |iquidate their conpany in 2017.
Frankly, | think New York could have acted
faster in liquidating or noving to
rehabilitate the New York subsidiary. But
we've noved it to rehabilitation now, and it
will be up to the court how the
rehabilitation or |iquidation schedul e noves
forward

That conpany has over 600 New Yorkers
who are either paying for their policies --

t here's about 70 New Yorkers who are
currently on claim And should the court
nove the conpany to |iquidation before
there's a health guarantee fund in place here
in New York, those 70 New Yorker who are
currently on claimwould be forced to find

care el sewhere. They'd literally be taken
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out of their long-termcare facilities,
| osing the investnent they have.

For those policyhol ders who are not
currently on cl ai mbut have been paying in
for decades and decades, they would
effectively lose that investnment. So that's
why it's incredibly inportant that we have
the health guarantee fund here in place in
New York just like 49 other states do.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Ckay. In the
event a long-termcare underwiter becones
i nsol vent, what is the purpose of splitting
assessnments equally between health and life
insurers when the latter wite a mgjority of
the LTC policies?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:  The
proposal that the Governor's put forward in
t he budget is based on the National
Associ ation of | nsurance Conmi ssioners nodel
law. It is very close to what we see in

every other state in the nation. Having a

joint fund, a joint health and |ife guarantee

fund, is what we see in that nodel. [t's

sonmet hing that insurers are used to conplying
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with in 49 other states. And it prevents the
state fromhaving to stand up a conpletely
separate adm ni strative apparat us.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  I's DFS concerned
that this proposal could force the health
i nsurance industry to subsidize |long-term
care policies of insolvent |ife insurers?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S: Not at
all, sir. In fact, to be clear, the
guar antee funds support consuners. So they
are not a bailout for conpanies. They are
nmeant to support those consumers when a
heal t h i nsurance conpany becones i nsol vent.
The assessnents are levied only in the event
of an insolvency. They are |evied
proportionally to the amount of prem uns that
the conpanies wite in the state. And again,
this is sonething that insurers are used to
conplying with in every other state in the
nation. So this should not be hard for them
to administer or conply wth.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Okay, thank you
|"mgoing to now turn to drug pricing.

Prescription drug prices have
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increased significantly in recent years,

i ncreasing costs to consuners and the
heal t hcare system at |arge. Wat accounts
for these dramatic increases?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Thank you
so nmuch for that question

As you know, we have, thanks to the
Legi slature and the Governor, the ability to
oversee pharnmacy benefit nanagers now at DFS.
We've built up an incredible team and we have
registered all PBMs in the state. But
there's still nore work to do because the
si ngl e biggest contributing cost to
heal thcare is the increase in prescription
drug prices.

So what you see in the Governor's
proposal is a five-part plan where we are
requiring drug manufacturers to disclose
ahead of time price increases to the state so
that it hel ps policyhol ders nmake better
choices when it cones to their healthcare.

We're al so requiring, where the
federal governnment has not acted, that

pay-for-delay agreenents are disclosed to the
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department as wel | .

And then the proposal includes the
provi sion for oversight of a nunber of
entities along the prescription drug supply
chai n, including PSAGCs, rebate aggregators,
and switch conpanies. Al of these are neant
to add transparency along the prescription
drug supply chain and hopefully hel p keep
costs down for consuners.

ASSEMBLYMAN VWEPRIN:  Ckay. And how
does the Drug Accountability Board make drugs
nore affordabl e?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: The Drug
Accountability Board is a wonderful tool we
have at DFS where it permts us to
i nvestigate price spikes of 50 percent or
nore in one year. Cbviously nost price
increases aren't that dramatic, which is why
t he di sclosure provision in the Governor's
proposal is so inportant.

But that -- the Drug Accountability
Board, which includes your coll eague
Assenbl ynmenber MDonal d, investigates those

drug price spikes. W've concluded one
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investigation to date where we found that
essentially there was no price increase, but
there were controls that were not up to par
at the conmpany, and we've now renedi at ed

t hose. But we have several investigations
currently underway as well.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Okay. How woul d
HWH Part Y -- you referred to it briefly, the
Prescription Drug Price and Supply Chain
Transparency Act of 2023 -- how woul d t hat
contribute to these efforts?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Again, it
adds transparency. And | want to be m ndf ul
of ny tinme because there are a | ot of
conponents to that. But certainly I
nmenti oned the Drug Accountability Board has
the ability to investigate |arge price
spi kes.

But often what we see is the majority
of price increases are nuch snaller price
spi kes. So havi ng manufacturers discl ose
t hose price increases in advance and
incentivize themto disclose those price

increases with as nuch tinme as possible is
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going to be an inportant factor for us in
hel p keepi ng prescription drug prices | ow.

And agai n, havi ng pay-for-del ay
agreenents di scl osed and addi ng oversight to
PSAGCs, rebate aggregators, and swtch
conpanies -- all of which add costs and
mar gi n al ong the prescription drug supply
chain -- will help us bring transparency to a
very opaque market.

ASSEMBLYMAN VPRI N:  Ckay. And ny
time is running out of my 10 m nutes. But
there's a simlar bill in Oregon -- are you
following that? -- requiring advance
notification of drug prices in Oregon. And
that's currently being challenged | egally.

Does DFS have concerns regarding the
potential for litigation on the disclosure
and notification requirenments included in
your proposal? O in our proposal.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | am happy
to respond to that in witing.

ASSEMBLYMAN VEPRI N:  Ckay.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUEGER: Maybe you shoul d

come back to us in witing about that.
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DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S:  Yes,
absol utely, happy to do so. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Thank you,
Superi ntendent. Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: So we' ve been
j oi ned by several additional Senators since
| ast we named nanes. So Senator Sal azar,
Senat or Sanders, Senator Hoyl man- Si gal

Do you have a list of additional
Assenbl ynmenber s?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: | do. W' ve
been joi ned by 4 Gonzal ez- Roj as, Rosent hal ,

Anderson, Sillitti, and Sol ages.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Great, thank you.

And people will notice that a nunber
of seats are no longer really avail able, so
just a new rule of the hearings this year:
The two chairs at the far ends, either side
inthe front row, they're designed that if
sonmebody el se needs to ask a question and
t hey don't have a m crophone, then whoever's
sitting there needs to get up for them so

t hey can use that seat.
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But M chell e Hi nchey, who's the next
guestioner, has already figured that out and
is in that seat. Thank you.

SENATOR HI NCHEY: Thank you very much.
|"ve sat through one or two of these hearings
in the | ast couple of weeks, so |I've picked
it up.

Thank you so much for being here. M
guestion is for the acting conmm ssioner. |
represent four counties, and nany of them are
rural. And so a shared-service nodel is
important -- specifically for one of them
"Il say that, Greene County, they don't have
a local DOH, and so they're in the Oneonta
region. And so that covers (sego County,

Del awar e County, and G eene County. And |
believe there are only about three inspectors
for that entire region, for that entire
depart ment.

We had a business that was
revitalizing -- helping to revitalize a
comunity, putting in a business in a
| ocation that had been vacant for decades.

And when they put in the application for




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

66

their Oneonta DOH, they were told that they
woul d have to wait over a year to even get a
response. 1Is that an appropriate anount of
time for themto wait?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: Wl |,
no, it's not. So, | nmean, this is the first
|"m | earning about this situation, though.
And |' m happy to be hel pful.

In other words, | really don't know
about the staffing challenges there. 1've
nmet every local health departnent. But if
you want to work with ne offline, | can help
out .

SENATOR HI NCHEY: | will. | mean,
we -- ny office has talked with the Oneonta
departnment at length, and it is -- doesn't
seemto be getting any better. And of course
| don't see any solutions in the budget for
staffing, et cetera. So thank you, we wll

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: | nean,
we do have -- just to add this. Like we do
have the strengthening public health

wor kf orce grant com ng, which is here. But
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it's not part of the state budget, it's
federal noney, just so you know. This cones
fromthe Centers for Di sease Control and
Prevention. It's $107 mllion, a five-year
grant, but we get all the noney up front.

Each |l ocal health departnent’'s getting
at | east $200, 000, and then there's a
mul tiple they get for population. So there
m ght be help there, but this is where I'm
happy to work offline, | really am

SENATOR HI NCHEY: Great, thank you.
This is sonething that we need to solve. O
course they are then tasked with all of the
busi nesses and parks, fairgrounds,
everything -- which for a tourism conmunity,
that is everything they have. And so it's a
maj or issue.

So happy to work with you. Thank you.
We'll follow up, and I think they' Il need
sonme additional funding.

Secondly, New York State -- changing
gears a little bit, New York State ranks | ast
in hospice and palliative care. And this is

sonmething that's incredibly personal to ne
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and sonething that, you know, | believe al
New Yor kers need to know nore about.

| thank the Governor for signing our
bill to raise awareness with a public
i nformati on canpai gn. However, she did veto
our bill to set up a director of hospice and
palliative care.

And | want to know what are the plans
within DOH to strengthen this so that
New York is no longer last in this vital care
sector?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
it saddens ne that we mght be last in
hospi ce, because quite frankly hospice is
very inportant. You know, when you think
about just the sacred experience of passing,
it's very inportant.

| don't know that in four seconds |
can give you a detailed answer. How about |
just get back to you on that one too, is that
okay?

SENATOR HI NCHEY: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes,
Assenbl ynman Jensen

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

| amgoing to direct ny questions to
t he DFS superintendent. But Comm ssioner
McDonald, I amgoing to follow up with you by
witten correspondence. 1'd |love an
opportunity to follow up in person or via
witten correspondence.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
pl ease. Love to.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Superi nt endent, |
want to circle back to the health guarantee
fund that the insurance chairman tal ked
about. The proposed guarantee fund woul d
i npose two new cl asses of taxes on health
pl ans, one for administrative costs and one
to carry out the powers and duties of this
associ ation, based on 2 percent of prem um
revenue.

Who woul d be responsi bl e for paying
this new tax?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Sir, |I'm
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not sure that that's part of the proposal,
but 1'm happy to circle back to you on that.

As | noted previously, the assessnents
are only levied if and when a conpany becones
insolvent. They are levied in proportion to
t he amount of premunms witten by each
conpany, so that smaller insurers will bear
| ess of the assessnent than the | argest
i nsurers.

And the way those assessnents are then
| evied and the timng of the | evying of the
assessments is left up to the associati on,
whi ch is governed by industry
representatives.

But |I'm happy to conme back to you on
the tax and admi ni strative issue.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  So whet her
it's -- you call it atax or call it an
assessnent, the solvent insurers would be the
ones | eft picking up the cost for the
i nsol vent providers, correct?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  The
solvent insurers then do provide the consuner

protection for those New Yorkers who have
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invested in their insurance and now are |eft
wi thout their investnment due to the insolvent
i nsurer.

And this is what we see in 49 other
st at es.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Okay. Unlike
nost ot her states, New York does have a | arge
nunber of in-state not-for-profit health
pl ans, especially in upstate, where |
represent. G ven that many of our |arge
enpl oyers often self-insure and woul dn't be
subject to this tax, slash, assessnent, would
t hese upstate small businesses and
i ndi vi dual s be nore disproportionately
i npacted by the 2 percent cost that woul d be
| evied to cover any insolvency el sewhere in
the state?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: And agai n,
| want to -- | want to make sure |'m stating
that the assessnent | think does not exceed
2 percent. So it is not a 2 percent
assessnment. That is the cap.

And again, it's levied proportionally

due to size and premumwitten. And it is
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up to the governing structure of the fund,
which is again industry-led, to decide on the
timng of the assessnments and how they're

| evi ed.

And it's the nodel that we see
t hroughout the country, everywhere but here
in New York.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Ckay. The
proposed budget includes a reauthorization of
HCRA and rel ated taxes on heal t hcare and
heal th i nsurance. These fees, these taxes
woul d next year reach about $6.4 billion,
adding to the cost of health insurance.

Gven this increase, which is stil
far out of sync with other states, do we
really need to insure -- partnered with the
oversi ght prerogatives of your departnent at
DFS, do we really need to institute this type
of guarantee fund, especially when we have
very few providers, coverage providers, that
are going insolvent?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:

Absol utely. This coverage -- or this fund,

this protection is necessary for New Yorkers.
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New Yorkers are the only people in the
country that do not have the protection of a
heal t h guarant ee fund.

And again, as | nentioned, we have a
live case currently where the departnent has
filed for rehabilitation over 600 New Yorkers
who have invested for decades in their
| ong-term care, over 70 who are currently on
claimand will be forced out of their
long-termcare facilities, forced to try and
find other policies -- which | can tell you
they will not be able to do.

The average age of these constituents,
by the way, is 82 years old. So they will be
forced out of their long-termcare
facilities. |If they are to qualify for
Medi cai d, they'd have to spend down their
assets, potentially, to be able to do so. O
they'd have to try and go out and find new
policies. And on the off chance that they
are able to find new policies, we're |ooking
at an exponential increase in costs to them
despite the fact that they have invested for

decades and decades to have the benefit that




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

74

they are currently enjoying.

And again, we've got the situation now
where anot her state forced our hand by noving
t he parent conpany into liquidation. Those
fol ks in Pennsylvania, just |ike consumers in
New Jersey and Connecticut and all of our
nei ghbors, have this protection -- and
New Yorkers do not. And | don't think it's a
good policy outcome for our constituents.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: So very qui ckly,
with the institution of this fund as well as
t he other dramatic oversight that DFS has, do
you currently have enough staff to fulfill
all of the obligations that your departnment
is tasked with?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: W are
hiring and I'm happy to tal k nore about that
with you offline.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Al right. Thank
you, Superi ntendent.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you
Madam Chai r.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senator Gallivan, ranker on Health,
for five m nutes.

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

First, we've also been joined by
Senator Borrello.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: And Senat or
Nat hal i a Fernandez. Thank you.

SENATOR GALLIVAN: Do | get ny
8 seconds back?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Good nor ni ng.
Thank you all for your testinony. And thanks
for your graciousness, Madam Chair.

My first two questions are directed to
t he Departnent of Health, whoever --
whi chever you think is nost appropriate to
answer, please. They have to do with funding
and prograns.

The first one, |ast year the
Legi sl ature appropriated $800 mllion in the
budget for hospitals that were

di sproportionately inpacted by the pandem c,
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by COvVID 19, financially distressed because
of that. To nmy know edge, none of that nopney
has gone out yet. And the concernis, howis
it distributed, how are the decisions nmade?
There's no metric that I know in statute that
woul d define that.

And ny question -- the question would
be for that program but also we have sinmlar
concerns about the VAPAP program the
Statewi de Health Care Facility Transformation
Program And | know an announcenent on that
just went out in the |last week or two. But
the process, the netrics for any of those
t hings, transparency related to it. Many of
us have made calls, only to hear: Well,
soon. Soon. Soon. Hospitals and nursing
hones make those calls.

So the question, can you shed sone
light on the process and answer the question,
do you think that we need statutory | anguage
that will define how these things are
di stributed as opposed to going into the
Department of Health and waiting and waiting

and waiting, and in the nmeantine our
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hospital s and nursing honmes are hurting.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | can take

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: Go
ahead.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So thank
you for the question, Senator.

There is a process. It is simlar to
how we distribute funding for the VAPAP
program which is a state-only Mdi cai d-
funded program And it's based on a
case- by-case basis.

W work very closely with the
financially distressed hospitals and nursing
homes. W | ook at cash flows, we assess what
their fiscal needs are throughout the year
and prospectively, and based on their |evel
of need to ensure they have enough cash fl ow
and funding fromthe state, we deternm ne what
anount of funding we provide on an
intermttent basis. It could be quarterly,
it could be every other nonth. But there is
a process, and it follows the process we've

used historically to support financially
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di stressed hospitals and nursing hones.

SENATOR GALLI VAN: Tinme, of course,
doesn't permt an extended conversati on.
That's hopefully sonething that we can foll ow
up on.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI
Absol utely.

SENATOR GALLIVAN:  But | think I can
safely say that nany of ny coll eagues have
concerns about the process and the ultimte
distribution and the fact that it takes so
| ong.

The intercept of $625 million of FMAP
it creates a big hole for counties, upstate
and New York City. How are counties going to
fill that gap?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So | think
we all are aware that in 2015 we capped the
| ocal share of the counties' Medicaid costs
at about 7.6 billion. Since that tinme, we
have grown the Medicaid programquite
significantly, saving the counties | think
$38 billion since 2015.

We have al so taken over nore of the
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Medi cai d adm ni stration than had previously
been in place. You know, 83 percent of our
enrollees are currently enrolled through the
NY State of Health or will be redetermn ned

t hrough the NY State of Health, neaning
there's | ess burden from Medi cai d

adm ni stration for the counties to absorb.

And t hey have received the enhanced
federal funding that we've gotten since the
COVI D pandem c. So we believe that the
countries have -- you know, they are getting
the funding they need. W have absorbed, in
the state, a significant portion of the
growth in Medicaid. It's a $100 billion
programnow. In 2015 | can prom se you it
wasn't anywhere close to that.

A lot of that growth has been absorbed
by the state and not the counties, and we're
doi ng everything we can to reduce the burden
for themas we go through the unw nd and
prospectively taking over all of Medicaid
adm ni strati on.

So we do believe they can absorb it.

They have gotten other federal funding
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out si de of what the state has provided. And
we think they can absorb the reduction.

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Al'l right, thanks.
Again, time doesn't permt an extended
conversation. But we are going to hear from
the counties later, so | would inagine there
wi Il be additional discussion --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI
Absol utely. And we are actively speaking
with the county executives and the | ocal
conmi ssi oners.

SENATOR GALLI VAN:  And Superi nt endent,
without -- with only 14 seconds left, "1l
follow up with questions with you later, if |
may.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Wbnderful,
t hank you.

SENATOR GALLI VAN.  Thank you all.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Assenbl yman
John McDonal d, for three m nutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Thank you.

First of all, Superintendent, just
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want to say thank you. The approach in
regards to PBM regul ation, the departnent's
doi ng a wonderful job of --

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  -- naking sure
t hat everyone has an opportunity to
participate. And just want to recogni ze that
publicly.

My question is primarily for Amr in
regards to NYRx, the pharmacy carveout. And
| want to start off sinply. Basically, the
state is going back to the way we used to
manage the drug benefit up until about
10 years ago, is that correct?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  That is
correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD: So basically
we're -- governnent is running its own drug
program Basically we're taking out the
i nternedi aries, which is the pharnmacy -- or
the health plans and the PBMs, correct?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: A hundred
percent, yes. W are cutting out the PBMs

fromthe Medicaid pharmacy busi ness.
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ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  So how many
reci pients do we have on Medi cai d?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  Right now
we have 7.8 mllion

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  And as you
know, there's a lot of sensitivity on ny
part, yours and nany ot hers about the inpact
on 340B entities. How nmany patients does
t hat invol ve?

MEDI CAID DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  In terns
of unique patients utilizing 340B or filing a
340B scrip, it's 250, 000.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Two hundr ed
fifty thousand out of 8 mllion.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  And on the
340B conponent, we're only tal king about
peopl e who have strai ght Medicaid, not
hospi tal -adm ni stered servi ces, not people on
Medi caid Part D, which is not something the
state picks up, correct?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  That is
correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  So we're
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tal ki ng about about 3 percent of the
popul ation of the State of New York for
Medi cai d recipients.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI @ Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD: Ckay. Al
right. So | guess, interestingly enough, if
you were a fan of single-payer, wouldn't you
really want NYRx to go forward?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI
Absol utely. That's exactly what it is, for
one benefit. But if we were to do
si ngl e- payer, that would be -- NYRx woul d be
what provi ded the pharnmacy benefit for al
Medi cai d nmenbers.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  The reason why
| ask this is that | hear -- | still practice
pharmacy regularly, so | hear from doctors,
nurse practitioners, PAs regularly about al

the formul ary exclusions on these plans. And

|'ve seen it with HV neds, |'ve seen it with
hep C nmeds, |'ve seen extensive prior
aut hori zations, |'ve seen di abetes neds --

50 percent of the time, there's prior

aut hori zations and del ays in care.
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What is NYRx going to be doing to
avoi d that circunstance?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI @ NYRx
covers 100 percent of FDA-approved drugs.
Every drug is covered. W do have a
preferred drug list, so instead of the 12 or
13 managed-care-plan fornularies, we'll have
one. |It's established. |It's authorized by
the Drug Uilization Review Board.

But when we conpare formularies by
t herapeutic class, we see far better coverage
than is currently available in managed care
for those popul ations that use HV,

di abetes -- the MO coverage on their

formul aries, on average, is 64 percent for
di abetes nedications. It is 100 percent on
NYRX.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Thank you.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  Prior
aut hori zati ons approve 50 percent w thout any
prescriber intervention, 100 percent within
24 hours.

ASSEMBLYMAN McDONALD:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senat or May.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you.

Dr. McDonald, | want to ask a couple
of quick | ocal questions and then | have a
bi gger question for you.

So on |l ocal questions, | represent the
Onasco Lake Watershed. | nmet with your
envi ronnental health team about finally
getting an answer for the watershed rules and
regul ations that their association has put
toget her, and they prom sed ne, in about
three nonths, an answer. Can you conmt to
the timeline?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes.

SENATOR MAY: Al right. Okay.
That's all 1 --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  |''m
very famliar with what's going on in Lake
Owasco with the harnful algal bloons. Gary
G nsburg and | talk nore than you possibly
i mgi ne about this. But yeah.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay. Now ny ot her
guestion, l|local question, is about the

Onondaga Nation. | represent the Onondaga
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Nation. The state has binding treaty
obligations to multiple tribal nations and
has failed to fund their local health clinics
at a level that enables themto actually hire
doctors and nurses. So they've had to cl ose
on a weekly basis, and people are going to
energency roons instead of getting primary
care.

So | wonder what the departnent's
commtment is to tribal health. WII you
support adding the funds for the Onondaga,
Tuscarora and Tonawanda clinics in the 30-day
anendnents? And how are we going to neet
those treaty obligations?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
so any health service clinics are very near
and dear to ne. | actually worked in Chinle,
Arizona, for two years plus, in the heart of
the Navajo Nation. So | know the val ue of an
| ndi an health service clinic, not just
nmedi cally but culturally.

SENATOR MAY: Ckay.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: So |

just learned about this last night, by the
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way, what's going on in Onondaga --
SENATOR MAY: Ckay, so maybe we can

talk of fline about it.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  |''m
saddened by this. [|'mdeeply saddened by
this. I'ma friend. | will do what | can to
be hel pful.

SENATCR MAY: Geat. Wonderful. And
then my | ast question, as the | ead sponsor of
Fair Pay for Hone Care, | am deeply concerned
that the noney isn't getting to the providers
so that they can then pay the hone care
workers for the rise in mninumwage. DCH
keeps telling us it's a matter of negotiation
bet ween the MLTC and the providers, but the
provi ders say there is no negotiating, they
just get arate and are told take it or |eave
it.

So is DOH going to do nore oversight
on this? And can we have a tal k about this
offline and really try to solve this probl en?
W put a lot of noney into increasing the
nunber of hone care workers out there, and

it's having the opposite effect.
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MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: W can
certainly talk about this offline, Senator.

| will just say |I think you can see
fromthe budget that we are not thrilled with
heal t h pl ans, including managed |ong term
care plans. And by -- sone of the other
actions that we're taking are intended to
ensure that any noney we provide for hone
care gets to the provider and ultinmately, you
know, the worker.

SENATOR MAY: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes.

Assenbl yman Bl unencr anz.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUMENCRANZ: Thank you so
much.

Comm ssi oner McDonal d, could you
pl ease explain the policy rationale and
i ntended effects of the Governor's proposal
regarding Certificate of Need requirenments to
i nvestor-owned entities, including physician
practices?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
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so the short answer of it is it's trying to
have sone oversi ght where we don't have
oversight. And it's nodel ed after what went
on in Oregon.

You know, it's one of those things
where if Amazon's going to conme in and own
something, we'd like to have a say in what's
goi ng on and just see what's going on.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUMENCRANZ:  Ckay, thank
you.

And t hen, Superintendent Harris, thank
you for comng today. | want to piggyback
of f of what Chair Weprin -- his concerns
surrounding long-termcare. | was wondering,
Wi th your expertise as superintendent
relating to long-termcare, what would --
what | egislative tools and sol utions would
you reconmend for us to inplement to help you
in the process of |owering these increases
that are continuing to plague our elderly and
t hose who have paid for many years?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Wwell, |
t hi nk, not to sound |like a broken record, but

| do think that the health guarantee fund,




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

90

because so many of these books are witten
and the risks are what they are -- and the
state of these carriers around the country is
fairly precarious. So having that consumer
protection in place in New York is going to
be incredibly inportant.

| think going forward, as | nentioned,
|"ve asked ny teamto do a thorough study of
how deci si ons have been made over the past
many decades, where assunptions were
incorrect, why regulators and industry across
the country were slowto fix them And I
expect that that research will produce any
nunber of insights, nmany of which we wl|
i kely need you and your col |l eagues' help
wi th inplenmenting.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUMENCRANZ:  Thank you
very rmuch

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Hel m ng, ranker on Insurance,
for five m nutes.

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you,

Senat or Krueger.
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Thank you for the testinony this
norni ng. (Pause for mc.) |Is that better?

SEVERAL PARTI Cl PANTS:  Yes.

SENATOR HELM NG A coupl e of
guestions. First of all, | wanted to start
with the 340B nmessaging that we heard this
nmorning. | strongly, strongly agree with the
messagi ng -- not the actions, but the
messaging. M rural communities are served
by the FQHCs. Wthout them the delivery of
nmedi cal services, nental health services,
dental services to residents, to the m grant
wor kers, will be severely inpacted. So |
hope that will be sonething that we will be
taking a | ook at.

Real quick, Dr. MDonal d, you had
nmentioned in the budget the various
i nvestnments to energency nedi cal services
statewide, which | truly appreciate,
representing a rural district. [It's
i ncredi ble the need that exists.

And you may be aware -- if not, | want
to make you aware -- that in 2021 the

Legislature realized the significance of the
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probl ens that we are experiencing, and the
Governor signed into law | egislation creating
the Rural Anbul ance Task Force. Again, that
was signed into law at the end of 2021.

In 2022, it is tremendously disturbing
to me that that task force was never
convened. | understand that they have net
once in 2023. The report is due back to the
Legislature at the end of this year, Decenber
of 2023.

| "' m hoping that you will be | ooking
for the information, the recomendations, and
that will help guide sonme of this funding.
So --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER Mc DONALD:
Absol utely. You know, so I'll look for the
report. You know, | just took over as
commi ssi oner January 1st, so |I'mgetting a
list of all the mandated reports, finding out
where they are and getting them back. And |
want them back to you on tinme. That's the
Navy officer in nme that's used to doing that,
quite frankly. So we'll see if we can get

that done for you. Thank you.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

93

SENATOR HELM NG |'d appreciate it.

Superintendent Harris, it's great to
see you again. | wanted to switch gears and
tal k about the pay-and-resol ve proposal
that's in the budget. I1t's ny understanding
that New York's existing external review | aw,
it's been a nodel that's been used by nmany
states across the country, and in fact a
nodel that's been used by the federal
gover nment .

And woul d you agree that the existing
| aw resol ves di sputes between hospitals and
pl ans by having an independent third party
determine, in a short tine frame, whether the
cl ai mwas nedically necessary?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S:  Yes,
think that's an accurate statenent.

SENATOR HELM NG Then |' m wonderi ng
why the departnment feels that this
pay- and-resol ve proposal is necessary in the
context of the budget.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: Wl l, the
pay- and-resol ve proposal is limted to

i nstances of energency adm ssion where
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nmedi cal necessity is not in question. And it
is neant or intended to help increase
efficiency for those paynents in the case of
ener gency admi ssi ons.

SENATOR HELM NG So are you sayi ng
that presently there are sl owdowns with the
paynents, paynments aren't being made in a
ti mely manner under those circunstances?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | think --
we have requirenents for the tinmely paynent
for nmedical necessity currently in law, as
you noted. This proposal is narrow and
limted to energency adm ssions and | think a
good way to test if this will increase
efficiencies even nore.

SENATOR HELM NG Ckay. Anot her
guestion on the proposal. Many of our
upstate hospitals have cooperative plans with
the health plans that either offer nonetary
advances to hospitals to aid with cash fl ow
and/ or accel erat ed- paynent agreenents that
expedi te paynents.

It seens to nme, based on everything

|"ve heard, that these agreenents are working
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quite well. Wuldn't this bill replace those
agreenment s?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: In the
narrow circunstance of the emergency
adm ssion. But | can confirmand cone back
to you.

SENATOR HELM NG Ckay. Thank you. |
guess I'mstill -- it seens to nme that the
current process is working effectively.

| received correspondence indicating
that DFS data fromthe first quarter of 2022
shows that health plans received 104 mllion
clains, and denials related to nedica
necessity accounted for | ess than 1 percent
of all clainms. So again, |'mwondering why
we're trying to fix sonething that it doesn't
seemis broken.

And | only have a coupl e of seconds;
"1l just wap up by saying this. Wen
read the proposal set in the budget,
ultimately 1" mthinking about our
constituents, our consuners. And | see
proposal s like the 340B that are going to

t ake away services to the nost vul nerable
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popul ations. And | see proposals like this
one and sone others that ultimately wll
i ncrease, drive up costs to consuners.

So I'"m | ooking for changes in the
30-day budget anmendnents in the final budget.

Thank you.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Assenbl yman
Gandol f o.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

And t hank you all for being here
t oday.

My question is going to be directed at
the acting comm ssioner. | want to ask about
non- ener gency nedi cal transportation and the
st at ewi de broker RFP.

In the summer of 2022, a
billion-dollar RFP was awarded to Medica
Answering Services. That's a conpany that
has no experience providing transportation in

capitated or at-risk arrangenent. The RFP




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

97

was awarded prior to an actuarial analysis of
the bid cost, neaning the departnent had no

i dea whether the rate submtted by MAS coul d
even be achi eved.

On top of that, the owner of MAS
donat ed hundreds of thousands to the
Governor. And further, he held a fundraiser
for the Governor at his house during the RFP
bl ackout process, which would be a bl at ant
violation of state finance procurenent |aw.
The departnent has now awarded a
billion-dollar nonopoly contract to an
operator that nmay have engaged in pay-to-play
with the Governor's office.

So | have two questions. Did the
Governor or her office interfere with the RFP
process? Do you have any know edge of that?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Thank you
for the question, Assenblynenber. No, they
did not.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDOLFO  And do you have
any concerns about placing every Medicaid
menber in a statew de broker that has no

experience doing this work?
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VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  No, we do
not. There are currently -- we have a
transportati on nmanagenent. There are two or
three transportati on nanagers throughout the
state. MAS and this vendor has significant
experience supporting the Medicaid program
And we're noving to a broker nodel, which is
an innovative nodel that we believe that they
wi |l have no issues inplenenting.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFO  So do you feel
that you should | ook to carve out the
managed- | ong-term care popul ation to ensure
t hat other brokers do remain in the state, to
avoi d a nonopol y?

MEDI CAI D D RECTOR BASSI RI:  Can you
repeat that question, please?

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFQO Shoul d you | ook
to carve out the nmanaged-long-termcare
popul ation to ensure that other brokers do
remain in the state?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: W are
phasing that in. |It's sort of Phase 2 of the
procurenent. So we're first going to start

wi th the non-M.TC popul ation. And then
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Phase 2, which will be the foll ow ng year,
woul d i nclude those counti es.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFO:  Okay. Thank
you very much

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or John Li u.

SENATOR LI U Thank you, Madam Chair.

And thanks to the conm ssioners for
j 0oi ni ng us today.

| only have three mnutes, so I'd like
to ask Superintendent Harris, how are we
doing with the commuter vans? Has any
progress been nade?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
so nmuch, Senator, for that question. As
we' ve tal ked about on many occasions, this
is an inportant transportation issue that's
requi ri ng a whol e-of -gover nnent approach
It's a 30-year problemthat nobody ever noved
to address until |ast year. And thanks to
you and your coll eagues, we have the subsidy
in the budget.

The RFP is live. ESD put that out,

and it islive. And | don't have a status
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update for you on the respondents to the RFP
but | believe it closes next nonth, and |'m
very happy to keep you updat ed.

SENATOR LIU.  Well, you' ve got a very
long litany of acconplishnments that you've
provided us with in your testinony, both oral
and witten. But there's no nmention of this.
So | guess it's too small a matter for DFS to
deal with?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Not at
all. 1It's an incredibly inportant
transportation --

SENATCOR LIU:  DFS, its inattention to
this matter -- because |'m hearing from your
response that nothing' s been done. |It's been
over a year since we put this thing in place,
and you're still telling ne that the RFP is
out .

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: The RFP
was put out by ESD. O course, as the
regul ator of insurance, we cannot solicit
i nsurance to participate in this program So
it was with ESD to put out the RFP, and it is

now out --
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SENATCOR LIU:  Wioever it's with, it's
a DFS issue, isn't it?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: No, it is
an incredibly inmportant transportation issue.
We conme at it through the narrow | ens of
i nsur ance.

And again, it's an issue that's been
in place since the nineties, and nobody did
anyt hing about it until you and your
col | eagues | ooked closely to get it done |ast
year.

SENATOR LIU: Al right. Well, |
understand that. W tal ked about this even
in your confirmation hearing, that you said
you would take the -- nake it a high priority
to fix. Because you were a fixer, you were a
doer. And a year has transpired, and DFS --
this is not a problemthat you created, but
you certainly inherited it. You pledged to
fix it. And DFS continues to be the single
bi ggest driver behind causing failure of the
comut er van industry, which thousands of our
constituents rely upon.

So when are you going to get it done?
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O have you just given up? Because it's not
mentioned in any of your reporting. You cite
a litany of successes that your | eadership
has engendered at DFS, but no -- not even a
mention of the commuter vans.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:  Again, |
believe it's an incredibly inportant
transportation issue. |It's sonething we
address through the --

SENATOR LIU.  Not inportant enough for
you to mention

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: One that
we address through the narrow | ens of
insurance. |It's something that MIA, TLC, ESD
and many ot hers have a part to play in --

SENATCOR LIU: But it is an insurance
issue. It's the insurance issue, plain and
sinple, that's driving these commuter vans
out of business and therefore our
constituents being deprived of badly needed
transportation services.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: And as you
know, sir, the commuter vans generate $1.50

in clains for every dollar of premum That
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subsidy that you all put in place will help
with that trenendously. And we're | ooking
forward to inplenmenting the program

SENATOR LI U Let's get sone progress
done. Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Senator Liu --
|"msorry, your time is up. Just in case you
m ght not have been here in the beginning,
and for everyone el se who got here late, the
commi ssioner is here only to answer health
i nsurance questions today.

Her agency covers an enor nbus nunber
of issues that many of us have concerns
about. And I'msure she will follow up with
you, since you used your time to go down this
I ine of questioning. But again, the deal for
t oday, the topic being health, was the
guestions should be specific to health
i nsurance. Thank you.

SENATOR LI U Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  And Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Assenbl yman
Br onson.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you,
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Madam Chai r.

|"mgoing to try to get two questions
in. So the first is for the Medicaid
director. But if we could keep it at a
m nute and a half, because we're not going to
resolve this issue about 340B.

But 1've got to tell you, when those
protestors wal ked into this roomand they had
the -- fromthe early ages of HV and AIDS --
t-shirts on with the pink triangle, which
have on the back of ny car, every car |'ve
ever owned since the '80s, that said
"Silence=Death" -- | don't care if we're
tal king only about 250,000 peopl e out of
8 mllion. These are 250,000 |ives.

And we know that in H'V you have to
stay on your reginen so that it is a
controllable illness. W also know that if
you're on that reginen that you -- oftentines
you' re undetectable, and that prevents us
fromtransmtting the virus to another
person, helping us with our goal of ending
t he epi dem c.

Yet the 340B carveout schedul e for




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

105

April 1st will elimnate the services
necessary to help people stay on their

regi men, such as nutrition, housing, nental
heal th, other services that they absolutely
need.

How can you guarantee that the CM5 is
going to get the approvals in and that we're
ready to go April 1st and that the funding is
going to be there year in and year out? How
can you guarantee that with this change?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So | can
guarantee that we are ready. W've been
ready for the last three and a half years
operationally in ternms of inplenmenting the
transition. And as -- | don't know who
mentioned it earlier, we did have this
responsibility for 4 million Medicaid nenbers
pre-2012.

That said, the hospital reinvestnent,
the 5 percent, we did a 1 percent trend | ast
year, so we know we're going to get a federa
match on that. W' ve been in active and
ongoi ng conversations with the federal

government on the clinic FQHC i nvest nent.
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They understand the tinmeline. W are working
behi nd the scenes to cut through

adm ni strative tape when we subnmt the state
pl an.

But a state plan anmendnent that buil ds
this reinvestnent into our agreenent with the
federal government is as pernmanent as it gets
in the Medicaid program This is not funding
we intend to take back. W are paying back
every dollar that the health centers have
guoted to give that they need. And we fully
intend to give that to them know ng that
today that funding is being diverted by sone
internediaries in the process.

So | would love to talk about this
wi th you when we have nore tine,

Assenbl ynmenber. But | will personally
guarantee that there will not be a reduction
in services through the health centers,
because there can't be if they're going to
get nore noney than they get today.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Ashby.
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SENATOR ASHBY: Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

Director Bassiri, regarding the eFMAP
funds, do you believe it's the intention of
t he federal government for these funds to be
shared with our | ocal governments? Based off
your previous response --

VEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI Rl : Do
believe that it is the federal government's
intent? | think the federal government's
intent is that the |ocal share be capped at
what it was in 2015 for Medi cai d.

SENATCR ASHBY: So the funds that
we're currently getting, you don't believe
that they should go to our | ocal governnents.

MVEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI Rl :  No,
think they are going to our |ocal
gover nnent s.

| think the argunment is that, you
know, should they go to our |ocal governnents
indefinitely at the sane rate they were, you
know, eight years ago, when the program has
grown significantly and the state has

absorbed that cost. | think that's a
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di fferent discussion.

SENATOR ASHBY: Ckay.

Dr. MDonal d, where will the new
psychi atric beds under Article 28 be | ocated?
And do you have a tinme frane?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah,
we did send a letter with Dr. Sullivan
Ofice of Mental Health. It's a work in
progress right now W're still assessing
what's there. As soon as the tine
{i naudi bl e} business strategy -- | don't want
to quote it wong, but it's obviously
somet hing we know i s inportant.

It's inportant to have nental health
capacity and to have the psychiatric beds
online. There's some obstacles that need to
be overcone that we understand. But we're
wor ki ng as quick we can to nove in that
di rection.

SENATOR ASHBY: Do you have a tine
frame in m nd?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: | don't
have a tine frame in mnd. 1'Il get back to

you with that.
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SENATOR ASHBY: Ckay. | appreciate

And Superintendent Harris, regarding
the site of service review, do you have any
data to support diverting patients away from
anbul atory surgical centers?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: So what
the site of service proposal is intended to
do is (A nake people disclose their
site-of-service policies as well as nake sure
that we're prioritizing patient access,
choice, and continuity of care.

SENATOR ASHBY: It just seens to ne
that, you know, there's no financial
association with this policy. Wuat's the
rationale for it being included in the
budget ?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: That's
feedback |I'm happy to take back to the
executive chanber.

SENATOR ASHBY: |'d appreciate it.
Because | know that ny constituents and |
know t hroughout New York State a | ot of

people rely on these settings for the
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procedures. And, you know, the staffing
shortages that we've had, it's -- they're
essential to have. And so it would be great
to see that data, and | appreciate --
appreci ate your response.

And Director Bassiri, going back to
the eFMAP, it seens as though the counties
really are being excluded. | nmean, you nmay
say that in other ways they are getting the
funding, but | think that we're going to hear
testinmony today -- and with the county
officials that |I've spoken to throughout ny
district, they're asserting that they are
bei ng conpl etely excluded from fundi ng that
t hey have been expecti ng.

What's your response to that?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: | can
certainly understand where the counties are
com ng from

| will say that the Executive and the
departrment is willing to work with the
counties through the budget process to ensure
there's no disruption in their budgets.

SENATOR ASHBY: | appreciate it.
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Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Rosent hal

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Ckay. Thank
you, Chair Paulin, Chair Krueger.

My question is for Medicaid Director
Bassiri .

Last year we collectively took action
to ensure that hone care workers are
conpensat ed appropriately for their work,
ensuring that hone care workers earn $3 above
the regi onal mnimumwage. And this was
bel ow the fair pay proposal the hone care
i ndustry needs, and ones that | and many
others were active in. Home care workers
deserve nore noney. But it was a step in the
right direction.

In this year's Executive Budget,
however, the Governor's m ni mum wage proposa
breaks that prom se by freezing hone care
wages, eventually returning hone care wages

to the mnimumwage. |f enacted, this hone
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care shortage, which we all know about, wl|
wor sen.

So does the Departnent of Health
bel i eve home care workers should be paid the
m ni mum wage?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Thank you
for the question, Assenbl ynenber Rosent hal .

No, we believe they should be paid
hi gher than the m ni num wage, which is the
Governor's position as well, you know, as
evi denced by last year's investnent for
home care worker wages. It was a $3 increase
above the $15 m ni num wage. W' ve done two
of those dollars, and we will be doing the
ot her dollar in October of this com ng year.

It's inportant to renmenber that the --
what we actually put into | aw and what we
established is that the m ni mum wage for
home care workers is higher than the m nimum
wage for non-hone care workers. W did not
put into place a requirenent that everybody
get a $3 or $2 increase.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Wl I, the

budget returns honme care workers to the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

113

m ni mum wage, though, even as data nakes
clear the only solution to the home care
wor ker shortage is raising their wages.

So can you just say yes or no if
home care workers should be paid m ni mum
wage?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  They are
not going to -- that -- you're referring to
the inflation, the m ninumwage inflation

that the Governor put in the budget this

year, and that it excludes home care workers.

And | was saying earlier that that change in
paynent is not going to happen until 2029,
2030.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Can you
expl ai n why?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  Because
the CPI, what we've been seeing based on the

projections that we're |ooking at for CPl as

conpared to the m ni mumwage, will not exceed

$18 until 2029 or 2030.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  Ckay.
nmean, you're certainly aware of the shortage

in hone care workers, in nursing, in the
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whole field -- but in particular, the hone
care workers who hel p people stay at hone.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI
Absol utely. Absolutely. | don't disagree
with that at all.

| would just say, in addition to the
m ni mum wage, we have nade investnents in the
direct care workforce through the American
Rescue Plan Act of an additional $2 billion.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL: Wel |, that
expires. That's a one-tine.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  But those
funds are neant to support the direct care
wor kforce. And we will continue nmaking
investnents in the direct care workforce. W
recogni ze the need of home care workers.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN ROSENTHAL:  Ckay, thank
you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: G eat .

Senator -- I'msorry, | lost track of ny
list. Senator Sanders.

(O f the record.)

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: When sonebody

needs to testify, they go to the far end,
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either chair, and borrow that. Thank you.

SENATOR SANDERS: Thank you to the
chairs. Good to see you all.

Good to see you, Superintendent. |
just want to start by thanking you for the
very good relationship that we have
establ i shed where we're getting a | ot of
stuff done. And although this is not the
time nor the place to speak of it, | |ook
forward to when we have the tine and the
pl ace to speak of the econom c necessities
that we are buil ding together.

So let ne turn to -- you spoke of a
fund, a health fund that only New York
State -- New York State is the only state
that doesn't have this. Wy is that? Wy --
| nmean, how did we end up here?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
Senat or Sanders. | too enjoy our wonderful
wor ki ng rel ationship, and |I thank you for
t hat .

| cannot speak to why it is that
New York is the only state in the nation

wi t hout a health guarantee fund. | can only
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tell you that | believe that it's incredibly
i mportant for consumer protection to put in
pl ace now, especially as we have a |live case
with a long-termcare insurer that we have
noved to put into rehabilitation. And |
think it would be a crying shane if those
600- pl us New Yorkers were left w thout the
benefits they've invested in over many
decades.

So | look forward to working with you
and your coll eagues to hopefully get this
proposal through.

SENATOR SANDERS: As Anerica ages --
and New York is no exception -- this becones
even nore inportant.

Have we figured out how nuch would it
cost to bankroll such a fund?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
sir. It's actually not a cost to taxpayers.
These funds, just like the property and
casualty fund, we have a |ife insurance
fund -- what we've put forward here is
consistent with the National Association of

| nsurance Conmi ssi oners' nodel .
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The funds to support the consuners,

t he policyhol ders of the insurance conpany
t hat becomes insol vent, cone from ot her

i nsurance conpanies. So | will tell you in
the present case that we're dealing with at
DFS, we expect that when those assessnents
are levied on other conmpanies in the

i nsurance space, if there is a health
guarantee fund in place, it would be on
aver age about $10,000 a year per insurer to
make sure that over 600 New Yorkers have the
care that they've invested in over decades.

SENATCR SANDERS: That does sound
doabl e.

Does the -- how does the industry feel
about this, the insurance industry feel about
t his?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | woul d
| et them speak for thenselves. But | would
say that they conply with such requirenents
in these funds in 49 other states, so it
should not be a hard |ift to do so here.

SENATOR SANDERS: Thank you,

Madam Superi nt endent .
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Thank you to the chairs.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes.

Assenbl ynenber Kel |l es.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Wonderful .
Thank you so rmuch all for being here.

So | have a question about the state
gi ving insurance plans funding that was neant
for hone care. So ny assessnent -- |'ll| just
read fromthe notes that | have witten.

Last year's budget included nearly a

billion dollars to fund the $3-an-hour wage
increase -- we've all been tal king about
it -- yet nearly all of the managed care

plans failed to pass this anount, we've
tal ked about this, on to the agencies. And
as a result, home care agencies do not have
sufficient funding to pay worker wages and
neet their own costs.

Forty-three percent of surveyed hone
care agenci es are declining new cases, the
data shows, and 17 percent are seriously

considering closing dowmm. These are the data
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that we're getting.

So there was a Tinmes Union article
that reported private insurance conpani es are
of fering pay bunps as |ow as 20 cents and
50 cents per hour, according to offers from
two i nsurance conpanies. So that's the data
we're getting. It seens a bit contrary.

So | have an anal ysis that shows the
state's 25 managed care plans kept
722 million in profits in 2021. That's
three-quarters of a billion dollars. Should
DCOH continue to give private insurance
conpani es three-quarters of a billion dollars
meant for home care workers?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  Thank you
for the question, Assenbl ynenber.

| don't know what you're referring to
with the 700 mllion in profits. But what
we -- we do have a nedical loss ratio in
pl ace; that medical loss ratio is 86 percent,
nmeani ng that the health plans have to spend
86 percent of their prem um on nedical
servi ces, which includes personal care hours

and wages. W are increasing that percentage
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to 89 this year.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: We do have that
percentage. But the audits were not done for
a very long tine. Last year was the first
tinme an audit was done. And there was a
cl awback of over $200 mllion, fromny
under st andi ng.

Is that audit going to continue every
year from now on?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
what you may be referring to is a COVID
risk -- during the 2020-'21 period we had a
COVID risk corridor, where we took noney back
fromthe health plans. And that is what |
believe you're referring to.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: No, I'm
referring to --

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  |' m happy
to take this offline.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: -- that they
weren't actually passing on the percentage
that they were supposed to be passing on. So
we were supposed to be auditing them every

year. And we did an audit, as far as | know,
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| ast year.

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W do
audit their cost reports every year. W
audit their financials every year.

What | would say is the only way it's
possi bl e that a worker did not get an
increase or got a 20 cent increase is if they
were al ready making $17 or $18 an hour. So
there were sonme workers who were getting | ess
than that, they were getting 15. They should
be getting the full 2-plus dollars per hour.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: So that will be
part of your audit, then, to nake sure
they're getting the $3 when you do the
addi ti onal dollar.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: W are
going to be doing nore policing with the
O fice of the Medicaid Inspector CGeneral to
ensure that any additional dollars get to the
wor ker .

But | just want to reiterate, though
t hat --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: | just wanted
to add to what --
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MEDI CAI D D RECTOR BASSIRI:  -- we
rai sed the m ni mumwage. W raised the
m ni mum wage.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Right. But
that it will be held to m ninumwage by 2029.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN KELLES: Just addi ng ny
voi ce to everyone else's. Thank you

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Rhoads.

SENATOR RHOADS: Thank you,
Chai r woman.

Wth only three mnutes, | had no
intention of making this comrent. But | just
wanted to say, to Director Bassiri, taking
away 20 percent fromthe counties is going to
lead directly to property tax increases.
There's no other way around it. You |ook at
Nassau County, for exanple, every single
dol I ar that Nassau County collects in
property taxes goes to fund Medicare -- goes
to fund Medicaid. Every dollar. And that's
not the only county.

And for the Governor to cone in and
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express, through you, her position that she
gets to spend not only the state's federal
COVI D noney but gets to spend the counties'
federal COVI D noney, is disgraceful

So | wish you woul d consi der that,
because it will lead directly to property tax
i ncreases.

Wth respect to Superintendent Harris,
just on pay and pursue -- and again, we're
limted by time. | fail to understand -- and
Senator Helmng did a wonderful job
guestioning in limted tine. But |I fail to
understand how a process that takes three
nmonths to resolve will be inproved by
replacing it with a process that takes,
according to your own tineline, 10 to
14 nont hs.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Sir, I'm
not --

SENATCR RHOADS: How does that -- how
does that aid consuners in any way?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  You're
referring to the appeals process, is that --

SENATOR RHOADS:  Yes.
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DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: What | can
tell you is that the pay-and-resol ve proposal
that the Governor's put forward is limted to
t hese energency admi ssions, where nedical
necessity is not in question and therefore we
don't expect there to be appeal s because the
nmedi cal necessity question is effectively
answered by virtue of the fact that these are
ener gency admni ssi ons.

SENATCR RHOADS: But whether it's an
energency adm ssion or a regular adm ssion,
why is a 10-to-14-nmonth tine frame to get a
resolution to whether it was nedically
necessary nore advant ageous than a process
that takes 90 days?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: It would
not be.

SENATOR RHOADS: So why are we doing
t his?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: |' m happy
to take that feedback back. But as | noted,
this is just a narrow -- narrow proposa
limted to energency adm ssions.

SENATOR RHOADS: So it's a bad idea
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that would affect a limted nunber? |s that
what we're sayi ng?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: |' m happy
to take your feedback back, Senator.

SENATOR RHOADS: And just one ot her
gui ck questi on.

Wth respect to the health insurance
guarantee fund, your departnent already has
review power for life insurers that issue
heal t h i nsurance conpani es under Article 77.
Section 307 of the Insurance Law requires all
insurers to file annual statenments with DFS
Section 309 of the Insurance Law permts DFS
to make an examination into the affairs of
any insurer.

Section 1322 of the Insurance Law
requires all health insurers to submt a
ri sk-based capital RBC report, right? So you
get to reviewtheir fornulas. Section 4310
of the Insurance Law prescribes m ni num
statutory reserve fund requirenents.

Section 308 of the Insurance Law confers
carte blanche power to the superintendent to

conduct an inquiry into any transaction.
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Wiy is it now, given all the
regul atory authority you have, that now we
need to have a heal th guarantee insurance
fund?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:  Soneti nmes
our hand is forced by other states, as in the
current case.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Al ex Bor es.

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: Thank you.

A few weeks ago Comm ssi oner Bray
joined us fromDHS and said that preventing
future pandem cs was one of the focuses of
DHS, and nost of the investnent in the budget
was actually through the Heal th Depart nment
and related fields.

Wuld just love if you could talk a
little bit about the investnent being nade to
prevent future pandem cs and to manage ri sks
in the future.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
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so what we're working on right nowis

staffing up our epidem ol ogy departnent. one

of the things that, you know, we have to | ook

at when you | ook at pandem cs, nost |ikely
one's going to be an infectious disease
pandem c. So our epidem ol ogy departnent is
strong, but it needed to be stronger. So
we're increasing staffing in that area.

Anot her division we're creating in
2023 -- excuse nme, in the '24 budget, is a
vaccine division. Really trying to get sone
nore just work in the vacci ne space. The
vacci ne space has changed so much. And it's
j ust amazi ng how much di sinformation and
m sinformation is out there. One of the
things we've really seen is just purposeful
m si nformati on.

Whi ch we just need a stronger skill
set at the departnment to understand why it's
happeni ng, where it's happening, and what is
the sensible way to address it. Because,
quite frankly, |I've been a pediatrician well
over 30 years. The --

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: |f you don't m nd,
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could I just interrupt?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: o
ahead.

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: |s that what the
Di vi sion of Vaccine Excellence is going to
do.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes.
It's -- the Division of Vaccine Excellence is
going to help us inprove our vaccine rates
for all vaccines in our state. But quite
frankly, also, we're going to address, you
know, quite frankly, pandem c vaccines as
wel | .

But, you know -- and | just want to
make this point. |'ve been a pediatrician
wel | over 30 years. W have never had safer
vacci nes, yet |'ve never had a nore
challenging tine in the exam room convi nci ng
parents to take these extrenely safe, |ovely
vacci nes.

So it's one of those things where we
just need to find better tools to talk to our
public about it. Because as a physician

care very deeply about the public, but I
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don't want to be twisting arms. Wat |'ve
been doing is saying, Look, |I've got

sonmet hing great for you, | want you to want
it.

One of the things | noticed, by the
way, when | worked on the Navaj o reservation,
it was never an issue --

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: You mind if |
just -- | have a mnute left. | want to make
sure to get one other question in.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: But | appreciate
t he passion around this quite a bit.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Just to
| et you know I'mthere for you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: Thank you.

You nentioned sort of interstate
conpacts earlier around nursing and around
doctors. | want to talk about a different
one, which is around data sharing around
nor ovi r us.

Fourteen states currently opt in to
noni tor norovirus and share data with the

CDC. New York is not one of them despite
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recent reports that New York City m ght be
becom ng a hotbed for it. Wuld just |ove
your thoughts about that sort of data sharing
with the feds and how we can hel p nonitor for
potential viruses and pandem cs.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes.
So norovirus, just so people know, is
somet hing that causes the stomach flu. |If
you' ve had vomting, diarrhea recently, you
can thank norovirus for that. It's
m serable. |It's spread by touch. Hand
sanitizer and soap and water work well.

| was not aware that we're not part of
a data-sharing agreenent with other states.
My general approach is to share data where
possi bl e, especially with the federals. But
I'"d like to do it in a way that nakes sense.
So let ne see what's possible. [In other
words, |I'Il get into the issue, look at it,
and get back to you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BORES: Wonderful . Thank
you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Sure.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Senat or Webb.

SENATOR V\EBB: Good nor ni ng.

So | have a few questions, so -- to
Conmi ssi oner McDonal d.

The Governor's Executive Budget
i ncl udes an increase to reproductive and
sexual healthcare services. M question is,
does this increase include abortion care,
bot h procedural and nedication? And if it
does not include all abortion care, please
expl ai n why.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: Wl |,
let me just say, really quick, yes, it does
increase -- particularly for surgical
abortions, there's a 30 percent increase.
But Director Bassiri, you m ght have
additional detail.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI R
Conmi ssi oner McDonald is correct, there's a
30 percent increase proposed for surgical
abortion procedures. W are also going to
require that health plans reinburse no |ess
than that higher rate and i ssue sone new

standards for the providers.
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It does not include increases for the
nmedi cati on abortion treatnent nedications.
The reason is because we have current state
| aw that requires us to reinburse those
nmedi cations at acquisition cost. It will be
avai l abl e for anyone in the state that needs
them But to bundle it with the other
servi ces was not necessary because we
currently have them avail abl e as separate
bill abl e services.

SENATOR VWEBB: | will definitely be
talking with you further about that, because
it should be conbi ned.

And so ny next question goes to
non- energency Medicaid transportation. In ny
district we have a lot of issues as it
relates to having access to transportation.
And so |I'mconcerned that in the Governor's
budget it does not include support for
non- ener gency Medi caid transportation.

So ny question is, what is the
department doing to ensure that providers
continue to serve in transportation deserts?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W' ve done
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a nunber of things throughout the year, with
rising inflation and cost of |abor, to offer
sonme relief to NEMI transportation providers.
But we were very focused in this
year's budget on the energency transportation
and sonme of the issues we were seeing there.
But we have a range of different
adm ni strative things we've done to support
NEMI providers, fromgas relief to additional
funding for | abor, things of that nature.
Be happy to follow up after.
SENATOR WEBB: Yes, because one of the
things that was raised to ne is that it
was -- the main issue is the reinbursenent
rates with this particular service, and it's
having a serious inpact on Medicaid
reci pients who actually rely on this service.
So with the tine | have left -- and
"1l follow up with Superintendent Harris.
One of the things that gets a | ot of
attention is our efforts in the state to
reduce our carbon footprint and al so engage
in other practices that help us get clean

air. One of the questions | have rel ates
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to -- there's an issue with your office, and
|"mtrying to understand why your office is
preventing what's called liability risk --
excuse nme, risk retention groups from being
able to be licensed to do business in our
state. And New York is the only state in the
country that's creating this chall enge.

So |l would like to talk with you
of fl i ne about that.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S:  Happy to
do so.

SENATOR WEBB: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes,

Assenbl ynenber Sol ages.

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN SOLAGES: Thank you,
conmi ssi oners.

You know, as you know, New York
State's safety-net hospitals serve a | arge
popul ati on, people of col or, underserved,
underi nsured, who otherw se m ght not seek
nmedi cal attention. And we see that this

Executive Budget |eaves a | ot unsaid.
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So what specific initiatives and
strategies is the departnment inplenenting to
support and strengthen safety-net hospitals
in New York State?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  So, you
know, we did just release quite a bit of
noney through Statewide Il that included
safety-net hospitals, and | believe the
number was $341 million included in that.
There is a lot nore noney in Statew de |IV.
It's a total of 1.6 billion. But safety-net
hospitals -- you know, we have a process for
that that's objective and fair. You know,
and we have 1 billion planned in this budget
for Statewide V as well

You know, | think safety-net hospitals
need help too with labor, quite frankly.
Travel nurses is sonething that we need to --
you know, in the budget is just asking for
transparency fromtravel nurse conpani es.

You know, one of the things | hear from
hospitals is the need to understand their
costs, be able to predict their costs. And

| abor costs is a big issue for themas well.
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| do think interstate |icensure
conpacts will help every hospital in the
state, including safety-nets, quite frankly.
You know, this is something that -- 37 states
have done the nursing conpact, 37 states have
done the physician conpact. | think it's
long since tinme for New York to do this.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: GCkay. | know
anot her fundanental problemdriving the
crisis is the current Medicaid coverage gap.
And so right now Medicaid only covers
65 percent of the cost of services. How do
you expect hospitals to, you know, survive
under this? And do you believe that the
Medi cai d rei mbursenent rate should be at
| east 10 percent?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So, happy
to take that question, Assenblynmenber.

Medi cai d rei nbursenment on the
i npatient side, that -- | think you're
referring to fee for service, right?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES:  Yes.

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So for the

safety net hospitals, and especially in the
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| ast couple of years, we've actually taken a
different strategy, working with the federal
government to do sonething called a directed
paynent, which tells the managed care pl ans
they have to pay that hospital a specific
rei nbursenent rate. Those rates are
significantly higher.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: And then
we're -- we're just having a |arger
conversation about housing. The proposal,
you know -- when we're tal king about, you
know, | ead and renoving |l ead and | ead
poi soning in our properties, the current
proposal doesn't neet the 2019 requirenents
to protect children under the age of 6.

So what nore can the state do to
ensure that we're conplying with this 2019
| aw?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: So |
actually think the | ead proposal in this
budget is historic. W're talking about
24 municipalities in the state's
hi ghest-risk -- 80 percent of our cases.

One of the things |I | ove about this,
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we're actually checking the property instead
of the child. What we've been doing for
decades, many other states as well, is to
wait for the child s elevated | ead | evel and
then go | ook at the property. It's high tine
we stopped using children to indicate there's
a problem So | think this is a very
i mportant thing for New York State.

The bipartisan infrastructure bill,
t hough, for replacing |ead service lines,
that's real. That's $150 mllion every year
for five years.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SOLAGES: So when do we
get --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: |
t hi nk, you know, when we get to the bottom of
it, we mght be able to --

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SOLAGES: Wen do we get
to inplenenting -- we'll talk offline. But I
appreciate it. Thank you.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  1'd
|l ove to. Yeah, | want to help. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Senat or

Borrell o.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

139

SENATOR BORRELLO  Yes, thank you.

For the Medicaid director. Sir, you
had nmentioned that obviously the state needs
to catch up on the funds because it capped
the funds at the county level. Can you tel
me, with one in three New Yorkers on
Medi cai d, who sets the guidelines and the
paranmeters for who is eligible to get
Medicaid? Is it the state or the county
gover nnment s?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: It begins
with the federal governnment, then it's the
st at e.

SENATCOR BORRELLO:  So the state and
the federal but not the county.

So with that being said, you know,
with -- what other states besides New York
still saddl e county governnents, |oca
governments with a | ocal share of Medicai d?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | don't
have that offhand. There are a handful, and
different states structure their county
rel ationships differently. But we can get

back to you with that information
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SENATOR BORRELLO  Well, | spent
10 years in county government, and | believe
New York is one of the | ast ones.

But -- so nmy question is, if New York
State controls who's eligible and what
benefits they receive -- New York State's the
nost generous, | believe, of all the states,
as far as those Medicaid benefits -- then how
isit we justify taking federal noney away
fromcounties to fill that gap?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | don't
necessarily think that's the way we are
justifying it.

There are things the state has done to
expand Medi cai d coverage and benefits and
services. W' ve absorbed all of that cost.
Al of the growmh since 2015 has been
absorbed by the state.

SENATCOR BORRELLO: But the state al so
set those paraneters.

Does any other state have one in three
of their residents on Medicaid, any other
state besides New York?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
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California may.

But in any event, what | was al so
going to say is since the PHE in March 2020,
the counties really have not had any
responsibility with respect to Medicaid
eligibility or adm nistration. So for the
| ast three years they have not had to
change -- or dedicate any resources towards
Medi caid adm ni stration. They've actually
repur posed those staff to deal with other
county needs while the state has rei nbursed
their Medicaid admn at the current rate that
we pay.

During that time we've taken over a
ot more of the Medicaid adm nistration than
had been previously in place, and | think
t hose are inportant considerations.

SENATOR BORRELLO Wl |, yeah, but yet
it's still the largest line itemfor every
county governnent.

And you say that they've not taken
over responsibility. They also have no say.

Wul d you be in favor of county

governments being able to determ ne, each
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i ndi vi dual county, what Medicaid benefits
they give to the residents that ask for that?
| nmean, | think that would be a great
solution, wouldn't you think? 1If the
counties want to --

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  They do
have a role in sonme of the |long-termcare
determ nations and eligibility. Counties
enpl oy nurses that do the assessnents and --

SENATOR BORRELLO  Well, it's very
limted.

| "' m asking you a very specific
guestion: Wuld you be in favor of having
county governnents determ ne which Medicaid
programnms they offer in their counties, as a
way to stemthe cost of Medicaid?

MVEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI Rl :  No,
woul d not.

SENATOR BORRELLO  Ckay. So then why
are we taking noney away fromthe federal
government that the federal governnent
i ntended for counties when clearly New York
State governnment is conpletely in control of

what this program | ooks |ike and who's
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eligible for it.

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: Al |
woul d say is that there's nultiple funding
streans, including multiple federal funding
streans. Not all of those streans are being
taken fromthe counties. There are funding
streans that we've received fromthe federa
government that will continue to be paid to
t he counti es.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Thank you bot h.
Thank you.

SENATOR BORRELLO  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Lunsf ord.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you
very much

This first question is probably best
suited to the Medicaid director, but feel
free to hop in if you have an opi nion.

Seventy percent of our nursing hone
beds are covered by Medicaid, and right now
our nursing hones are running roughly a 165
to over $200 a day gap in those reinmbursenent

rates. |In Monroe County al one, in that
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regi on, we have about a thousand beds offline
right now There's a 5 percent Medicaid rate
i ncrease recommended in the Executive Budget.

Do you think that's a sufficient
anount of noney to help close that gap and
bring those beds back online?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
the investnent is a step in the right
direction. |It's the |argest investnment we've
made for nursing homes since | can renenber,
| think --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD: Fifteen
years.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: -- 15,

20 years.

| will also say we' ve done ot her
things to support nursing hone workforce. W
have a heal th workforce bonus program W' ve
spent 1.5 billion; | think 300 mllion has
gone directly to nursing honmes to support
staff. W have 1.5 billion allocated in our
1115 wai ver for financially distressed
hospi tal s and nursi ng hones.

There is a strong commtnent fromthe
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state and the Governor to support nursing
homes through the transition.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  What |'m
hearing fromour providers is that 5 percent
is not only insufficient to bring those beds
back online but to even mai ntain our nursing
hones at their current rates.

This is a critical time where some of
my nursing homes are saying that they're not
going to be able to survive the year. W've
al ready lost a long-tinme high-perform ng
not-for-profit nursing home because they
couldn't neet these needs. So |I'mjust going
to suggest that 5 percent is insufficient.

But I1'd like to switch, while | have a
mnute and a half, to the acting
commi ssioner. Early Intervention services
right now are suffering a trenendous wait
time. We have a provider shortage. W've
had kids in Mnroe County age out of
Early Intervention services while waiting to
recei ve them

| don't see an increase in the rate in

t he budget. What are you suggesting we do to
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address this crisis?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: Wl |,
Early Intervention's very inportant. | can
tell you it's inportant for kids birth to 3,
and it's a safety net for a lot of kids. You
know, | can tell you as a pediatrician |'ve
seen countl ess children just be hel ped by
Early Intervention. | think it's just a
wonderful thing to see how kids get back on
t he path.

So, you know, |'m concerned about the
del ays we have in New York State. You know,
there was a rate increase in '19 for
occupational therapists, speech therapists
and physical therapists. There was the
1 percent increase |ast year. You know, we
have to | ook at what our options are, quite
frankly.

| mean, 1'd |ove to have nore
conversation with you about that, because you
m ght be able to tell I'"ma big fan of
Early Intervention, right? As a
pediatrician, | see it and | see how it

wor ks.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  It's
certainly a cost-saver in the long-term

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: |t
really is.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  So | woul d
support | ooking at maybe a rate increase to
hel p address that. Right now too many of our
kids are receiving some of these services,
| i ke speech and PT and OT through
tel enedicine, which is really not an adequate
repl acenent when you are dealing with those
ki nds of issues.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
I"'ma big fan of tel enedicine, but for kids
in particular, that space, it's hard. And, |
nmean, there's the county share with
Early Intervention -- it's conplicat ed.

But | want to keep nore conversation
going on this, please.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you.
appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Senat or Thonas.

SENATOR THOMVAS: Hi. Thanks for being

here to testify. |'ve got three questions,
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and the first is for the superintendent.

You know, Superintendent Harris, you
and | have been working hand in hand on a
nunmber of issues consuner-related. |'ve
heard fromproviders in nmy district that DFS
has been slow to respond to conplaints that
providers are filing about insurance
compani es.

What can the Legislature do to help
DFS respond to requests sooner?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
so nuch for that question, Senator.

Earlier | noted that in 2022, DFS
returned $151 million directly to New Yorkers
in the formof restitution. 1t was double
the prior year, something |I'mvery proud of.

| have some nunbers right here. Last
year we had about 56,000 conplaints and
external appeals. W currently have 42 staff
that staff our Consuner Assistance Unit. So
| think the main thing that the Legislature
could do to assist us is to help us staff up
and nmake sure that we have the roomin our

FTE and budget allocations to do that.
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Just because | like math so nuch, if
you take that nunber, 42, and divide it by
the 151 million, and you assume on average
t hose Consuner Assistance Unit workers are
maki ng $100, 000 for a round nunber, they are
returning $3.6 mllion to New Yorkers for a
$100, 000 i nvestnent. That is assessed on our
regul ated entities and is not a cost to
t axpayers.

SENATOR THOVAS: So nore noney for --

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S:  Mbdre
noney, nore FTEs, nore staff, yes.

SENATOR THOMAS: All right. M second
guestion here is another conpl ai nt about
i nsurance conpani es. Hospitals are
conpl ai ni ng that insurance conpani es keep
denying clains without human review. You
have these algorithnms and Al that, you know,
j ust keep denying clains, and hospitals are
hit with the bill.

What can the Legislature do to stop
this? Wat are the agencies doing as well?

That's for everyone.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: |' m happy
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to jump in.

W were chatting, actually, earlier
about the | ow nunber of incorrect denials and
the efficacy of the appeals process. | think
it's sonething that the team at DFS does very
well. But again, it's an issue where nore
staff could help the tineline and the
ef fi cacy of the reviews.

| do think the majority of denials
don't cone from commercial plans, however, so
| woul d defer to ny coll eagues.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: Wl |, what
| would say to that, what we're doing --
because we have seen an i ncreasi ng nunber of
deni al s specifically for the safety-net
hospitals fromthe insurers.

So with some of our funding strategies
for distressed hospitals, | referred to a
directed paynent tenplate earlier. W're
actual ly doi ng sonmething even further than
that. 1It's called separate paynment terns,
whi ch essentially only pays the insurers what
they pay the hospitals in terns of the

premum So it really elimnates the
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incentive for a denial and ensures that the
hospital is being paid appropriately.

SENATOR THOMAS: All right. | have
one | ast question, but | have three seconds
left. It's about Nassau University Medi cal
Center. But | guess | will talk to
Dr. McDonald | ater on about that.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Next is Assenbl ynmenber Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you so rmuch. | have a very sinple question
for the interimconm ssioner.

Dr. MDonal d, does this adm nistration
care about the health of imm grant
New Yor ker s?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  |''m
sorry, | didn't hear the question.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:  Does
t he adm ni stration care about the health of
i mm grant New Yor kers?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yes,
very much so. You know, it's a very

i mportant issue, quite frankly. | nean, yes,
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heal thcare is a basic human right, you know,
and | don't think I'mcovering any news when
| " msaying that here. You know, the
undocunented issue in particular, it's
somet hi ng we' ve been | ooking at, either as a
fair amount of financial uncertainty that we
just have to keep | ooking at.

| know -- we tal ked about this quite a
bit. Let me just ask Medicaid Director
Bassiri to chime in alittle bit too --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Yes.
Yes, because | know where you're -- you know
where I'mgoing with this. | want to speak
specifically about the opportunity for
New York State to submt a federal waiver,
called a 1332 waiver -- yes, thank you -- to
ensure and expand coverage for undocunented
comunities through the Essential Plan.

So maybe the -- M. Bassiri --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Yes, thank
you for the question.

And we have | ooked at this and
expl ored the opportunity. And, you know,

currently we believe that there's just too




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

153

much uncertainty to go forward with the

expansi on of undocunmented in -- through that
waiver. And I'll give you some reasons why.
Wen we -- as we've gone through the

process and | ooked nore at it, we cannot
utilize the Essential Plan trust fund as a
source of revenue.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS: Wy
not ?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  Because
it's tied to 1331 federal |aw, which
authorizes the Basic Health Program This is
a programoutside of 1331. It's going to
1332. And so you can't use the funds that
are dedicated for 1331 on that popul ation,
which is ineligible for that product.

That said --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQIAS:  Is it
because of federal policy? Wy is that?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: It is a
federal policy. They are willing to provide
what we are calling pass-through funds or the
annual surplus we generate fromthe

Essential Plan and the people covered in it.
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It's roughly, | think -- it's around
$2 billion a year. 1t's unclear in termnms of
our enrollnment estimates that we will be able

to support the nunber of potential enrollees
that woul d take up the program --

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS: W
antici pate 245,000 people that woul d benefit
fromthis.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  And |
think that is beyond the allotnent we woul d
have through the pass-through fundi ng under
this opportunity.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS: Wy
m ght we not try and submt the waiver?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  |' m happy
to take that back. And | conplete -- |
appreci ate your question and think everyone
at this table is supportive of expandi ng
coverage for all popul ations.

ASSEMBL YWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:

There's -- we're currently in a conment
period to do so, and we have gone partially
t hrough that 30 days; | think there's been

over 300 comments, many in support of
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extendi ng that for our undocunented conmunity
nmenbers.

So | would | ove to have you on record
sayi ng that you woul d assess those coments
and | ook at amendi ng that waiver.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI @ W
absolutely will assess those comments and
take the feedback as required under the
rul es.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  Thank
you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Heal t h Chair Gustavo R vera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Batting cl eanup.
We're going to pick up right there. Al
right. Let's actually keep goi ng down that
rabbit hol e, folks.

Col orado and Washington did this.

W' re saying we can't. Wy not, again?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  Good to
see you, Senator. SO --

(Laughter.)

SENATOR RI VERA: (Good to see you too,
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buddy.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Yeah.
Col orado and Washi ngton did sonmething |ike
this. So Col orado and Washi ngton were abl e
to get approval to offer subsidized
i ndi vi dual heal th insurance to undocunented
menbers. It is not nearly what | think is
bei ng proposed in --

SENATCR RI VERA: Coul d we use an
Essential Pl an | ook-alike?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: It could
be possi bl e.

| just want you to understand that the
Col orado and Washi ngton nodel s are very
di fferent than what has been proposed by the
Legislature in the past and what we were --
what the Governor was seeking to partner with
the federal government on, in ternms of
conpr ehensi ve coverage and no cost to the
consumer .

SENATOR RI VERA: CGotcha, okay.

Last year we were able to get coverage
for 65 and -- for 65-plus, as well as folks

who are birthing people for up to a year.
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And you're delaying it. So it kind of goes
to the question that the Assenbl ynmenber asked
you right off the bat. |Is that a
denonstration of your care for inmmgrant
peopl e?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: | can say
unequi vocal ly that we are not wal ki ng away
from what we agreed upon | ast year. W are
100 percent comritted to covering the 65-plus
popul ation, as is the Governor.

We i nplenented a series of changes
| ast year, coverage expansi on changes. Many
of themwere set to take effect tonorrow.
Expandi ng i nconme eligibility for adults,
elimnating Child Health Plus prem um - -
there's several changes we made. Many of
t hose changes have to be nade to three
eligibility systems, including the ones that
the |l ocal districts use.

As we went through this process, we
realized we would be inposing a pretty
significant burden on the counties by having
this population enroll through the | ocal

districts, and we figured out a better way to
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do it --

better for the consuner,

better for

the state --

by maki ng sonme system changes to

have them enroll through the New York State

of Health.

SENATOR RI VERA: CGotcha, okay.

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W need
time to nake those changes.

SENATOR RIVERA: |'ve got to -- since
| have limted tine. So we'll definitely

foll ow up on that issue.

But one qui ck thing.

How much do we

spend on energency Medicaid for this

popul ation right now, do you know?
MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI R

entire popul ation?

For the

SENATOR RI VERA:

For the popul ation

that will be covered by the expansion. It's

roughly 500 mllion.

So if we're talking

about | ess than 500 mllion,

woul d be a good investnent.

it probably

Just sayi ng.

Moving on, let's talk about 340B for a

little bit. First of all, just -- and | know

you know this already -- 5136. Look at the

bill, 5136.
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Now, there's nmany of ny coll eagues
t hat have spoken about this. Assenbl ynenber
Bronson in particular underlined the fact
t hat whet her we're tal ki ng about 250, 000
lives, as was nentioned earlier, as though it
was a minor nunber -- and that's not your
nunber, | gotcha. But it was kind of
mentioned in that spirit. And I'mglad that
we ki nd of pooh-poohed that. Not only do we
certainly care about those 250,000 peopl e,
but al so the broader issue is the -- that
t hese savings actually allow these
institutions to continue to exist and provide
services for everybody, not just for the
fol ks who benefit fromthe program So it's
alittle bit kind of |ike, you know -- and
again, it wasn't you, but | just wanted to
get that for the record.

A question. You're tal king about the
per mmnence of how you're going to nake these
fol ks whole, right? Let's talk first about
t he amobunt that you're suggesting would go in
this budget. How did you cone up with that

anount ? Coul d you show us the mat h?
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MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: W can
absol utely show you the math for each --

SENATOR RI VERA:  You're sure you can.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI:  -- every
si ngl e provider.

SENATCR RI VERA:  You're on the record,
bro. You'll show nme the math?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  I'Il show
you the nunmbers. Love to show you the
nunbers.

SENATOR RI VERA: Pl ease. Because you
all know -- not you, but kind of -- I've been
around here for | ong enough. And the
adm ni stration, and Ms. Bal dwi n knows, they
rarely show us the math. Everybody knows,
you're going to show us the math. So nunber
one.

Nunber two. As far as the permanence
of this, you're talking about a state plan
anmendnent, right? Wuld you agree that
statute woul d be nore pernmanent than a state
pl an amendnent ?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think

they're, in this context, probably
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equi val ent. But sure, yeah, statute is
probably nore permanent.

SENATOR RI VERA: Cool. That's why
some of us are seeking sonething like --
that's statutory.

But anyway -- and you have thought
about the operational challenges that SNPs
m ght actually have fromthis?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W have.
W're in conversations with the SNPs. W're
going to take sone of their requests to the
federal governnment. At the end of the day,
we' re not taking any savings fromthe SNPs in
terms of the adm nistrative savings that
we'll get fromall the other health plans.
And to the extent there is a shortfall, we
have the funding to resolve it. It's very
m nor .

SENATOR RIVERA: |'msure we're going
to revisit that because we're not too sure
about that either.

But noving on, let's talk about M.TCs.

Now, first of all, there's a whole

bunch of reports that you fol ks have owed us
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for a while. One of themis this one, that
was supposed to be done Cctober 31, 2022.
You mght -- are you going to tell ne that
it'"s in nmy email right now?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  The
interimreport is in your email right now

SENATOR RI VERA:  Ahhh, | knew it.
Because you all did sone |ast night when you
dropped like five or six reports that were
due |i ke nmonths ago and we got them {snapping
fingers} last night.

(Laughter.)

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  \What |
would say is --

SENATCR RI VERA:  Photo fi nish.

So this one -- so thereis a -- so
there is a report, there is one in ny enail
ri ght now?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  There is
an interimreport with the Legislature, yes.

SENATOR RI VERA: Beautiful. GCkay. So
|"mgoing to be looking at that. It would
have been great to look at it before, maybe

li ke between Cctober 31st and now, but
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regar dl ess.

So there is -- there's a |lot of
concerns that we have about network adequacy.
Right? And that's something al so that
crosses over with DFS. And so what steps are
you folks -- are you taking to ensure network
adequacy? And just give ne sonething |ike --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So we are
very interested in updating our network
adequacy standards. W have been in
di scussions with the federal governnment and
other states to see what's out there. W
know that there will be new access standards
put in place by CM5 -- tine standards, making
sure people can get appointnents in a tinely
basis, proximty, telehealth, et cetera.

W want to use the next year to do a
gquality incentive to get sone baseline
i nformation, because our current standards do
not allow us to quantify how plans are
neeti ng those standards in an enpirical,
defined way. And so CM5 is going to conme out
with the rules. W want to do a quality

i ncentive next year and then nake them
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permanent in the follow ng year.

SENATOR RI VERA: So at sone point we

will certainly, in a nontined conversati on,
we'l | have deep conversations about this.
Because | have -- as you know, health

plans -- (loudly) ny favorite. And issues of
net wor k adequacy really concern nme, and the
way that they get around what is supposed to
be a standard that al ready exists and how
they are enforced by the Departnment of Health
and DFS, certainly a concern about that.

Movi ng on, workforce. Now, there's --
you tal ked about some of the stuff that
you' ve -- some of the challenges that you're
having within the Health Departnent. W've
tal ked about that before. But speaki ng about
things that you -- that we created that --
you know, like reports that are supposed to
come to us that don't. Last year we had the
O fice of Healthcare Wrkforce Innovation.
We put 20 nore million on it this year.
That' s phenonenal .

What is it actually doing?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: Wl |,
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it hasn't started yet. It's just starting
out. We're just hiring people for it now.
The director who's just being hired is
on- boarded next nonth. So it's just
starting.

SENATCR RI VERA: Gotcha. So even
t hough we created it |ast year --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  |''m
just telling you what | know. W're
on- boardi ng a director next nonth.

SENATCR RI VERA:  Hoo hoo hoo hoo.
Moving on. Let's do -- and hospital funding.
There's a couple of questions certainly I
woul d -- what Senator Myrie asked about
related to safety-net institutions, obviously
| care deeply about safety net institutions.
Let ne ask a technical question.

It's nmy understanding that that DPT,
di rect paynent tenplate program is stil
pendi ng CVS approval. Could you tell us the
status of that, please?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W have
t hose approved. W recently got those

approved for '22 and ' 23.
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SENATOR RI VERA: Li ke today too?
MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  No, it

SENATOR RIVERA: Is that also in ny
emai | ?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | don't
have the exact date, but it was about
m d- January.

SENATOR RI VERA: (Ckay. Al right.
Now, there was also -- and as far as reports,
getting them-- like |ast night we got the
anbul ette rate report. That was |ast night.
Thank you so much for that.

MEDI CAID D RECTOR BASSIRI: It was a
busy ni ght.

(Laughter.)

SENATOR RI VERA: There's a question --
Senat or May and a coupl e of folks asked this
guestion related to honme care and related to
the $3. Now, there is definitely a |lot of --
it just seens that you fol ks are kind of --
kind of playing with term nol ogy here.

First of all, there are serious

concerns -- and | know you' ve heard them
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because you've heard them from ne, you've
heard them from provi ders, you' ve heard t hem
fromworkers thensel ves. W approved the 2
and the 3. W approved it here, but it's not
what is getting to workers. That's just
reality. And it's being kept by, again, the
fol ks who are (loudly) ny favorite. Right?

So ny question is, how do we actually
make sure that this does not happen in the
future? R ght? And can you assure ne -- |
mean, we should just ask nore questions about
whether the -- I'"'mgoing to have a second
round because there's one | ast one that |
want to ask. But I'mgoing to | eave the | ast
45 seconds to you to tell wus.

Soisthis -- is this MLTC thing --
why are we sticking with it? Wy? Can you
tell ne that?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
we' ve nade significant -- you know, New York
has a long history in nmanaged care, and
especially with provider-sponsored health
pl ans runni ng nanaged care.

We do believe in MLTC for the benefits
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it has in duals integration, individuals that
are covered and get their benefits from

Medi caid and Medicare in -- under one plan,

i deal | y.

Getting rid of MLTC, you know, it
certainly would help ensure that the dollars
that we nake avail able for home care go to
the providers. | don't know that it
guarantees that the providers get those
dollars to the workers. There are benefits
fromcare coordination that we get in M.TC
that we do not have in fee for service. This
is not pharmacy. There are -- there are a
| ot of care managenent functions necessary to
do MLTC. And we do believe in that nodel
with reform

SENATCR RIVERA: | will have nore.
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Byr nes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Thank you.

| have a coupl e of quick questions.
The first will be for M. MDonald, the
second | believe will be for Ms. Harris. And
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"1l ask them both at the sane tine.
Ms. Harris, that gives you a heads-up for a
second to think about your answer.

Look, in the CGovernor's Executive
Budget there's a proposal for $1 billion for
the fifth version of the Health Care Facility
Transformati on Program Just now, or
recently, the winners of Version Il were
j ust announced, and there seens to be a
significant divide between noney all ocated
upstate and downstate. Just by way of one

exanple, in the Finger Lakes region, which

represent -- home to over 1.2 mllion

people -- they' ve received 21 mllion in
Round I11. Wstchester County al one, hone of
1 mllion people -- less -- received

$70 million in Round I11.

My question is, clearly there's a
great difference between noney allocated to
one snaller county than to ny entire region,
with nore people. If Version V, with
$1 billion, is allowed, how is that noney
going to be distributed to the benefit of al

New Yor kers? Because, sir, as you said in
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your opening statenment, you stressed
heal thcare equity for the benefit of al
New Yorkers is what you wanted. How is this
noney going to be distributed to benefit al
New Yor kers, including upstaters?

And t hen the next question, for
Ms. Harris, will be how -- in nursing hones,
how much of the distressed provider funds
have actually -- for nursing hones have
actual ly been di sbursed?

Conmmi ssi oner ?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
t hank you so much

So, you know, there is a process for
Statewide II1l. There's a process for
Statewide IV. | think the best thing for ne
to do is just send you this objective
process. The Statewide IV, which is
happening now, is 1.6 billion. 1In this
budget the Statewide V, which is 1 billion --
you know, 1'Il just send you the process and
then you can see it's an objective process.
| think it's fair. There's no intention, of

course, to favor one part of the state over
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anot her part of the state. | nean, we want
to be fair to everyone in the state.

You're absolutely right, health equity
matters for all New Yorkers all the tine.

And it's very deeply inportant to me. W
whol e career has been about finding health
equity everywhere |'ve gone.

Let nme now just turn it nowto the
superi nt endent .

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: But when our
constituents | ook at sonething, it shows that
70 mllion is going to an area with | ess
peopl e than the Finger Lakes region, which
tends to be nore rural, upstate. Yet we're
al | paying taxes, the same anount of taxes.
We all are deserving of healthcare equity.
How can you justify this disparity? And how
do you ensure, nost inportantly, that it
doesn't happen agai n?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  If | may,
Assenbl ywoman. We do | ook at the percentage
of awards that conme in, and nake awards based
on that.

And | would just call out that we are
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rolling out awards now, we just announced
anot her $200 m Ilion this norning, of which
50 million went to the Finger Lakes region.
So we are looking at this holistically
in the way in which we nmake our awards. They
come out in phases. And we'll continue to
| ook at the awards to nake sure they're
equi tabl e across the state.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Ms. Harri s,
know you're going to have to answer ne |ater.
Thank you.
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Unl ess the
chair allows.
CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbly? Ckay, thank you. | think
I|"mthe last Senator for Round 1. Thank you.
Ckay, start with reproductive health
funding. So there was a comm tnent of
addi ti onal Medicaid funding for
comuni ty-based health centers. And
reproductive health centers would fall under
that? |'m confused about this.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
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you nmay be referring to sone capital or grant
funding at Departnent of Health now?

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  No, Medi cai d
rei nbursenent rates

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  No?
referring to -- we're actually increasing the
rei nbursenent rate for surgical abortion
pr ocedur es.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: So there's not an
across-the-board Medi caid rei nbursenent
increase for the kinds of health services
comuni ty-based health centers provide, which
i s nost Planned Parenthoods.

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  There
woul d be for fam |y planning. There would be
for famly planning services as well. |
think those are 30 percent as well; | wll
confirmthat for you

But -- and then we're requiring health
pl ans to benchmark to no | ess than those
hi gher fee-for-service rei nbursenment rates.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: (Okay. But so
Medi caid is doing a higher --

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI @ Yes.
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CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER: - - rei nbur senment
rate across the board for services they
provi de.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  Correct.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  So t hen second
guestion, of the conplaint that the | evel of
rei mbursenent for specific abortion services
is way too low. And so there was | think
addi ti onal noney for surgical abortions but
not for nedical abortions. |Is that correct?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  That is
correct. Thirty percent increase.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thirty percent --

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI @ --

i ncrease above the current $1, 000
rei mbursenent. So it's going to 1300.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  So a nedi cal
abortion, though, would be a service provided
by the health center, whoever they are. So
woul d they be eligible for the increased
Medi cai d rei mbursenent for those services?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | would
want to confirm and get back to you so |

don't give you the wong information. But ny
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assunption i s yes.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So you think yes,
but you're going to get back to me with
confirmation. Thank you. That's hel pful.

Actually for DFS, following up on a
variation on a question ny coll eague Qustavo
Ri vera just asked about the networks -- well,
he asked the question, | think, of the
Department of Health on the network coverage
of inadequate doctors in a network, and
that's nostly for the Medicaid popul ati on.
But there's a huge nunber of people on
private insurance, and | get conplaints
constantly that the networks their insurance
conpanies -- which | think are under you --
are negotiating with and that there's a real
i nadequacy of actual providers.

One, are you tracking that? Wat are
you | earning? And what can we do about it?
Because | know that it's a problem

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:

Absol utely. Thank you, Senator.

We abi de by the network adequacy

standards set by DOH. And as you noted, the
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networks are -- under |nsurance Law, are
required to be adequate. So we assess the
data fromthe insurers to help ensure that
that is in fact the case.

Were we have a consuner that cannot
get the service they need in-network, the
i nsurance conpany is required to |l et them go
to an out-of-network provider at in-network
cost. And that's one thing we do to help
ensure network adequacy.

Al so, as you know, we finalized a
regul ation | ast year that held consuners
harm ess for insurance conpany
m si nformati on. So where an insurance
conpany tells a consuner that sonebody is
in-network and it turns out that they are out
of network, this regulation now holds the
consumner harm ess and makes the insurance
conpany responsi ble for that m sinformtion.

CHAl RMOMAN KRUEGER: (Okay. So | think
we have to do a better job of letting the
consuners know that if they can't find a
doctor to go to in their network and their

provider -- their insurance provider isn't
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doi ng anyt hi ng about that, that they have the
right to go to out-of-network, but for the
same cost.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S:  Correct.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECGER: Ckay. | think
that is not out there in the public eye.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Ckay, |
will take that --

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: But I'mglad to
hear that.

| guess a question for both of you,
because I'ma little confused who's whose
responsibility. So there's a |ot of
conpl aints about the different pricing of
different hospitals for the same procedures,
and sonetinmes it's under Medicaid and there's
a Medicaid anpbunt that's going to be paid and
that's that. But a lot of tinmes it's other
i nsurance, and sonme of that insurance is,
say, for enployees of the state and the city,
it's hundreds of thousands of people, and the
cost variations are enornous.

So the federal governnment said: You

all have to tell us what your prices are.
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It's nmy understandi ng not everybody's
following that rule. So it's a couple of
guesti ons.

One, what can we do here in New York
to make sure everybody is follow ng that
rul e? Because transparency is crucial, in ny
opi nion, even though it's a little confusing
about whet her consuners, as they're having
the heart attack, are actually going to
revi ew which hospital will be cheaper for the
care.

But, two, what are we doing to
actual ly push the envel ope of making sure
that we don't have extrenme price differences
when you go to different hospitals for the
sanme care?

So either or both of you.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: So on the
i ssue of hospital pricing, I'll defer to ny
col | eagues, as they oversee providers and we
oversee the insurance conpani es.

VWhat | will tell you with respect to
i nsurance, and facility fees in particular,

is that facility fees for preventative care
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are prohibited in New York, and they nust be
di scl osed in advance of the delivery of care
for non-preventative care. That's sonething
that we do oversee. And certainly if
sonmebody is having a problemwith that or if
they were wwongfully charged the facility's
fee, they should cone to us and we can hel p
rectify that situation.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Hi. One of you

from DOH, take your choi ce.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | can junp
in. | think we've been very interested in
this issue as well, not necessarily specific

to the federal rule, but just general
transparency and trying to | everage the

al | - payer database that we have in place to
make sure we can understand why prices are --
why there's so nuch variation within the sane
bor ough, within the sane bl ock.

It is conplicated, because not every
procedure in and of itself is reflective of
the total cost of care an individual may
need. So we need to be cautious about how we

use it for decision naking. But we are very
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interested in |leveraging the APD and willing
to support DFS with ensuring hospitals follow
t he rul es.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  So -- and 1'11
try to ask the hospitals the same question
| ater.

So we are working on the assunption
t hat Medi caid rei nbursenent for hospital care
i s a reasonabl e and adequat e anount .

MEDI CAl D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W believe
that it is, yes.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  You bel i eve that.
And yet the hospitals that take a far |arger
nunber of the private patients tend to be the
hospital s who charge nmuch nore and seemto
not fall under the safety net category of
needi ng savi ng.

So is it conceivable that while we may
think they are charging too nuch, that we are
not adequately funding rei mbursenent for
services in the safety net hospitals, which
is why you had so nany questions about why we
have so many of them so desperate every year

to be saved?
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MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  And |
think there's certainly an argunment to be
made t here.

| would just say, unlike comerci al
we have a |l ot of federal requirenments as to
how much we can pay hospitals. W have upper
paynent limts, we have DSH cap limts, and
we have to live within those structures in
order to | everage the federal match

We are making investnents in rates.
We're doing it across the board this year.
But we are al so making targeted investnents
in rates through the directed paynents for
hospitals. They are not at commerci al
rates -- they can't be -- but they are as
hi gh as we can possibly get the federal
governnent to agree to.

So we are trying to nake investnents
in our rates. W do believe we're doing that
increnentally. | would just say that there
are limts to how nuch we can do that, based
on the federal rules.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: And ny col | eague

Senat or Gustavo Rivera asked you about a
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whol e series of reports and, | nust say, had
a good time playing gotcha that we finally

got, apparently, a whole |ot of these reports

| ast night.
Are any of these reports -- because |
have not seen themyet -- related to -- or do

you owe us other reports that actually

eval uate objectively what should be the
different costs for different procedures in
hospitals, whether it's commercial insurance
or whether it's public insurance paying?

Does sonebody actually have a docunent
somewhere in prep or avail able, like
actually, you know, the price scale is from
here to here in New York, but the actua
reasonabl e price ought to be X? Do we do
t hat ?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | don't
believe we have a report like that in
process.

It is a conplicated question. W
woul d want to work across the departnent to
do that. Medicaid only has the public health

i nsurance i nformati on. You know, the
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al | - payer dat abase has sone of the comerci al
and sel f-insured popul ati ons, Medicare as
well. But we don't necessarily have a report
like that in the works.

We could certainly try to explore that
with you, Senator, if it's something that you
are interested in.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: And then, very
qui ckly, last night at the very end of the
heari ng we had yesterday, which was on higher
education, there was a di scussi on about
whet her or not New York ought to be joining
t he nurses conpact. And | believe the
Governor has proposed us doing that in her
budget .

But historically, we've never wanted
to do that because of concerns about | ower
standards in other states. Wy should we
change our mnd at this point when this has
been working for us, so to speak --

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  It's
not working for us.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: It's not working

for us.
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ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  It's
not working for us.

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ckay.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  And
it's not |ower standards, it's the sane
st andar ds.

CHAI R\MOVAN KRUEGER: COkay, |'msorry,
| amout of time, so we'll have to follow up
after that. But | would appreciate your
i nput, and perhaps in witing others would as
well, why it's not working for us and it
makes sense to do this. Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Jo Anne Si non.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

Dr. McDonal d, you had said earlier you
agreed that hone care was healthcare. And |
think many of us are struggling with the
scant evidence in the Executive Budget that
woul d reflect that.

So, sonebody fromthe Departnent of

Health, | want to foll ow up on Assenbl ynenber
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Kell es, who was referring to the financials
for the nmanaged | ong-termcare plans. And
there are 25 plans that reported $722 mllion
of profit in a single year in 2021. So year
after year, they've been pocketing noney
that's meant for home care workers.

So the question is, does the state
bel i eve the plans shoul d pocket
three-quarters of a billion dollars intended
for hone care, yes or no?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI:  Want ne to
t ake that one?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah, |
nmean -- go ahead.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Yes or no, Yyeah.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So thank
you for the question, Assenblynenber.

No, we are not okay with that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SI MON:  Ckay, good.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | nean, |
think if you |l ook -- oh, sorry.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  No, that's okay.
That's great, thank you.

| just want to point out,
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three-quarters of a billion would fund
Fair Pay for Hone Care. But that's not a
guestion, it's just a point.

And the other issue is this claimthat
t he hone care workers shoul d not be making
m ni mum wage, which | agree. But we're
rai sing the m ni numwage and freezi ng hone
care wages. So the question then is how nmuch
nore shoul d hone care workers be nmaking than
mnimum And if it's no longer $3, what is
it?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: | don't
know that | have an exact nunber.

We val ue hone care workers, and home
care workers is healthcare. And it's a
really growing industry. You know, since
2017, 32.9 percent are hone care workers --
nore than any other discipline in healthcare.

So | don't know that | know what the
actual nunber should be, but we are commtted
to, you know, the increases we made. And
then as the future goes out, we'll see what's
possi bl e.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: Wl |, let ne
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just say I'd |l ove to have a nunber if you
could l ook at that and get back to us.

And just the other thing is, of
course, it's healthcare but it's also, you
know, under federal |aw we're supposed to
all ow people to live in their hones in a
| ess-restrictive environnment, under the
O nstead decision. And it saves New York
noney because it's so nuch cheaper to provide
home care than it is to institutionalize
peopl e, whether they're in |ong-termcare
facilities or assisted living or whatever.

So | think we all agree on what we
shoul d be doing. Wat we really need to do
is talk about how we're going to be doing
that so that we're able to achieve those
goal s and actually pay the workers who are
doi ng the hard work of actually saving
New Yor k State noney.

Thank you.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | agree.
Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,
Assenbl y.
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And Senator Rivera for three m nutes,
foll owup and closing for the Senate.

SENATCR RI VERA: |' m ba- ack

Al right, quickly. First of all, our
Medi caid rates, thank you for the 5 percent.
Need nore, particularly because we're | ooking
at -- we have to look at -- and this is
something that I'mhoping that we do in the
years to cone. W need to actually invest in
institutions so that they have stability so
we don't have to go and save them every now
and t hen.

So -- and we can do that by taxing the
weal t hy. Looking at you, Madam Governor. Do
the right thing.

Al right. Moving on, nursing hone
safe staffing noney. There's $187 mllion
that was appropriated, and it's supposed to
be distributed. Has it been?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  So t hat
fundi ng has not been distributed, Senator.

SENATOR RI VERA: (Ckay. Wy not?

MEDI CAI D D RECTOR BASSI RI: W' ve

attenpted to get approval fromthe federal
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government on that distribution, it's a new
nmet hodol ogy. The federal governnment did not
approve it on the first instance. W're
trying to get that approved before the end of
the state fiscal year. And there's a
commtnment fromthe state to fund the state
share, if nothing el se.

SENATOR RI VERA: We night have sone
coment s about sone of the -- there's
fundanmental issues in its staffing, so that
m ght be part of the issue. W'IIl get to
that |ater.

Third, Comm ssioner, you' ve tal ked
of ten about sone of the work that you' ve done
back home in Rhode Island. And | understand
that you were pivotal in the inplenentation
of OPCs over in Rhode Island. 1Is that
correct?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  That's
right.

SENATOR RI VERA: All right. Now, do
you believe -- fromyour experience in
Rhode Island, do you believe that it's |egal

to fund overdose prevention centers through
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opi oid settlenment dollars?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  It's
conplicated and it's legal. And what the
lawers tell me, it's a conplicated | ega
issue. And Senator, | hate putting the words
"“conplicated" and "legal" together, because
it means we've got to figure this out.

SENATOR RI VERA: (Kkay.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  So |
know -- it's something we have to figure out.

Right nowl'mtold it's not legal in
New Yor k.

SENATCR RI VERA: Gotcha. So we've --
we' ve tal ked about this in other hearings. |
have a little bit nore tine now, so | just
wanted to reiterate to the adm nistration
anybody who's listening, if you could
actually tell us what exactly you're
referring to, that would be great. Because
you keep saying that it's conplicated and
it's a legal issue and et cetera, et cetera.
But you can't nanme a single thing that
actually refers to limting the legal ability

of the state to be able to do that.
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So could you pl ease, couldja? And |
have a couple nore seconds, and |"'mgoing to
just say couldja again. And lastly, to ask
very quickly about -- just state very quickly
about hone care, we really have to have a
whol e conversati on about home care as well.
And there has to be -- if we don't invest in
it, we're just going to nake sure -- we're
just going to make sure that people end up in
nursi ng homes, which is not only going to
cost us nore noney, but it's going to be
worse for those folKks.

So on all of those issues, thank you
for your participation today.

| am done, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,
Senat or .

Assenbly, you have nore?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes, we have a
few nore. Khal eel Anderson next.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

And thank you to all of the

conmi ssioners who are here this afternoon.
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Thank you for giving us your testinony.

| have a few questions. |1'mgoing to
start with the comm ssioner of the Departnent
of Health. So the first question | have for
you, Comm ssioner, is around the CCBHCs. So
when |'m | ooking at the budget, the Executive
proposed additional funding to the CCBHCs,
and |'mjust wondering what the state's
obj ectives are to the equitable investnent
for those CCBHCs.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  |''m
going to let Director Bassiri handle that.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSI RI:  Sure.
Thank you, Comm ssioner. And thank you for
the --

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Ch, that's
Medi cai d, okay.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Yeah,
sure. Thank you for the question.

W' ve been working very closely with
the Ofice of Mental Health on this proposal.
It's part of the Governor's $1 billion
proposal for mental health services. They're

currently -- it's currently a federal
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denonstration

W have 13 CCBHCs. | like to think of
t hem as conprehensive clinics that provide
certain services and workforce-rel ated
i nvestnents for behavioral health and nental
health needs. There's 13; we're proposing to
expand it to 39 over a two-year period. And
we believe it's a very great nodel, it's been
national ly recogni zed, and working with OVH
to inplenent it.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Thank you.

The next question is for the
superintendent of DFS. Good to see you
Superi nt endent Harris.

So | ast year in the budget, of
course -- and |'ve been very vocal on this --
was the inclusion of $11.2 mllion for a
period of five years, every year, to help the
dol I ar van, conmuter van industry, which is
critical to our, you know, econony downstate
and the individuals who need transportati on.

So I'mjust wondering, there wasn't a
request for additional funding this year,

obvi ously because it's a five-year plan. |'m
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j ust wondering where the expenditures of
t hose resources are.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI' S:  So
currently, as you know, service is an
incredi bly inportant transportation issue
that's required the cooperation of many
government agencies. ESD has issued an
RFP -- if that's not enough acronyns for
you -- to get providers for the program DFS
cannot adm nister that RFP because of course
we are the regulator, and it would be
i nappropriate for us to be distributing
funds.

So the funds fromlast year, we are
very grateful to have that to begin
addressing this | ong-standing problem They
were not used | ast year because the RFP has
just gone out and is still currently open
under ESD.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Thank you,
Superintendent. And I'Il use ny last 30
seconds to ask the conm ssioner of the
Department of Health around the safety-net

hospitals investnents that we made in the
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budget | ast year. | think close to a billion
dollars we did. |Is that happening through
the safety transformation grants, or is there
anot her process to get those dollars out the
door? The safety-net hospitals.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Yeah
so the $700 mllion investnent |ast year was
a one-tinme investnment. There are -- there is
noney for safety-net hospitals, though, when
you | ook at Statewi de |1

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  No, no, no.

But Commi ssi oner, those dollars, where are
t hey? Have they been rolled out?

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  They have
been -- they have been rolled out through
vari ous prograns, including VAPAP, VAP, and
ot her suppl enental paynent prograns.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN ANDERSON:  Thank you,

Comm ssioner. Thank you, Superintendent.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
G ay.

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: Thank you very

much. | appreciate it.
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So first of all, Director, | just want
totalk to you on the Medicaid intercept. It
is a pattern of the state to be intercepting
revenue fromcounties. They've done it with
sales tax; they've done it with -- you know,
for distressed aid to hospitals.

Part of the agreenent with that was
the tax on the -- or was a tax cap as part of
the -- was the agreenment on the Medicaid cap.
And the counties have abided by that, by and
| ar ge.

The two counties that | represent,
it'"s going to be a 4 percent tax increase,
property tax increase, and a 6 percent in the
other county. So it is affecting the
counties. It is a pattern of the state.

They have done it in the past. And | think
woul d ask you to reconsider that. So ..

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI:  Thank you
for the conments, Assenbl ynenber.

| know there's been a | ot of concern
up to this point fromvarious |egislators.
Not to sound |ike a broken record, but we

have capped the | ocal share of Medicaid since
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2015, 7.6 billion, saving the counties, you
know, over 30 billion since then. They are

getting the COVID enhanced federal funding,

their share of it. | think it's sonmething
we'll continue working with the counties on,
and definitely we'll reconsider --

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: But part of that
was the agreenent that they would tax their
property -- tax cap on their properties. So
they've held their side of the bargain. The
state should do the sane.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSI RI
under st and.

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: The other thing is
travel nurses. They're stressing hospitals.
| s there any consideration to put
geo- boundari es on travel nurses?

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  The
consideration we have in front of you is
sinply to get transparency fromtravel
conpani es. You know, because quite frankly
we know al nost not hi ng about the finances
regardi ng travel nurse conpani es.

| haven't seen a proposal about
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geo- boundaries. Like, in other words, one of
the things you're asking is, you know, can we
limt how far they have to go before they're
a travel nurse.

W saw this in Rhode Island, by the
way, where people literally traveled five
mles fromtheir hone to be a travel nurse.

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: That's correct.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  The
hospitals, you know, they need to be able to
control their costs. And the hospitals were
really at a tough tine during the pandem c.
And so it's something that, you know, | don't
know that we can do that. Wat we're doing
is what we can do right now.

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: kay. | would
encourage you to | ook at geo-boundaries in
terms of whether they can operate within
their county or a contiguous county or such.

Then the federal ommibus bill, there's
$7 billion allocated for building out
capacity to deal with healthcare energencies,
i ncl udi ng stockpiling energency supplies,

i ncl udi ng di agnostics. Does the state
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have -- is the state participating in that
progran? It's a 20:1 match, | guess.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD: 1" 11
have to get back to you. 1'Il have to get
back to you on that.

ASSEMBLYMAN GRAY: (kay. Good. Thank
you very much

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Meeks.

ASSEMBLYMAN MEEKS: Thank you, Chair.

This question | guess would pertain to
Superintendent Harris. Last session
sponsored a bill authorizing life insurers to
establish wel |l ness prograns, and we were able
to pass it in both houses, and it was vetoed
by the Governor. And it was ny understanding
that that was referred by DFS. And j ust
wanted to get a little nore insight on that.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: So at DFS
we of fer technical assistance to the
Legi slature and to the Governor. W don't
make the policy decisions about vetoes.

Those are for the executive chanmber to nake.

But we're al ways happy to provide techni cal
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assi stance on any proposal that you or your
col | eagues would like to put forward.

ASSEMBLYMAN MEEKS: Ckay. And do you
support well ness prograns |like for insurers
and for the insured?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | will
tell you, one of the things that | have done
since comng into the departnment is part of a
|arge review that |'ve done -- across the
departnment, not just in insurance -- but to
| ook at ways that we can noderni ze our regs
so that they are well suited or better suited
for a 21st-century econony.

So we're always open to ideas where we
can noderni ze our regulations to suit a
21st-century econony.

ASSEMBLYMAN MEEKS: COkay. And also a
guestion -- | guess the question was posed as
it relates to hone heal thcare workers and
what woul d be a good wage, and it seened to
be sonething that's sort of up in the air.

One of the things | woul d consider -
or suggest that you take into consideration

is aliving wage. |'mfrom Monroe County.
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And before the onset of the pandem c, a
living wage for a single parent raising two
children was 18.50 an hour. So I'mquite
sure that has increased by now.

But | think we need to get beyond the
m ni mum wage conversation and | ook towards a
living wage so that individuals can provide
for thenselves as well as their famlies.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Assenbl yman Ra.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you.

So regardi ng the proposal for pharmacy
service adm ni stration organi zati ons, nany
have expressed the concern that this proposal
somewhat m srepresents their role. So |'l
start with this.

Wiy are PSAGCs required to report
informati on and actions that are outside of
their scope of services?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Thank you
so nuch.

In fact they are not. There's been

some misinformation circulating that PSAGCs
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are responsi ble for reporting drug price
increases, and in fact that is not the case.
The manufacturers are required -- when they
distribute in New York State or they have
whol esal ers and distributors that distribute
in New York State, the manufacturers, under
this proposal, are required to report price
i ncreases to DFS.

PSAGCs, along with rebate aggregators
and switch conpanies, are required to
register with DFS, and we will engage in
regul atory rul e-maki ng and oversi ght of those
organi zati ons. Because as you noted, there's
gquite a lot of confusion about who in the
drug supply chain is responsible for what
activities. And a lot of these entities
sprung up as they were spun out of PBMs or
other entities in an attenpt to skirt
regul ation. So they have continued to
conplicate the prescription drug supply
chai n.

Thi s proposal gives DFS the authority
to oversee the various entities in the

prescription drug supply chain and ensure




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

203

that they're not all rent-seeking
i ndividually and therefore increasing the
price of prescription drugs unnecessarily.
ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Well, | hope as this
noves forward, you know, we make sure we | ook
at that and nmake sure. Because there have
been concerns that the registration wll
require information on activities that the
PSAGs don't actually do.
They are also, am| correct, going to

be required to pay a registration fee as --

of $5, 000?
DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | can
confirm-- | can cone back to you and confirm

on the fee. But | don't believe that's
correct. But we can confirmfor you.
ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay. Because | know
that they have usually flat fees that are,
you know, pretty |ow that they operate on.
So it seens like it would be a very high fee
for those types of entities.
And, you know, ny concern being, you
know, you tal k about the PBMs -- and

certainly we don't, you know -- it was a
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mul tiyear effort regarding the PBMs and
registration, so we don't want people
skirting that. But | think they have a
different role, especially relative to our
i ndependent pharnmacies, who rely on these
PSAGCs for a | ot of things.

And if, you know, we were to have a
too broad, sweeping new |l aw and regul ati ons
come into effect and it had the inpact of
driving any PSAGs out of the market, it could
have a very detrinmental effect on those
i ndependent phar naci es.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:

Absol utely.

What | will say to you is often the
PSAGs fashion thensel ves to help the
i ndependent pharnmaci es negotiate, but all too
often those PSAGCs are owned by the PBMs, and
so they are rife with conflict of interest --
which is not disclosed to the pharmacies. So
t hese i ndependent pharmaci es are signing up
wi th PSAGs thinking that they have a
negotiator on their side, when in fact the

opposite is true.
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And that's why it's inmportant for them
to be subject to oversight.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: | think oversight,
certainly. But we want to nmake sure that

it's appropriate to the role they're playing.

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI'S: | agree.
ASSEMBLYMAN RA: | just have one ot her
guestion, if -- 1 don't know whether DFS or

DCOH coul d answer this, regarding the
pay- and- pursuit proposal.

There's an estimted cost to the
Medi caid programof $64 mllion in fiscal
year '25. \Wat -- do we know what the
estimated cost woul d be regardi ng NYSH P of
this, at the state |level and then at the
| ocal levels for municipalities and school
districts, those types of entities that offer
t hose pl ans?

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | believe
they're exenpt fromthe |egislation, so there
shoul dn't be any fiscal inpact. Self-insured
is not part of the pay-and-resolve bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Ckay. And are you

aware -- you know, | have heard that a nunber
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of | arge uni ons have expressed opposition to
this proposal. Wuld this proposal affect
fully insured unions?

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI:  Yes, |'ve
heard their concerns as well. They are
exenpt. | think it's just, you know, a

| ongst andi ng policy issue that they are

concerned about. But they're exenpt fromthe

| egi sl ation.
ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you very much
ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.
Second round, Assenbl ynenber Weprin.
ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

Thank you, Superintendent, for being

here again and spending so nuch time with us.

| know t he Governor and nyself as
well are commtted to nental health services
and trying to -- you know, and I know in her
budget and her State of the State she
enphasi zed the inportance of parity with
mental heal th services.

There's a problem though, with

private providers of nmental health, the whole
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spectrum of providers, wth rei mbursenent
rates. Private rates are generally |ower
t han the Medicaid reinbursenent rate for
ment al heal th services.

Woul d your departnent consider
mandati ng a m ni num rei nbursenent rate for
mental health services?

DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S:  So
currently we don't set reinbursenent rates.
But certainly if you have a proposal that you
woul d i ke us to provide technical assistance
on, we're happy to do so.

What | will say with respect to nenta
heal th and substance use disorder parity is
we' ve got robust requirenents on the books.
Insurers are required to provide DFS with
reports every two years, and those reports
are made public on our website. And where
insurers don't conply with their parity
requi renents, we bring enforcenent actions.
And |'ve brought a couple in ny short tine at
DFS.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N  Ckay. | nay get

back to you on that.
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DFS SUPERI NTENDENT HARRI S: Pl ease.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: (M c off.)
Thank you.

So I"'mleft, just for ny cleanup. So
l"mgoing to talk fast; I'"'mlearning fromny
col | eague here to the right.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Medi cai d
recertification is bound to be a nightmare in
certain areas. | wonder if the departnent
has t hought about continuous enroll nent for
chil dren under six so that needy children
don't lose their coverage. O mght consider
it.

MEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: W woul d
definitely consider that, Assenbl ynenber
Paulin. | think we would need an 1115 wai ver
to do that. W currently have an 1115 wai ver
pendi ng at CVM5, so we would have to wait
until we get that approved. But it's
somet hi ng we' ve been | ooki ng at and

interested in as well.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Quality pools, elimnated in this
budget. It doesn't seemto be in line with
the m ssion of the departnment to | ook for
better plans. Wndered about that.

MEDI CAI D Dl RECTOR BASSIRI: | can
under stand why you think that.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Ch, ny light's
not on. No, it's not. Oh, and there we go.
Wel |, you heard nme anyway.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Yeah.
Yeah, | heard you, quality pools.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULIN:  1'm taking an
extra second.

MEDI CAlI D DI RECTOR BASSI Rl :  Yeah,
can understand why you think that. | think
you know, we expect nmore fromour health
pl ans froman accountability standpoint. |
t hink you see that throughout the Medicaid
budget .

There will be other opportunities,
there are other opportunities for quality
i ncentive prograns through the Essenti al

Plan. And we are, as | nentioned, seeking an
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1115 waiver, 13.52 billion, that will be
significant quality incentive opportunities
for the health plans when we get that

appr oved.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  CDPAP. The
wage parity protections are being elim nated
in the Article VII. Rationale?

VEDI CAI D DI RECTOR BASSIRI: | think
we're going to need nore than a mnute and a
half to talk about that. So nmaybe we can get
back to you

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Ckay.

And the | ast question, EMS. Big
i nprovenent over |last year in terns of
bringing in the players and the industry, so
to speak. Two things | wondered about,
because they're not in the SEMSCO report, and
that is to do with the CON, transferring that
to the state. And also setting up the
regional -- the 10 regional districts, which
is also not in the report. | wondered, you
know, why that.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  The 10

regional districts, why that's in the --
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Why -- those
are two things that were not in the 79-page
report which I read.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Ri ght .
| read it too.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  And wonder ed,
you know, why they were included and never
havi ng been talked to or vetted with the
st akehol ders.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  The
state's already in 10 regional directs. From
what | understand, it was just ease of
i npl enenting. So that's why.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  And just to
corment, with ny last 19 seconds, | would
echo Jen Lunsford's suggestion about | ooking
at El. | did that covered-lives bill. The
intent was to cover and to provide nore
services for children. And if you | ook
t oday, there happens to be a Conptroller
report indicating that children are not
getting served.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER McDONALD:  Thank

you.
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CHAl RAMOVAN KRUECER: Is that it?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  That's it.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECER: Ckay. And the
Senate is done, the Assenbly is done, which
nmeans you are finally done. So it was a
little | onger than we expected, but you got a
break in the m ddle.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: So t hank you very
much for your testinmony. W |ook forward to
seeing the responses in witing on questions
that you knew you didn't have the answers to

now or weren't allowed the tine to answer for

us.

So as everybody takes a little bit of
a stretch break -- but not very |long, don't
go anywhere -- we will be calling up the

Greater New York Hospital Association,
Kennet h Raske; the Save New York's Safety Net
Coal ition, Jacquelyn Kilnmer; and the
Heal t hcare Associ ati on of New York State,
Bea G ause.

And al so, everyone, if you would

pl ease take the conversations you m ght feel
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a need to have with our guests out in the
hal | ways, that woul d be appreciated.

(Brief recess taken.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Now we're
starting up again, thank you.

And we're going to our Panel A our
first nongovernnent panel. Renenber,
everybody, the rules have now changed. They
each get three mnutes, which | know t hey
think is crazy, and we only get three
mnutes. So we are going to be very good at
bei ng conci se and specific.

And when you are asked questions that
you won't possibly have the tinme to answer,
you will say "Look at ny testinony which
couldn't read to you,"” or "I will get back to
you." And if you get back to Hel ene
Weinstein or nyself, we will make sure that
it gets to all the nmenbers of the conmittees
as soon as we get it fromyou all.

So why don't we start in the order
that you' re on the panel, with Ken Raske from
the Greater New York Hospital Association.

MR. RASKE: Cood afternoon,
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Madam Chai rman, and good afternoon to the
nmenbers of the Senate and Assenbly.

| have an opportunity in this three
m nutes to wal k you t hrough the panel s which
| provided in our testinmony. And |I'm going
to isolate only a handful to get this
presentation started and conpl et ed.

The first one is profitability. |
have a panel of four in the handout, which
deals with the m serabl e financial
performance of hospitals in New York State.
And it's a story of one |oss after another.
And as you can see fromthe panel, four out
of five hospitals are not on a sustainable
path. This is undoubtedly one of the worst
performances in the United States. That,
| adi es and gentlenen, is the baseline for
this presentation.

So going in, the hospitals in many of
your districts are | osing everything but
their shirt. So let's go to the second
panel, which is sone of the causes of this.
ri ght now we have an expl osion due to the

| abor shortages and | abor costs. And what
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|"ve done in this panel -- this is Panel 5 --
is taken, say, the nost recent | abor
settlements and taken themout in a ripple

ef fect across a broad sector of institutions
by percentage of penetration.

And as you can see fromthis tabl e,
this goes into the nulti-billions of dollars
in very quick fashion. And that's the |abor
costs that we're seeing escalating as of the
nonment that we speak.

So based on the financial performance
and the | abor cost inplosion, this creates
the vise that |I'mtal king about.

Now go to Panel 6. Panel 6 gives you
an idea -- and some questions cane earlier
about what does Medicaid pay in New York
Medicaid is, in a paynent basis in New York
State, is the worst in the United States.
Okay? The worst in the United States. Now,
that is a statenent that you probably haven't
heard before, because we have an extensive
coverage and benefits program But the
paynent for it is mserable. And right now

hospitals are receiving 61 cent on a dollars
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of cost -- 61 cents on a dollar of cost.

Now |'m going to go to anot her segue,
which is the insurance conpani es and the
abuses, and that was a subject that sone have
rai sed before. There are two proposals
wi thin the Governor's budget that we |ike,
one on pay and review, and another one on
site of service. Site of service is a way
for payers to not pay hospitals but rather
direct theminto anbul atory surgery centers,
whi ch have none of the overhead costs |ike
energency roons at hospitals have. So these
are two proposals that warrant consideration.

Now, |let ne just conclude very quickly
by taking you to insurer profits. Ladies and
gentl ermen, | have napped out two | arge
insurers in New York State, United and
El evance, which is Anthem-- Blue Cross in
terms of your vernacular. They show the
profitability, which is astronomcal, in the
| ast few years. This is --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thanks, Ken, your
time is up.

MR. RASKE: All righty.
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CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Sorry. Thank
you.

Ckay. H, Bea -- oh, no, sorry,
excuse ne. Jacquel yn.

M5. KILMER Is this on? kay.

So good afternoon, and thank you very
much. M nane is Jacquelyn Kilnmer. |'mthe
CEO of Harlem United, but I am here today
testifying on behalf of the Save New York's
Safety Net Coalition. The coalitionis a
statewi de coalition of community health
centers, Ryan Wiite services providers, and
Medi caid H 'V Special Needs Plans. And |I'm
testifying regardi ng the pharmacy carveout.

The coalition strongly opposes the
carveout proposal in the Executive Budget,
and we urge the Legislature to adopt the
alternative that is currently set out in
S5136, introduced by Senator Rivera |ast
week.

We are just one short nonth away from
the effective date of the carveout, when the
safety net providers at that point will face

a fiscal cliff that will devastate us, and it
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wi || devastate the communities that we serve.

And at this point | do want to follow
up on sonething that Senator Rivera pointed
out earlier and clarify something that was
said in earlier testinony, which is it is the
2.3 million conmunity nmenbers that we serve
that will be inpacted by this carveout. Two
hundred fifty thousand may be the nunber of
Medi cai d menbers who receive a 340B
prescription. That also does not include the
uni nsured New Yorkers who receive free
nmedi ci nes fromthat program And it
absol utely does not include the 2.3 mllion
comunity nenbers that the safety net
provi ders serve, who will be inpacted
negatively by this carveout.

The solution in the Executive Budget
is flatly unworkable. The solution isn't
sinply to throw nore noney into a pool in an
attenpt to make us whole. That's what the
current proposal does. But it isn't a
solution because it isn't reliable, it isn't
certain, and it isn't bankable, as the

340B rei nbur senment nechanismi s
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The proposal is subject to budget
negotiations. It is not a permanent
solution. It is subject, as we know, to CMS
approval, and that plan hasn't been submtted
to CM5 yet. And again, we are only 30 days
away fromthe effective date of the carveout.

And even if CMS approves the plan,
there is nothing that obligates the state to
actual ly make those paynents. So there is
still extreme uncertainty for all of us in
the safety net who rely on this reinbursenent
mechani sm

But there is a workable solution, and
that solution is contained in S5136 that
Senator Rivera introduced | ast week. It
is -- it provides the best of both worlds.

It maintains the carveout. It maintains the
benefit -- excuse ne, it maintains the
pharmacy benefit in managed care, and

t herefore the 340B rei nbursenment nmechani sm
remains intact. And it addresses the state's
policy objectives.

It also solves, for the conmunity

pharmaci sts -- thank you
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CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Hi .

M5. CRAUSE: CGood afternoon, Chairs
Krueger, Winstein, Rivera and Paulin and al
t he ot her nenbers of the Assenbly and Senate.
My name is Bea Grause. |'mthe president of
t he Heal t hcare Association of New York State.

| wanted to start out by enphasi zing
what Ken said, in that our hospitals are in a
structural fiscal crisis. There are two
reasons for it. One of themis the workforce
shortage, and the other is chronic
under paynments, where Medi cai d rei nburses
61 cents on the dollar of cost. This crisis
has al ready caused hospitals to cut services,
halt noderni zation projects, and many -- four
out of five of our hospitals are reporting
negati ve or unsustai nabl e margi ns.

In addition, it has inpacted
nur si ng- homre beds, which are cl osed across
the state, and nursing homes are struggling
to keep their doors open, as much of this
testinmony earlier today has enphasi zed. And

what has happened is that it has caused
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system gridl ock, which really is furthering
the fiscal deterioration for hospitals and
nursi ng hones.

We have three requests for you. The
first is we are asking you to dramatically
i nprove Medi caid paynent rates while
restoring state supportive funding for
financially distressed hospitals and nursing
homes. Anbng our nany priorities we urge you
to consider a mnimm 10 percent increase to
the Medicaid rate for hospitals, including
both inpatient and outpatient rates, as well
as a 10 percent Medicaid rate increase for
nursing homes. W need to stabilize our
hospitals, but again, | think this funding
needs to be continued.

Second, we urge you to advance key
heal t hcare policies that provide nuch-needed
relief to hospitals and health systens while
inmposing little to no cost to the state.
There are nmany opportunities to do so, like
maki ng per manent workforce flexibilities and
taki ng steps to address the abusive practices

of well-resourced insurers that burden our
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hospital s and ot her providers, pay and
resol ve being one of them

Third, we urge you not to nmake any
cuts to hospitals and nursing honmes and
refrain fromlayering on new unfunded costs.
The Executive Budget couples the proposed
Medi caid rate increase for hospitals with the
advanci ng of the Medicaid pharmacy carveout.
The result for many hospitals participating
in the 340B drug pricing programis a net
negative -- at a tinme when they sinply cannot
absorb any further cuts.

Meanwhi | e, the nursing home Medicaid
rate increases, coupled with the elimnation
of 187 mllion in previously appropriated but
never released funding neant to support
i ncreased staffing -- our nursing hones
needed t hat noney when it was appropri ated,
and they certainly need it now.

There are nany other priorities in ny
witten testinony, and I will reserve the
remai nder of my tine. And back to you
Chai rman Krueger.

CHAl R{MOVAN KRUEGER:  |'m so sorry.
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Thank you -- excuse me; Lynne showed up at
the wong tine.

(Laughter.)

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Excuse ne.

Qur first questioner will be Senator
Ri ver a.

SENATOR RI VERA: |'m good right now.

CHAI RWOVAN KRUEGER:  You're good ri ght
now. Then | will pass it to -- also good?

Senat or Hel m ng.

SENATOR HELM NG Thank you.

Thank you for your testinmony. A quick
guestion for you. During the |ast panel
di scussion, the Medicaid director -- | think
| heard himstate that he has seen an
increase in the denials by health insurers
for our safety net facilities. |Is that
somet hi ng that you can corroborate?

MR. RASKE: You want ne to --
{inaudible} if I can. The answer is we've
been tracking that. W're tal king about a
denial rate, generally speaking in New York
State, of about 25 percent. Then they go to

adj udi cation, through an appeal s process, and
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t hen nost of those are ruled in favor of the
hospitals, at least in large part.

Wth respect to the observation on the
safety nets, we are hearing that too. And it
is now a not confirmed statenent, but rather
anecdotal. W're in the process of trying to
confirmit, though, and we're collecting that
evi dence as we speak.

SENATOR HELM NG |I'd be interested in
seei ng that data.

Just trying to get to the bottom of
this pay and resolve, | understand that both
Greater New York Hospital Association and
HANYS are in support of the proposal that is
in the budget. M concern is that it seens
to be, when | read it, that it is -- it would
add further delays, further tinme until you
recei ve your deci sions.

M5. GRAUSE: It would not. It would
not. It would require the payers to pay for
energency services and inpatient services
subsequent to an energency adnmission. So it
would not -- it would not delay paynent.

They woul d be required to pay within 30 days.
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SENATOR HELM NG Thank you for that.

And just on the 340B carveout, again,
| think you heard nme during the | ast panel.
| hear you. | have assurances from ny
col | eagues here that that is definitely a
priority to fix that.

Thank you again for your testinony.

M5. GRAUSE: We appreciate that.

MR. RASKE: Thank you.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you,
Senat or Hel m ng.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Assenbl yman
Wepri n.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N:  Thank you,

Madam Chai r.

Thank you for your enlightening
testinmony. 1've been a strong advocate for
actually a 20 percent Medicaid rei nbursenent
increase in this budget, and |I've said that
publicly, I've witten a letter to the
Governor to that effect, along with nany of
nmy col |l eagues in the Assenbly and Senate.

M. Raske referred to that we were one
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of the lowest if not the |owest state in
rei nbursenent at 61 cents. \Were do we fit
in the real mof the 50 states? What nunber
are we in that list?

MR RASKE: What nunber are we in the
50 states in ternms of the --

ASSEMBLYMAN VWEPRI N:  The | owest
rei nbur senent - -

MR. RASKE: Yeah, you know, the
interesting -- the Medicaid statenment that |
made was picked up in a City & State sem nar
on Friday, and a professor from Cornell cane
up with that observation that |ooking that
all 51 jurisdictions, that New York was the
| owest. And it was through her studies, and
we cited that in one of our tables, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Okay, and who's
t he hi ghest?

MR RASKE: | do not know, but | could
find out for you and get back to you with
that information

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRIN:  Yeah, | think it
woul d be hel pful in this budget discussion as

we're getting closer.
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But | want you to know --

MR RASKE: In fact, with the
perm ssion of the chair, I will give you the
list of all the states fromthe professor and
her study, so you can have themall.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N Sure. You can
send it to me directly. | don't think you
need the chair's perm ssion.

MR. RASKE: Well, | was going to give
it to the entire panel.

(Laughter; overtal k.)

MR. RASKE: Your coll eague was shaki ng
her head yes, so I'lIl give it to everybody.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEPRI N: No, no, |
appreciate that. And, you know, as we all --
| have a lot of hospitals and nursing hones
that are really in trouble because of the
rei nbursenent rate on Medicaid, so --

MR. RASKE: Yeah, the safety-net
probl em warrants a separate discussion. It
is a big, big problem

And if | could just add one conment
qui ckly, and that is the safety-net funding

in the budget is grossly inadequate. It is
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m nus 700 fromlast year. And we are
fighting, us and 1199 and our colleagues in
HANYS are trying to get that restored plus
sonme additional noney, as Bea spoke to. And
that is essential.

I n other words, think about the
incongruity of what | just said. W are
fighting to put noney into the budget so that
t he executive branch coul d have enough noney
to bail out hospitals that run aground. Now,
I"mtrying to help the executive branch
actually do their job down the road. That's
what we're trying to do. And | consider that
an incongruity, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN VPRI N: Wl |, we
appreci ate your advocacy. Thank you.

MR RASKE: Yes, sir.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Do we have any ot her Senator who
wi shes to ask questions?

Senat or Ri vera.

SENATCR RI VERA:  Wiile | kind of have
lunch. So | wanted to give an opportunity to

all of you to kind of chine in on the 340B
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situation, particularly since there's a --
since obviously there's a concern, | mean, we
stopped the presses, if you will, because
peopl e were so fired up about it that they
actual ly shut this down.

So | wanted to give an opportunity to
everybody to kind of chinme in on this. Start
fromthe right and then go that way
(gesturing). | know that you have a big part
of your testinony was that, but -- if you
coul d, Bea.

M5. GRAUSE: Sure. So | think the
i mportance of 340B is really access to
patients. And hospitals across the state
have built progranms as a result of the
savings that they receive to help create
nobi | e vans, create prograns that will get
H 'V drugs to difficult-to-treat popul ations.
And t hose progranms are incorporated in their
capital plan and their overall budget. So
they're built into their strategy.

So | think unraveling and taking away
t hose savings really provides no avail able

source for these hospitals to continue these
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progranms. So it's incredibly inportant for
pati ent access.

M5. KILMER: | think another point
that 1'd like to nake is that the state, the
safety-net providers, and the mllions of
New Yor kers who depend on the services that
we provide are actually facing a perfect
stormright now So we are in a situation
where we are needing to recertify 8 mllion
Medi cai d nenbers. There is an increasing
nunber of inmm grants com ng into New York
all of whomare going to need healthcare and
will be getting their healthcare fromthe

safety-net providers. And we have the

carveout. Those three things are unworkabl e.

They are just sinply an unworkabl e situation.

MR RASKE: Just to add one further
comment on it, in the budget there is an
i ncrease of 5 percent on Medicaid paynents.
This is the first we've seen in 15 years.

But that is washed out by the 340B.

So it basically -- you know, they give

on one hand, take on the other. And that's

what this story is all about. [If that's
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cl ear, Senator.

M5. GRAUSE: | would just add to that,
inthat we -- in the critical condition
report that Ken, | and others conpleted and
you have in your packet -- really
denonstrated that expenses are well above
revenue. And while we appreciate what's in
t he Governor's budget, it really doesn't even
get hospitals back to zero.

And that's really not what we need
now. W really need that investnment in
Medi caid. W need those policies that wll
hel p hospitals that don't cost the state any
funding. And we certainly don't need any
cuts |ike 340B.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Yes. W have a

list.

Assenbl ynenber Jensen.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Yes, if | can get
my m crophone working -- or not. Is it

wor ki ng? Okay, perfect.
Ms. Grause, follow ng back up to your

testinmony, you alluded to sone of the
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staffing crisis and shortages that our
hospitals are seeing across the state. W
still have in place a vaccine mandate that's
artificially limting available care staff
frombeing able to work

From your perspective, what should the
state be doing to help reinvigorate staffing
both in hospitals and our nursing hones,
especially with nore and nore mandat es endi ng
up on the long-termcare side of the
equati on?

M5. GRAUSE: Thank you, Assenbl yman
Jensen, for that question.

| think the short answer is
everything. There -- you know, as you know,
|'ma former energency room nurse, and you
really can't have a healthcare system wi thout
peopl e taking care of people. And the
wor kf orce shortage is conplex, and | think
there are imediate, md-termand | ong-term
initiatives that are in the Governor's budget
that are designed to really inprove that
pi peline and bring nore heal thcare workers

back into clinical settings.
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As you were saying with the vaccine
mandat e, that, as you know, the state has
until March 20th to perfect their appeal in
the Fourth Departnent. And so right now
there's the status quo, certainly, in that.
So we are certainly looking to -- we're
nmonitoring that very closely, but | think
t hat the Governor has made it clear that
heal t hcare workers need to be vacci nated, and
that is the state's position.

But in addition to that, there are
many ot her things that we can do to provide
flexibility. W support the participation in
t he conpact, for exanple. W support many of
the Governor's initiatives to nake pernmanent
many of the workforce flexibilities that were
i ncluded in the executive orders during the
pandem c.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: So goi ng back
to -- we've seen noney in the budget the past
two years for hel ping the nursing homes dea
with some of the staffing nandates that have
been in place. That noney never actually

made it to those providers.
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If the state nore appropriately
invested in reinbursenment rates, would that
al l eviate sone of the backups that we're
seeing in EDs across the state?

M5. GRAUSE: We believe it woul d.

And again, as | alluded to before,
there's systemgridlock. And when there
aren't enough hone care workers, when there
aren't enough nursing home open beds, you
have -- you know, when you think about al
t he open healthcare doors in a community, a
hospital's enmergency room doors are al ways
open. So when all those doors are shut,
patients cone through those energency room
doors.

And patients -- the demand is there,
SO patients are continuing to go into the
hospital and then they cannot be di scharged
out into the comunity. And that's what --
so openi ng those doors el sewhere woul d hel p
wi th hospital energency roonmns.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you. For

t he Senat e.
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So according to the Nurses
Associ ati on, we have 355,000 |icensed nurses
in New York State. But according to federa
BLS data, we have 188, 000 of them working as
nurses. Wiy can't we get nurses that are
already living here and |licensed here to go
to work for you all?

And, followup -- this is for al
three of you -- why are sonme of your
hospital s ending up paying three tines the
anount per hour for traveling nurses? Wat
are we doi ng wong?

MR RASKE: Bea, you want to start, or
woul d you like ne to?

M5. GRAUSE: Sure.

| think that's a fabul ous question. |
think many hospitals are doing a |ot of sou
searching to try to find ways to bring nurses
back into the workforce. | think there
certainly has been burnout fromthe pandem c.
And | also think that the nursing population,
or the workforce, is aging, and so many
retired early. So they may still be actively

i censed, but they have decided to retire.
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So -- but | do think nore research is
needed into that question.

MR RASKE: 1'd say -- |I'd only add,
Senat or, you probably are seeing a
significant wage adjustnent going on within
t he nursing community due to the shortage
i ssue, driven in large part by burnout from
t he pandemi c.

And that is the natural narket forces
as well as collective bargains. W have the
NYSNA contract which just was concl uded,
whi ch al so involved a strike at two maj or
institutions, and then we have a request from
1199 to reopen their contract. And that is
bei ng gi ven serious consideration by the
hospital s that have 1199. And 1199 has been
a great partner on healthcare policy issues
t hroughout the years, so |I'm sure that
reopener will occur.

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUECGER: But we al so heard
froma previous question on the previous
panel that we have a |lot of traveling nurses
who actually aren't traveling. They actually

live within a few counties of where they are




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

237

now wor ki ng.

So | think there's a bigger problem
with all this. And |I'meven hearing that
we're having sort of wars between different
New York City hospitals to take each others’
nur ses.

MR. RASKE: Sure. Absolutely.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: So it seens to ne
we need a nore gl obal solution than just
wat chi ng you havi ng range wars between
di fferent hospitals and ending up with paying
people three tinmes what the actual pernanent
nurses who work for you are making.

MR. RASKE: W certainly would agree
with you.

M5. GRAUSE: | think there are a | ot
of issues in flux there, and | think it does
warrant sone additional review

| would just conment that it is a
nati onal workforce shortage, which I think
has exacerbated nmany of the issues you
rai sed

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECGER:  Yeah, |'m not

sayi ng we don't have a shortage overall. But
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it seens |ike we have nurses that we're not
using as nurses, or nurses who will work on
the traveling nurse nodel because they can
get paid three times -- | guess | would take
the job that paid nme three tinmes what ny

ot her nurses who had, you know, sal aried jobs
take. R ght? | would too.

My time is up. Assenbly.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes. Wo
didn't we -- okay, | guess in order,

Assenbl ynmenber Gandol f o.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

So in last year's budget there was |
think roughly 800 mllion allocated to assi st
hospitals that were struggling due to the
pandemi c. So ny question to you is, have any
of your nenber hospitals seen any of that
noney that the Legislature allocated in the
budget ?

M5. GRAUSE: No. Not to our
knowl edge. You worked very hard to put that
nmoney in the budget for hospitals |ast year,

and | think as you heard, the Medicaid
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director testified that that noney was spent,
and we believe on the federal match for the
DPT program So we feel very strongly that

t hat funding should be restored for

hospi tal s.

MR, RASKE: | would only add that if
you take a |l ook at that panel that |I referred
to earlier as it relates to the hospital
mar gi ns, we superinposed the provider relief
fund that the feds gave us.

And if they did not provide that
relief, we would have a wholesale crisis in
New Yor k. Because the margins woul d have
been dropping like a brick, and it would be
awful. And ny thanks to our |eadership in
the Congress for doing that. But it has not
been augnented, Bea, fromthe |egislators
poi nt of view.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  Thank you.

You all spoke of, you know, the fiscal
troubl es that hospitals and heal t hcare
facilities are facing. It would be great if
the noney that's allocated for a purpose --

to assist those struggling hospitals --
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actually gets there. So thank you very much

M5. GRAUSE: Couldn't agree nore.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: No nore Senate,
right?

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: No nore Senat e,
j ust doubl e- checki ng.

It's yours, Assenbly.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: Al right.
Assenbl ynmenber Bronson.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

And Ms. Kilner, thank you for
correcting the record. | don't know if you
were here earlier, but 250,000 --

M5. KILMER  Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  -- is woefully
under st at ed.

But nore inportantly, we're talking
about 340B, which saves |lives. So whether
you say 250,000 or you say 2.3 mllion, we
need to save those |ives.

M5. KILMER  Yes, exactly.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you for
t hat .
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You nentioned, under the conprom se,
that we're neeting what the administration's
goal s are and what they're trying to do. And
we're neeting themwi th nore certainty, nore
reliability, and not dependent on what CMS
does and things of that nature. But you al so
stated that we're saving conmunity

pharmaci sts. Can you expand on that a little

bit?

MS. KILMER | can.

So we believe that the alternative
bill, alternative | anguage does actually

sol ve the conmunity pharmaci sts' issues. The
i ssues that they've raised are their
di spensi ng fees, objective drug pricing, and
restrictions on the anti-conpetitive business
practices of the pharmacy benefit managers.
And all three of those things are
specifically addressed in S5136.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you.
Appreci ate that.

M . Raske, you've nentioned the
troubl es our hospitals are facing. Certainly

inny district, in nmy area, the University of
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Rochest er Medi cal Center, Rochester Regional,
have shared with nme their nunbers. They've
al so shared how the 5 percent will be eaten
up by the 340B. They both participate in
t hat program

But nore inportantly, that we are now
inacrisis in nmeting out patient quality
care because of the staffing issues, because
nur si ng homes have vacant beds but they don't
have staffing and they don't have the
rei nbursenent rate to bring in nore staffing.
So they can't accept patients who are ready
for nursing home care. They can't nove
patients from enmergency roons up to other
levels -- lower levels of care in the
hospi t al

| too support a 20 percent
rei mbursenent rate increase. But the
guestion is what -- are there any strategies
in this budget to address those concerns? O
do we have to rely on the rei nbursenent rate
i ncrease, which we're going to fight for.
But are there any strategies that the

adm nistration's fighting for that neets that
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crisis?

MR. RASKE: Well, the budget
recommendati ons that we are tal king about
i ncl ude conponent parts. One is, of course,
a rate increase and the nention of that on
t he hospital side and the nursing hone side
as well. Another component part is to wash
out the 340B inpact, which gives you a net
zero. So if you restore that, that would
hel p provi de support on the rate side.

Then a reconmendation is also, for
financially struggling hospitals, to add
700 mllion back to them plus an additi onal
amount, which we think could be in the
nei ghbor hood of another half a billion
dollars --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

MR RASKE: -- to that fund.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BRONSON:  Thank you.

MR RASKE: And that should take care
of it, sir.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber

Gonzal ez- Roj as.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you all so nmuch. | really appreciate your
advocacy specifically on 340B -- actually,
all the issues you're fighting for. But
t hi nk the connecti on between the | ow
rei nbursenent rate and the 340B situation
dynamic is really elucidating.

| want to raise something that I
rai sed earlier about coverage for inmm grant
New Yorkers. As you know, there m ght be an
opportunity, through the -- a waiver, through
the Essential Plan, in order to expand
coverage, and we're finding out the dynam cs
alittle bit nore.

But right now, as | understand it, we
spend $550 mi|lion on energency Medi caid.
Can you tal k about what that neans in termns
of the infrastructure of the hospital and
mai ntaining its health and wel | ness? And
al so, what could that noney be used for if
we're able to get Essential Plan coverage for
our inmgrant popul ations that are now
relying on energency Medi cai d?

M5. GRAUSE: | can't speak
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specifically to that proposal, but we have

| ong supported coverage for all who need it.
And so | think having coverage for inmmgrants
woul d hel p hospitals in that the services
that they provide woul d have sonme neasure of
rei nmbursenent. So it would help.

MR. RASKE: | can tell you this, from
the Greater New York Hospital Association
point of view. W believe everybody shoul d
be treated with dignity and respect and the
best possible hospital care, and that's every
human being that we see. And if there's a
proposal to expand coverage, we're init. W
support it.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:  Because
as you know, you know, those who can't get
preventative care are going to the energency
room when their situations are untenable, and
it will actually cost us a |ot nore noney --
and not just in dollars, but in the health
and wel | -bei ng of our New Yorkers.

So thank you so nuch

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber

Kel | es.
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(O f the record.)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN KELLES: So a coupl e of
things. |'mcurious of your assessnent --
this is what |"mseeing in this budget --

t hat overall there have been cuts on the
operational side of things, cuts and not
needed i ncreases in wages. And the noney
that's been added has been primarily capital,
one-time investnments. |'mlooking at your
list here: $1 billion capital fund, and yet
700 mllion safety net reduction; $83 million
in Indigent Care Pool.

| s that generally your assessment or
your experience that's happening with this
budget ?

MR RASKE: Well, we've seen the --
there's a couple of phenonmena going on -- can
you hear me? Yes, okay -- one of which is
because the operating support of the
hospitals is so m serable, they have cut off
their capital expenditures, about half of the
hospitals -- right, Bea?

M5. GRAUSE: More than hal f, yes.

MR RASKE: -- have curtailed their
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maj or capital expansion plans. Now, that's
going to ripple out throughout the economny.
The amount of noney in the budget, a
billion dollars that the Governor has put in,
is great. But it's probably a nmultiple of
that that is actually needed. Particularly

if we're not getting the support fromthe

operations end of the equation. Is that
clear?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: | do have one
guestion -- yes, absolutely.

VWhat will be the inpact of the
$83 mllion Indigent Care Pool cut? What
woul d that |ook |ike?

MR RASKE: You know, | don't even
understand why they did that --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: | don't either,
but 1'm asking what will that |ook Iike.

MR. RASKE: | don't -- Bea, naybe you
can explain it to me.

M5. GRAUSE: | nean, | think what
you're speaking to | think is generally
correct, in that when we tal k about a

structural fiscal crisis, it's both chronic
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and acute. And the chronic part is because
of the years and years of no investnent in
Medicaid rates --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: In the
oper ati ng.

M5. GRAUSE: -- in the operating side.
And then you have the 340B policy and the cut
to indigent care, and all of -- it nore than
undercuts the 5 percent inpatient rate

increase. So it really doesn't change

anything around -- it doesn't create an
investrment in the infrastructure. It's a
zero-sum-- it's less than a zero-sum gane on

t he operating side.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: That's what |'m
| ooki ng at too.

M5. GRAUSE: And then the billion
dollars in capital, et cetera, is al
one-time dollars. And again, | think to
Ken's point, is hospitals aren't in a
financial position anynore to take advantage
of the capital

(Overtal k.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: 1'mgoing to
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grab ny |ast 33 seconds.

Yes. Just really quickly, 1'm seeing
these increases in profits of the healthcare
plans. Do you think that they are passing
through to you all the anmpbunt of legally
required direct paynments to you that they're
required of --

MR. RASKE: | think absolutely not.

MS. GRAUSE: No.

MR. RASKE: And here's the problem
You know, when you hear sone of the -- when
we put the proposal of pay and revi ew out
there, as an exanple, or site of service --
people will say, well, gee, this will sonehow
involve -- | don't know why this thing keeps
on going off on ne here, but --

(Laughter.)

MR RASKE: Is it nme or is it
sonmething | ate?

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

MR. RASKE: How can you explain this
without this -- with this clock keeping on

beepi ng?
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But what -- what the -- sone of the
opponents to this proposal are saying, Well,
it's going to increase premuns. | say
bal oney. |If you take a | ook at the
profitability of these conpanies and what
their market caps are and what's going on on
Wall Street, they're outperform ng the Dow
Jones. Why? They've got ny noney, that's
why. And that's the problem

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Thank you.

MR. RASKE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Pal mesano.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Good
afternoon. M question -- well, it's not so
much as -- | want to address it to Bea, if |
may, just because a ot of HANYS is in ny
district.

M5. GRAUSE: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Particularly |
know in the earlier panel there was much
di scussi on and questions surroundi ng the

i ssue of pay and resolve. And can you
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briefly talk about the inpact this proposal
woul d have on your nenber hospital s?

M5. GRAUSE: Sure. It's really about
cash flow And we think that, you know,
havi ng emergency services and inpatient
adm ssions that are subsequent to an
energency stay, having the payer having to
pay that within 30 days -- now we have pronpt
pay | aws on the books, but there's a | ot of
ways that the payers -- and they do -- del ay
paynent .

So it's really about cash flow. And I
think the payers will come in and they'l|
tell you that it's going to raise prem uns,
as Ken was saying. W don't think that's
true, because again, | can tell you from
per sonal experience, when patients are in the
energency room there's an energency. And
that realtine care should have realtine
paynent attached to it.

So we think it's really for hospitals.
The benefit is cash flow W do not think
there will be an overall increase in prem uns

as a result, because those clainms should be
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pai d.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Actually, 1'm
al so hearing froma lot of hospitals in ny
district, sone that are associated -- they
have ownership in long-termcare facilities.
And | know that the new nurse staffing ratios
that were put in place require, | believe,
three and a half hours of direct patient care
per day.

And in order to be conpliant with
that, |'ve heard that there's hardships
because they can't find enough certified
nursing aides. And that's really -- sone
have had to cl ose down beds on units because
of that. And it really has had a negative
i npact on rei nbursenment opportunities, and

al so jeopardi zes the 40/ 70 rul e.

Can you el aborate on that? | nean,
what can we do to -- and we al so have to
i ncrease rei nbursement because -- and how

that's problematic?
M5. CGRAUSE: | think -- as Ken and |
have both spoken, | think it really does boi

down to, at this point, wage increases.
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Because in -- across the state nore than
2,000 nursing hone beds have cl osed since
before the pandemc. And that -- that
closure in large part has happened because of
the requirenments of the ratios and the
inability for nursing homes to find qualified
wor kers.

So raising wages would help with that.
Hopefully it would help to open those beds.
And it would reduce that system gridl ock that
| was tal king about before.

MR RASKE: Ditto.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Ken,

20 seconds if you want to add on there.
Anyt hing el se that you have to say? You're
good? kay.

MR RASKE: That was it.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Perfect, thank
you.

M5. GRAUSE: He said ditto.

MR. RASKE: | said ditto, yeah.
woul d agree with it 100 percent.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Then | gl adly
yi el d back ny 10 seconds to the chair.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Ckay. | think
|"mhere to close. Two things.

First, on hospital closures, your
testinmony is in direct contrast with the
department in ternms of having enough
resources to nmake sure that hospitals don't
close. Is it -- do you believe that we're
going to see hospital closures if the budget
goes forward as it is?

MR. RASKE: You know, this is a really
i mportant question, Madam Chairman. And the
answer is -- | think I nmade nention of it --
we're trying to give the departnment nore
tools to have by addi ng back noney that they
deducted fromlast year. |f they spent
everything last year to bail out hospitals,
how can they have $700 mllion less this
year? It doesn't add up, does it?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: Wl l, maybe --

MR. RASKE: And |I'mgoing to give them
nore noney - -

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  No,
understand. | understand. But do you

actually think there's going to be closures?
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And/ or what services are elimnated when you
see less nmoney? | nean, that's really what

we're going to be struggling with too, as a
comunity.

M5. GRAUSE: So hospital s already
today are -- you know, are cutting back on
services like clinic hours and things |ike
that in order to, again, bring those expenses
back in line with existing revenues.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So what are the
ki nds of services that we won't see in our --
probably in our nobst vul nerable areas?

M5. GRAUSE: Well, 1| think hospitals,
just to answer it in a different way, they do
everyt hing possible to preserve | CU
energency room OR, all of that. That's
core. But | think, you know, educati onal
progranms -- again, clinic hours -- are things
that hospitals are |ooking twice at in order
to reduce their expenses.

One of the things that we are seeing
and that we are having nany, many hospitals
report fromacross the state is bal ance sheet

erosion. So they -- nonth after nmonth, their
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expenses exceed their revenues, and they
are -- their balance sheet is -- is eroding
from --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So | have one
nore question, and |I'mgoing to squeeze it
in.

M5. GRAUSE: Ckay, go ahead.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  And it has to
do with workforce. You know, the departnent
is putting forward two initiatives, one to
support conpact inter-nursing, and the other
is to support change in scope, you know, for
PAs and ot her EMS and ot her areas.

Where do you fall on both of those two
pr oposal s?

MR. RASKE: Support them

M5. GRAUSE: We support both, yup.

MR. RASKE: Absol utely.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  You want to
el aborate a little bit on SED s concern about
| ack of supervision in ternms of nurses in
particul ar?

M5. GRAUSE: We don't think the data

supports that. | think Acting Conmm ssioner
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McDonal d said that there really is no quality
concer n.

And | think as far as scope of
practice is concerned, the practice of
nmedi ci ne changes every single day. And |
think taking a | ook at scope of practice in
light of the shortage is |ong overdue.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Thank you. M
time is up.

Oh, sorry, we have one nore
Assenbl ynenber. Assenbl ynmenber Byr nes.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN BYRNES: My apol ogi es,

t hought M. Jensen had told you. W
apol ogi es.

This will be very quick, and it's
really a question to the entire panel, going
back just for a second to the staffing
shortages, which we all agree are profound.

Has t here been any di scussion yet as
to the feasibility of rehiring workers that
were fired sinply for not getting the COVID
vacci ne, now that the pandemic is over? |
asked the sane question |last year, | believe.

And there are people who want to work that
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were let go. They were healthcare heroes.
Any di scussion about allowi ng themto be
rehired? Oherw se, great enployees.

M5. GRAUSE: Under current |aw, they
cannot do that because there is no all owance
for a religious exenption. |[|f that changes
under state law, then I think hospitals would
consider that. But currently, no.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: And that's
because of the Governor's position.

M5. GRAUSE: Yes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BYRNES: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  She's done. W
are done.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, we are
done.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PAULI N:  Thank you very
much.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Well, we clearly
have far nore questions, but we have to |et
you go. So thank you very much for your
testi nmony today.

And our next panel will be the

Pri mary Care Devel opnent Corporation
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Loui se Cohen, and the Conmunity Health Care
Associ ati on of New York State, Rose Duhan

And unfortunately David Sandman from New Yor k
Heal t h Foundati on had to cancel.

But the testinony of everyone who has
submitted testinony, whether they are
testifying or not, has been distributed via
el ectronic source to all Senators and
4, and is up on the web for anyone else in
the State of New York to read at their
| ei sure.

So shall we start with Primary Care
Devel opnent Cor poration?

M5. COHEN. Thank you for inviting us
here today. M nane is Louise Cohen, and |I'm
the CEO of the Primary Care Devel opnent
Corporation, which is a community devel opnent
financial institution and not-for-profit here
in New York State.

Primary care saves lives, it inproves
i ndi vidual and community health, and it's
central to health equity. And it's the only
part of the healthcare systemthat reduces

health disparities and total healthcare
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costs. Yet primary care gets only about 5 to
7 cents on the healthcare dollar -- not even
hal f of what experts say it shoul d.

Last year this Legislature passed the
primary care reform conm ssion | egislation,
whi ch woul d have quantified primry care
spending in this --

SENATCR RI VERA: Excuse nme a second.

Fol ks, pl ease take your conversations
outside so we can hear the testinony.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

M5. COHEN:. -- would have quantified
primary care spending in New York State and
make recommendations to increase it. The
Governor vetoed the bill, as you know, but
the need for increased investnment in primary
care renmins urgent.

The proposed Executive Budget offers
several primary care enhancenents which we
support, but it falls short of nore gl obal
changes needed to establish primary care as
t he centerpiece around which healthcare in

New York State is designed. One of the
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things we know froma recent report is that
primary care spending in New York has
decreased from 2016 to the current date.

We have three specific asks. The
first is the Community Health Care Revol ving
Loan Fund, which was created by this
Legislature in 2015 and adm ni stered by PCDC
It had an initial investnent of $19.5 mllion
to provide affordable |oan capital for
eligible primary care/ behavioral health
providers. It's now fully conmtted.

We ask that you infuse this fund with
an additional $19.5 mllion, and that the
fund' s purpose be expanded to include debt
refinanci ng and debt restructuring, both of
which are critically inportant to the
financial stability of community health
providers in the current high-inflation,
hi gh-interest-rate environnent.

And we support the Health Care
Facilities Transformati on Fund, but urge the
Legislature to, as in years past, set aside a
certain amount -- up to 15 percent at the

| east -- for primary care.
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And in addition we want to let you
know that the transformation fund is only
rei nbursable. Wat that nmeans is community
provi ders, particularly small ones, have to
have upfront cash in order to actually build
their facilities, and a nunber of grantees,

t herefore, have turned to PCDC and the
revolving fund to provide bridge capital.
And without the capital, the revol ving fund
and the transformation funds may wel |l be
unusabl e in this next year.

And | want to then, finally, about the
340B program give a very distinct
perspective froma community |ender. As a
comunity lender -- and we really lend to
very grassroots comrunity heal t hcare
providers in New York State -- we can't
consi der one-year funds as substantial for an
organi zation to take on debt. In other
words, we can't lend to soneone who says
“I"ve only got this for a year," when the
| oan m ght be three years, it mght be five
or seven years.

So that's actually really inportant.
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And we are a conmunity lender; that is also
true for banks. So what you're saying here
with the 340B carveout, whether, you know --
and agai n, whether or not the state plan
anmendnent goes through -- that that is a

| ong-term problem for conmmunity health.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Rose.

M5. DUHAN. Thank you, Louise. W
agree with the comrents that were just nmade
by PCDC

Good afternoon. |'m Rose Duhan. [|I'm
the CEO of the Community Health Care
Associ ation of New York State. As the
primary care provider for 2.3 mllion
residents of New York State, 60 percent of
whi ch are covered by Medicaid, community
health centers are foundational to inproving
popul ati on health and wel | - bei ng t hrough
access to conprehensive primary care, dental
care, and behavioral health services.

Community health centers provide care
that is centered on health equity and

reduci ng raci al and geographic disparities in
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heal t h out cones. Recognition of the

i nportance of primary care included in the
Governor's budget nust be matched by an
investment in community health centers.

Along with many of ny col |l eagues that
have already tal ked about this, we ask the
Legislature to repeal or delay the pharnmacy
benefit carveout that will result in
$260 million in | osses across the health
center network. Although the Governor's
budget includes an adm nistrative funding
set-aside for health centers, an April 1
transition will result in an imediate | oss
of cash flow at a tine when costs have
escal ated and conpetition for |abor has
reached crisis levels, as well as what was
nmenti oned regardi ng the concerns of Medicaid
redeterm nations resulting in people |osing
t heir Medi caid coverage.

CHCANYS supports Senate 5136 -- thank
you, Senator -- the alternative that would
repeal the carveout while achieving many of
the state's policy goals.

CHCANYS al so requests the Legislature
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direct DOHto work with comunity health
centers to assess and redesign Medicaid
paynent rates based on the conprehensive
nodel of primary care delivered by health
centers, to bring reinbursenent of health
centers costs of care into the current
century.

Heal th centers' reinbursenment rates
are based on costs from 1999 and 2000. A
noder ni zed paynent basis, to be inplenented
in Cctober 2024, is necessary to achieve the
goals set in this year's budget for primry
care.

The increases in Medicaid primary care
rates in the Governor's proposed budget do
not apply to community health centers, and
rate reform as was nentioned, is needed to
ensure the primary care safety net is broad
enough and strong enough.

Thirdly, we ask the Legislature to
anend | ast year's enacted budget |anguage
related to telehealth parity, ensuring health
centers are able to receive their ful

paynent for audi ovisual and audio tel ehealth
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visits, regardl ess of patient or provider
| ocation, especially to protect access to
behavi oral health services.

Pl ease refer to our witten testinony
for nore coments. Thank you for the
opportunity to testify, and |I'm happy to
answer any questi ons.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any Senators? Senator Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

| wanted to see if you could educate
us about -- we've heard as far as --
certainly about 340B, we've heard about what,
just in very vague terns -- very real terns,
certainly. But | want to hear nore
specifically, what is it that you actually
use those savings for? Could you give us
sonme exanpl es of sone of the things that you
woul d not be able to do were this program
to -- were you not able to avail yourself of
t he program anynore?

M5. DUHAN: Yes. Well, | know that
the Medicaid director nentioned | think a

250, 000 nunber, which is people -- that may




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

267

be the nunber of drugs purchased with 340B.
But as was nentioned, that's certainly not

t he nunber of people that are inpacted by the
use of these savings.

And one of the main purposes of
these -- or one of the large, w despread uses
of the funding is to purchase
pharmaceuticals, to pay for prescription
drugs for individuals who are uninsured.
community health centers have an uni nsured
rate of about 13 percent, so about two and a
hal f tinmes the statewi de rate of uninsured.
And so that 340B funding is really critica
to ensuring that people who are uninsured can
have access to prescription drugs, to
pharmaci es -- to pharmacy services.

Health centers also use a |ot of the
funding for -- so to fund school -based heal th
centers, sonmething that really has been
especially critical since children are
returni ng back to school follow ng the
pandem c. A lot of unnet need, a |ot of
catching up on -- as was nentioned --

vacci nes, and a | ot of behavioral health
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needs. So the school -based health centers
are really critical in terms of ensuring that
children have the full access to services

t hat they need.

Additionally, a lot of outreach and
care nmanagenent. So ensuring that people
under stand what kinds of services are
avai l abl e, helping themto follow through
with the care that they need, connecting them
to alot of the services that they would
ot herwi se not be able to connect to.

SENATCR RI VERA: These woul d not --
you woul d not be able to do these things, or
the centers that you represent would not be
able to do these things if they weren't --

M5. DUHAN. That is correct. Many of
t hese services are not reinbursed or
rei nbursable. bviously, for someone who's
uni nsured, there is no paynment. So 340B
really provides the funding to support those
servi ces.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you -- oh,

"' m sorry.
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M5. COHEN: No, if | could just say,
we | ook at everyone's bal ance sheets as we
deci de about |oans. And what we see is that
there's an extraordinary difference between
t he revenue fromrei nbursenment -- the 340B is
unrestricted dollars that enables a health
center to do, quite frankly, whatever they
need to do in order to serve their patients.

And so these things that Rose
mentioned | think are there. But let's
remenber that this is alnost a form of
val ue- based paynent. W all want to give
t hese organi zations -- which have good
outcones, right? These are high-quality
providers -- to be able to provide whatever
service they think that person needs at that
time. And these are really unrestricted
dol | ars.

But we know fromtheir bal ance sheets
t hese conmunity providers would actually not
be able to survive, nany of them wthout it.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUECGER:  Excuse ne for

cutting you off.
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MS. COHEN:  Sorry.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Yes, | think
|"'mthe only one.

Nobody questions the inportance and
need for primary care. Wat can we do -- or
what can you do, what do you need, you
know -- and resources, of course. But in
terms of providing nore access, in terns of
provi di ng nore services, you know, what are
t hose things that could be done that would go
toward that goal ?

M5. COHEN:. So | think what's really
important to recognize is -- you know, you
just heard testinony that if a hospital is
squeezed, the first thing they're going to do
is close clinic hours. Right? That's the
anbul atory care of a hospital. |[It's not
their core function, but it brings patients
inand it provides them-- they provide a | ot
of primary care in this state. But we also
know t hat comrunity health centers and
i ndependent physician practices do as well.

But there's actually large parts of




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

271

the state that actually have insufficient
access to primary care. There aren't enough
primary care providers, waits are incredibly
long. And so what we think is an overal
shift in the balancing of our healthcare
systemto really pay what other

i ndustrialized countries pay for them which
is 12 to 14 cents on the dollar, spread out
anong a | ot of things.

So it's not just one thing. | nean,
certainly we think it's sites. But it's also
maki ng sure that there's a robust workforce,
maki ng sure that hours are avail able for
peopl e who need to have off -- you know,
of f-work hours to see their providers.
There's a whol e host of things that it can be
used for.

But at the end of the day, the
four-to-seven -- you know, 4 percent on the
dollar isn't even close to what we need. And
we know that those things will be shuttered
as these budget cuts happen, so --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Are there -- is

nore needed in certain regions of the state
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than in others?

M5. COHEN: So we did a report that
we'd be glad to send around that showed where
primary care access was limted in terns of
t he nunber of primary care providers.

There are certainly parts of the state
that have actually very few primary care
provi ders per population. So it's an apples
and appl es conparison. But we know t hat
there are al so pockets of real poverty,
| ow-i ncome communities that have been
di sinvested historically. And so those
comunities, we would argue, actually need
nore primary care than less. And that's true
for rural comunities as well as for urban
conmuni ti es.

So | think we try to use a coupl e of
different nmetrics to | ook at whether there's
sufficient access. But we would say in many
parts of the city in New York City, and nany
parts of upstate, there are actually rea
pockets where there is just insufficient
access. And that is one of the reasons why

peopl e do go to enmergency roons and why they
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do have -- you know, have conditions that
are -- need to be then treated either as an
energency or as --

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN PAULI N So just one
final thing. If you were working for the
Department of Health as opposed to being a
reci pient of funds from you know, what
incentives or what program would you put in
pl ace to expand that m ssion?

M5. COHEN: So | think it has to be in
a | ot of places.

So we applaud that the -- we think
t hat the reinmbursenent needs to be raised.
We need the overall investnent in prinmary
care to be much nore than it currently is,
both on the capital side and on the other
si de.

It's sort of |looking at all the
things. Like a workforce program should
be -- there's a set-aside for prinmary care --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  We'll have to
take that offline. But thank you so nuch.

M5. COHEN:. Good questi on.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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| think just nme. Ch, hello -- oh, no,
you're for the Assenbly.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: Onh, sorry.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: That' s okay.
Sorry.

So as | get older, | renmenber -- |
used to study cost-benefit analysis in grad
school, which was a hundred years ago, and --

M5. COHEN: That's when our rates were
set, about a hundred years ago, yes.

(Laughter.)

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  But |'ve al so
tried to keep up on reading even a hundred
years later, and |'mpretty sure that the
research shows that primary care is not only
| ess expensive than hospital care, it
actual |y decreases the nunber of people who
need nore expensive hospital care because
t hey get sicker and then end up in the
hospi t al

Qur policies seemto be in reverse in
this state. |s that correct?

M5. COHEN. | think that's right.

mean, a recent California Healthcare
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Foundati on study showed that with |arger
investments in primary care, they saw better
quality, better patient experience, and
| oner -- fewer hospital visits and energency
roomvisits and total cost of care. And they
actually estimated that there would be
billions of dollars in savings, even in the
first year, if we rebal anced the healthcare
systemtowards prinmary care.

| think the problemis when soneone
presents at the emergency room because they
haven't been to primary care, you still have
to take care of them And so we see these --
we have trouble noving to sort of upfront
prevention because it's hard to say, Onh, if
you prevent one hospitalization, now you' ve
downstream you know, provided, you know,
better health at fewer costs, because today
what we see is what we see.

But we think that the primary care
systemis made up of hospitals, FQHCs,
i ndependent practices. No one should lose in
this -- in this prospect. W want to see al

t hese parts of the healthcare systembuild up
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their primary care conponents, to

Assenbl ymenber Paulin's question, so that
it's not just -- you know, it's not that
there's a primary care system over here and
the rest of the healthcare system over here.
We think it's distributed.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECGER: But there is data
showing that if we had nore primary care,
particularly in the underserved areas you al
are both tal king about, that that would be
actually, financially and healthcare-w se, a
win for us.

M5. DUHAN: Yes. The healthcare
centers spend a significant anount of their
caregi ving addressing chronic conditions, and
if those kind of conditions aren't addressed,
they progress, it beconmes nore expensive, it
results in worse outcones. So really the
care that people provide -- the care the
health centers provi de makes the difference
in ternms of hel ping people nanage their
di abet es, hel pi ng peopl e nanage their
hypertension so they aren't becom ng sicker

and then nore costly.
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M5. COHEN: But we can't do it by
cutting costs of those providers today. You
have to increase the primary care --

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | ' m sorry that
our third panelist couldn't be here with us,
New York Heal th Foundation. But | hope that
any studies that you are aware of that m ght
verify what | believe would be very useful

So thank you very nuch

M5. COHEN. We hoped that the prinmary
care conm ssion that was vetoed by the
Governor woul d have hel ped with that. But we
believe that there's data that we can pul
t oget her and that we can forge a new approach
to this, with your help.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any ot her Assenbly?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  One nore.

Assenbl ymenber Jessica Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  Thank
you both so much

| was reviewi ng the testinony, and |
understand that CHCs are not allowed to

collect information on i gration status.
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So you don't have a sense of the nunbers of
peopl e who are undocunented --

M5. DUHAN: We do not collect --
health centers do not collect information on
i mm gration status.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS: Wi ch |
t hank you for, for --

M5. DUHAN. Yes, for good reasons.

As | said, about 13 percent of health
center patients are uninsured. And given the
broad i nsurance coverage in New York State,
we do think that the mpjority of that
popul ation is -- are people who are not
eligible for insurance because of their
i mm gration status.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  One of
the things we're fighting for is to expand
the Essential Plan. | sawthat it was |isted
as a priority to insure that undocunented
peopl e are covered.

Can you tal k about what that inpact
m ght be on your systenf? Actually, this is
for both of you.

M5. DUHAN: Sure. Well, we estinate,
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as | said, about 300,000 patients that
there's no paynment for, there's no

rei nmbursenent. So that would be -- having
rei mbursenent for those patients would be a
significant investnment in health centers to
allow themto continue to do the work that
t hey do, to hel p them expand.

| think this is a time when we don't
want to see health centers contracting. As
we said, there's significant need throughout
the state, and health centers woul d wel cone
the opportunity to serve nore patients.
They're seeing the need, both immgrant --
nmean, there's certainly been a very big
i nflux of inmmgrant population with people
comng in who need a |lot of care, nore care,
nore acute kinds of care, because they
haven't had any access to services for a |ong
time.

So having that reinbursenment for those
patients would make a big difference in terns
of being able to really reach a broader
popul ati on and ensure that people who need

care can get it.
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M5. COHEN: And | think you pointed
out that New York State's going to pay for
this one way or the other.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Yes.

M5. COHEN:. We're going to pay for it
wi th energency Medicaid or we're going to pay
for it upfront.

| would argue that people will be
healthier and it will cost less if we pay for
it upfront.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you for that.

And al so, Rose, you nentioned a
popul ation that | actually haven't heard al
day, is children and school - based heal th
centers. |If you can just expound, in the
27 seconds you have, just to tal k about what
t hat would nean for our children.

M5. DUHAN: Yes, many of our health
centers operate school -based health centers.
And as | said, it's a critical point of
access for children to get care froma broad
range of services -- nedical, dental

behavioral. Especially dental care; it's
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really been critical. That's sonething that
was postponed, along with nany of the other
heal t hcare services during the pandemc. So
a lot of work to catch children up on the
dental care that they need. And we -- that's
a critical piece of the work that health
centers do.

M5. COHEN: The M| bank Menorial Fund
reported that in 2020 in New York State,
30 percent of children had no usual source of
care. A usual source of care is really a
school - based health center or a conmunity
health center or a provider -- a doctor in
the community, pediatrician. That's really
astoundi ng and very concerning, | would say.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thirty
percent -- | want to repeat that.

M5. COHEN. Thirty percent -- we can
send you a link to the report, but it's
30 percent of children have no usual source
of care in 2020.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  That's
really concerning. Thank you for that.

Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

| just want to ask if -- Rose in
particular, if you have a programor a
proposal on rebasing that you could send us

the information. Wen | say "us," to Hel ene
and to the Senator here, and to Liz, and
they'Il get it to the rest of us.

M5. DUHAN:. Absolutely. W'Ill be
happy to share that with the chairs.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

So I think we've covered all the
guestions from people, so | want to thank you
both very rmuch for being with us today.

And our next panel: New York Lawers
for the Public Interest; New York Health Pl an
Associ ation; Health Care for Al New York
and Coalition of New York State Public Health
Pl ans/ New York State Coalition of M.TC and
PACE Plans -- that is one group, | believe.

And for people who are foll ow ng
along, if you would Iike, you can head down
closer to the front, Panel D, to be ready

after Panel C Medi caid Matters New York
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Enpire Center; New York Association of
County Health O ficials; and Housi ng WrKks.

Good afternoon. Wiy don't we start at
my left, your right, and just each introduce
yoursel f and do your testinony.

M5. DUNKER:  Thank you.

My name is Amanda Dunker. | am --

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Bring the mc
cl oser so we can hear you, sorry.

M5. DUNKER:  Thank you.

My name is Amanda Dunker. |'m here on
behal f of the Health Care for Al New York
coalition and a director of health policy at
the Community Service Society of New York
where -- it's on the steering conmttee for
Health Care for Al New York

| wanted to start by addressing sone
coments we heard earlier about the
1332 wai ver and the issue of covering
undocunent ed i mm grants and ot her people who
are excluded from public health prograns
because of their inmmgration status.

So I think we heard earlier that the

Department of Health was saying that they did
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not include immgrants in that waiver because
they felt that it mght be rejected. Wich
we woul d argue we shoul d ask and not
anticipate a rejection.

| think another thing we heard is that
t hey thought this $2 billion surplus would
not be sufficient to cover the popul ation
that we're hoping to cover. So when you | ook
at the waiver that's proposed, the rates in
that wai ver are already quite substantially
hi gher than the current cost of the program
the Essential Plan. But even so, it stil
doesn't seemto add up to $2 billion or nore.
And that's not including offsets |ike the
$500 million we'd save in energency Medi caid,
whi ch | think other people have nenti oned.

So in our estimates the $2 billion
surplus would actually be sufficient to cover
t he 245, 000 peopl e.

And then our final comments are just
if there's a concern that the noney's not
enough, the state has, for exanple, proposed
cappi ng the Medicaid buy-in program W

coul d consider capping this programif it hit
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this $2 billion limt and just at |east sone
peopl e would get that relief instead of
sayi ng 911 can have the coverage.

There's obviously a | ot of benefits to
i nsuring nore people, one of which is if your
hospitals close. Another that is a priority
for us is that insurance is the best way to
prevent mnedical debt. Six percent of people
in New York State overall have nedical debt
in their credit reports, but it's very high
in alot of places. Rural areas, rural
counties in particular, experience really
hi gh rates of nedical debt. In Chemung
County, 27 percent of everybody who |ives
t here has nedical debt in their credit
report.

And then if you look within sone of
our nore urban counties |ike Onondaga County,
it disproportionately affects peopl e of
color. So overall in Onondaga County it's
14 percent of people. But if you look at zip
codes where nost people are people of color,
it junps up to 26 percent of them have

nmedi cal debt in their credit report.
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So we are arguing that the hospital
financial assistance lawis one way to
prevent mnedi cal debt. The Executive Budget
proposal includes a change to that |aw that
woul d create a uniformfinancial assistance
policy at every hospital in the state, and
then a uniformapplication. This would fix a
| ot of problens that we see that prevent
people fromgetting the discounts that they
shoul d get, that they are eligible for under
that |aw. Because we see a | ot of
applications that are not conpliant with the
law as it exists now

So we're really excited -- is that
time? Oh, okay, sorry.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much. Next?

MR LINZER: Good afternoon. |'m
Eric Linzer, president and CEO of the
New York Health Plan Association. Thank you
for the opportunity to testify today.

|"mgoing to highlight four itenms from
our witten testinmony and requests that we

have. First is our opposition to the
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pay- and- pursue proposal, Part J. Second is
our request to restore the funding to the
Medi cai d Managed Care Quality Program Third
woul d be our request to repeal the pharnacy
carveout. And finally, our opposition to the
proposed changes to the MLTC programin
Part |.

On Part J, pay and pursue, this
provi sion is opposed by unions, enployers,
heal th plans and others that are concerned
about the affordability of healthcare in
New York. The proposal would create a
cunber sone and | engthy process that could
take up to 10 nonths for plans to be able to
recoup any paynents that should not have been
pai d under this proposal

| do want to address two comments that
came up earlier today, one by the Medicaid
director, who indicated that NYSH P woul d not
be subject to this. That's incorrect.
NYSH P and any nunicipality that gets its
coverage through NYSH P woul d be subject to
this provision, so there would be a cost for

both the state and rmnunicipalities.
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And second, the coment by the G eater
New Yor k Hospital Association about the
percentage of denials. Actually, quarterly
data fromthe Departnent of Financi al
Services has indicated that the nunber of
deni al s that occur actually -- you know,
actually rule in favor of the health plan
upon external appeal. So the coment that it
typically rules in favor of the hospital is
incorrect. W ask you to reject this
pr oposal .

On the Quality pools, certainly we
think this is essential. The Executive
Budget, you know, elimnates the pools in
their entirety, totaling about $110 mllion.
These funds are utilized for critical
prograns including prevention, wellness,
outreach to a very vul nerabl e, you know,
popul ation. And Dr. Schwartz is going to
speak in nore detail about it, but we would
urge you to restore this funding as part of
t he final budget.

Third, you' ve heard earlier today

about reversing the pharmacy carveout. W
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agree with many of the -- with the coments
t hat have been said about the inportance of
not allowing this to nove forward. You know,
but one comrent that hasn't come up is really
about the savings.

Wil e the state has indicated that
t here woul d be about $420 million worth of
savi ngs, when the funds that get disbursed to
various entities -- FQHCs, others -- it's
really only about $42 mllion. W don't
think this is sufficient, you know, savings
for the level of disruption. Plus a Wakely
anal ysis that we had conm ssioned | ast year
indicated that it costs the state about
$235 mllion annually.

And then, finally, you know, Part | of
t he managed | ong-term care changes -- | ast
year you may recall the administration tried
to nove forward with a procurenent, and
there's been di scussion about the interim
report. We would ask that before noving
forward with this, there really needs to be a
full analysis of that report.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Next ?

MS. ALBI STEGU ADLER: Thank you for
the opportunity to testify today.

SENATOR RI VERA: d oser, please.

M5. ALBI STEGU ADLER M nane is
Karina Al bistegui Adler. |1 amhere on behalf
of New York Lawyers for the Public Interest
and nmy undocunent ed and uni nsured clients who
face the worst of the things that could
happen when you're uni nsured.

At the outset, 1'd Iike to enphasize
how -- the urgency to pass the Coverage for
Al'l proposal, which in addition to the
1333 waiver -- I'msorry, 1332 waiver -- also
proposes to, if the waiver is denied, provide
st at e-onl y-funded Medi caid coverage for
immgrants in the sane way that California
has done.

For nmy clients, this is actually a
|ife-and-death situation. Mst of ny clients
find thenselves in dire situations every day,
choosi ng between paying for their food or
nmedi cati on or between working while they're

feeling sick is a stark reality. Wile
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energency Medi cai d does cover their dialysis,
because many of themdo -- nobst of themare
on dialysis due to end-stage renal failure,

t hey nmust pay upwards of $200 a nmonth in
prescription costs, nmany of them

|"mgoing to share a story about one
of ny clients, Raul, who has faced this exact
dilema. Prior to the COVI D19 pandem c, he
worked in the food service industry. He was
a proud essential worker and continued to
wor k t hrough the pandem c until he becane
sick. Shortly after he recovered from
Covi D-19, his doctors told himthat the COVID
infection that nearly killed himhad actually
deci mated hi s ki dneys and he was now required
to be on a grueling three-day-a-week schedul e
for dialysis.

He had to put everything on hold,
including all of his dreans to becone a chef.
And he was al so told, unfortunately, that
because he is undocunmented and uni nsured, he
woul d unlikely ever get a kidney transpl ant.

Raul and ot her undocunent ed

New Yorkers |ike himexenplify a najor nora
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and ethical dilenma in our state. Many
undocurent ed New Yorkers are registered
organ donors, either through the New York
State driver's license, NYCID, and al so as
{unintelligible} donors. And yet when they
are in need of organ transplants, they are
anong the least likely to receive the
transpl ants because of a | ack of

conpr ehensi ve heal th insurance.

| see many fam lies desperately
pl eading with nedical staff to help their
| oved ones when they're dying of organ
failure, and of course they're told that they
can't because they're undocunented and
uni nsured. Yet those sane famlies often
turn around and do donate a | oved one's
or gans.

You know, we have the power right now
to make the heal thcare system nore equitable
for all New Yorkers. | invite you to also
consi der sonme interimsteps to save |ives and
strengt hen the comrendabl e Living Donor
Support Act passed |ast year. There could be

a tenporary neasure to allow energency




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

293

Medi caid to cover organ transplants.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

And | ast? You decided to take
your sel ves out of order for some reason

DR SCHWARTZ: Cood afternoon, nenbers
of the joint legislative budget conmttee.
My name is Dr. Tayla Schwartz. |'m president
and CEO of MetroPlus Health Plan in New York
City, and I'm here today representing the
Coalition of New York State Public Health
Pl ans, PHP, and the New York State Coalition
of Managed Care Long Term Pl ans, MTC, of
which MetroPlus is an active nenber

| will use ny time here to highlight a
few of the concerning budget proposals. The
first one is elimnating the Quality
Prograns. The state's managed care and M.TC
Quality Incentive Prograns fund critica
i nvestments in provider quality and
comuni ty-based initiatives that inprove
heal t h outcones and address soci al care needs
for the state's nost vul nerabl e popul ati ons,

li ke the ones that we serve.
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Plans rely on the funds to rei nburse
provi ders for high-val ue, evidence-based
practices and support social drivers of
heal t hcare interventions that are not
ot herwi se covered by Medi cai d.

As an exanple, MetroPlus has a
dedi cat ed housi ng unit which has supported
menber s experienci ng honel essness for the
entire process of identifying them the
application, placenent into supportive
housi ng, and then ongoi ng support to make
sure nenbers remain successfully in their new
hone.

Despite the positive inpact and
significant value, the Quality funding has
been consistently reduced over tine and is
now at risk of full elimnation. W urge the
Legislature to reject this step backward and
support Senate Bill 3146, which would codify
the Quality Incentive Programinto |aw and
ensure sustainable funding for what has
becone a powerful tool for driving
hi gh-qual ity and hi gh-value care for the

| owest -i ncone residents.
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Phar macy carveout repeal. You've
heard a | ot about that today. Renoving the
pharmacy benefits from Medi caid managed care
wi Il harm Medicaid nenbers. It will lead to
massi ve confusion, gaps in nedicine access
and adherence, and fewer services from
comuni ty-based safety net providers.

Further, along with other
st akehol ders, coalition plans have
significant concerns about the state's
ability to snoothly operationalize the
carveout, given that it is slated to |aunch
the sane day as the start of the
redet erm nati on of Medicaid, CHP and EP
eligibility for upwards of 9 mllion
New Yorkers. MetroPlus Health alone is
| ooki ng at approxi mately 50, 000
redeterm nations a nonth

We urge the Legislature to repeal the
pharmacy carveout and protect enroll ees’
access to needed nedi cations and protect and

sustain safety net providers.

And finally, the Executive Budget al so

i ncludes a highly disruptive proposal that




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

296

woul d substantially upend MLTC coverage for
el derly or disabled New Yorkers. This
proposal, which would require M.TC plans to
meet m ni mum enrol | ment threshol ds and give
t he heal th conm ssioner sole discretion to
trigger a plan procurenment, would w nnow t he
mar ket down to just the largest MTC pl ans
and essentially will elimnate M.TCs upst ate.

Thank you for your tine.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you very
much.

Qur first questioner will be
Qustavo Rivera.

SENATCR RI VERA: Hello, folks. This
is for Ms. Dunker and Ms. Al bistegui Adler.
| want to dig a little bit deeper into what
was said earlier, and | want to nake sure,
Ms. Dunker, that you speak as closely to the
m c as possible, because indeed it seens to
me that you said, in response to the claim
this afternoon -- earlier today fromthe
Medi caid director, that we could not seek the
wai ver that would -- that could actually, you

know, nake it so that we can afford to do
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this, right?

What is your response to what you
heard this norning? Say it to ne again,
pl ease.

M5. DUNKER: Well, first of all, we
shoul d ask i nstead of anticipate being
rej ect ed.

Second of all, we haven't seen the
math either on the estimate that they said --

SENATOR RI VERA: Ch, you haven't seen
t he mat h.

M5. DUNKER® No. So that's the first
tinme that we've heard that --

SENATOR RI VERA: | know you're
shocked. |'m shocked. W're all shocked.
Yeah, go ahead.

M5. DUNKER: But just the information

we have, it doesn't -- we haven't seen an
estimate that it would cost $2 billion or
more than $2 billion to cover the nunber of

peopl e we're tal king about, which is about
245, 000.
SENATOR RI VERA: (kay. And then

the -- one of the things | asked about was




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

298

about energency Medicaid and about the anpunt
of noney that we use now. And this would
actually -- could this avert that cost if we
are able to do this?

M5. DUNKER: Right. So this emergency
Medi cai d cost would actually go away
conpl etely because that popul ati on woul d have
conprehensive, real health insurance instead
of emergency Medicaid, which only covers, you
know, certain conditions in certain
ener genci es.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you for that.

And just to reiterate fromthe
experiences of some of the folks that |
figure that you fol ks represent, who are
on -- who don't have any type of coverage,
anything else that you'd |like to add as far
as how essential it is for the popul ations
that you hel p out every day?

MS. ALBI STEGU ADLER: Yes, thank you.

For our clients, it's really, truly a
life-or-death situation. Being on dialysis,
which is covered by energency Medi caid,

actually results in poorer |ong-term outcones
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as conpared to transplants. And because they

are barred fromtransplants, you know, this

could really have a mmjor inpact on their

| ongevity and their ability to participate in

our conmmunities.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you bot h.

MS. ALBI STEGU ADLER: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Assenbl yman
Jensen.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

This question is going to be for
M. Linzer. Going back to the very first
panel, there was sonme conversation, | asked
guestions about the health guarantee fund.
From your understandi ng of that proposal,
woul d these new assessnents or taxes,
what ever verbi age, apply to | arge,
sel f-funded accounts?

MR. LINZER. The short answer is no.

| nmean, the superintendent was correct

earlier today when she said that it would
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apply proportionately to fully insured health
pl ans. Those who typically purchase fully
insured are usually small, mdsized

busi nesses. W think that this would have a
di sparate inmpact on many of the upstate

pl ans, first.

But second, | think it begs the
guestion of if there are concerns about the
| ong-term care i nsurance marketplace, it
rai ses questions as to why health insurance
consuners should be the entities that end up
payi ng for these assessnents.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: So it's your
understanding, if it's going to be the snall
busi nesses, the busi nesses who are having --
requiring this coverage, and the other fully
i nsured businesses, they're going to be the
ones that end up paying nore if this fund
were to be put in place.

MR. LINZER: It certainly would be
themas well as any fully insured
muni ci pality or, you know, | arger-size
enpl oyer.

So it certainly, | think, given -- you
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know, given the concerns about, you know,

t axes, assessnents, the $6 billion related to
HCRA and ot her assessnents that get applied
to health insurance -- and recogni zi ng that
this wouldn't get triggered until there is an
i nsolvency -- it does raise concerns about

t he prospect of asking health insurance
consuners, as well as enployers, union
benefit funds and others that are fully
insured, to have to bear the cost of any kind
of shortfall or insolvency in the

| ong-term care market.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  So in your role
at the association, do you believe that DFS
al ready has the tools in place, through
statute and policy, to protect consuners and
providers in the event that a health insurer
does becone insol vent?

MR. LINZER: There are certainly
protections in place. You heard the
superintendent earlier today tal k about steps
that they have in the event, you know, a
provi der or a health plan gets into, you

know, financial trouble.
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There's al so the approval rates. You
know, on the front side of the process, if
rates are actuarially sound and approved to
recogni ze the full cost of care -- doctor
visits, hospital stays, increases in
prescription drug costs, as well as taxes,
fees, and assessnents -- then as long as the
prem uns are actuarially sound, that
provi des -- that should provide sufficient
protection on the front end.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Do you agree with
t he urgency of the Executive to put this in
t he budget ?

MR. LINZER: | nean, given that it
doesn't have a fiscal inplication, you know,
our preference would be to see this taken out
of the budget and certainly have, you know,
ot her conversations outside the budget
process.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Okay. Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Webb.

SENATOR WEBB: Thank you, Chairwonan.

And thank you all for being here.
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So ny question is actually directed to
Health Care for AIl New York. And so,

Amanda, | was wondering if you could expound
upon your mentioning with regards to nedi cal
debt. As soneone that represents a very both
rural and urban, suburban district, this is
probably one of the nobst prom nent things
|"ve heard in the work that -- nost certainly
|'ve worked with Health Care for Al New York
in the past.

So | was wondering if you could
expound upon what el se can we do to take
steps to address nedi cal debt for
New Yor ker s?

M5. DUNKER: So one is to nake sure
t hat people are getting financial assistance
when they're eligible for it. That is --
right nowthat is limted to people who earn
up to 300 percent of the federal poverty
| evel .

Like | said before, there's problens
with some of the policies and applications.
It's very hard for people to apply. So the

uni formapplication that's in the
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Executive Budget already | think would help a
| ot nore people get access to these discounts
and hel p prevent nedical debt.

We are al so hoping, though, to do nore
to reformthe financial assistance |aw, |
think nost inportantly to change the incone
thresholds, the eligibility thresholds, to
mat ch all the other healthcare prograns that
we have. So right now you can get, for
exanpl e, prem um subsidies to buy health
i nsurance, up to 600 percent of the federal
poverty | evel.

The difference is in all of the
t hreshol ds between this program and ot her
ways that we hel p people get healthcare is a
probl emin maki ng sure people know t hat
they're eligible, because it is just so
confusing to have it be so different.

SENATOR WEBB: (kay, thank you.

And then ny next question deals with
consuner assistance. | previously had done
work as a facilitator, enroller, for Famly
Health Plus and Child Health Plus and

Medi caid. And so ny question is with regards
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to the outreach proposal that you all talk
about, can you just expound upon what t hat
outreach could look Iike as it pertains to
doi ng outreach in communities that have high
rates of uninsured people?

M5. DUNKER: So this is in regard to
t he navi gator program which hel ps peopl e
enroll in health insurance. And like | said
before, that's the best way to hel p prevent
peopl e from havi ng nmedi cal debt, is
i nsurance.

So the navi gator program does not get
funding to do outreach in places where we
know that a | ot of people have not enrolled
in health insurance but m ght be eligible for
prograns that already exist. So we think
that it would be -- it would help if we could
have a grant programto community-based
organi zations, which is already how t he
pr ogr am wor ks.

We provide services in every county in
the state, and that those grants go out to
comuni ty- based organi zations that are

famliar with the area and that people trust.
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And so we're proposing that we have a
$5 mllion grant programthat woul d be
specifically focused on outreach to those
comunities where nore people than el sewhere
are uni nsur ed.

SENATOR WEBB: (kay, thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes.

Assenbl ynmenber Gandol f o.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG.  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

| have a question for you, M. Linzer.
| believe you indicated that the
pay- and- pursue portion of the budget, Part J,
that it would make coverage nore expensive
for consuners, union benefit funds, enployers
and the state enployee benefit program Can
you tal k about that a little bit and expand
on how it would increase the costs?

MR. LINZER: Sure. So as | said in ny
testimony, what this would create would be a
| engt hy and cunbersone process that plans

woul d have to pay first and then pursue and
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chase any kind of clinical docunentation to
det erm ne whether or not the services were
nmedi cal | y necessary.

Under the current process, providers
t oday have 120 days to submt clains. Plans
then have to pay within 30 days if it's
el ectronic, 45 days if it's paper. |If plans
require additional information, then they
have 15 -- they have to make that request
during that 30-day period and, within 15 days
of receiving that information fromthe
provi der, make a determ nation. So you have
a conpressed tinme frane.

Here, under Part J -- and we included
it in our testinony -- you have a nulti-step
process that could take up to 10 nont hs
before a plan would be able to recoup any
ki nd of paynents that shouldn't have been
paid in the first place, whether it was
for -- it was determ ned that services
weren't clinically appropriate, incorrect
billing, or other related issues.

| think the thing that's gotten | ost

in this whole conversation is this is not the
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health plan's noney. But this is also not
the hospital's noney. This is the enployer's
noney, this is the consunmer's noney, this is
the | abor union's noney. And for themto
then have to wait, first to pay out for
sonmet hing that may or may not have been
clinically appropriate, you know, then to
have to recoup that, adds additional cost to
t he whol e system

But the other piece is this -- you
know, while the superintendent earlier today
tal ked about this being a test case and
i mproving efficiency, I think we wonder how
addi ng -- you know, creating a 10-nonth
process in order to determ ne whether or
not -- and recoup any in correct paynents,
you know, creates a nore efficient process,
particularly for -- you know, at a time when
we're trying to make the system much nore
sinpl e and nore affordable for enployers,
consuners, union benefit funds, and others.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  And so wil |
this proposal have any inpactful benefits to

the patients thenselves? Howw Il this
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i npact the average consuner?

MR. LINZER: We think, you know, it's
guestionabl e at best. | nean, you know, the
fact that you have to, you know, pay for
clinical care or pay for services that my
not have been clinically appropriate, you
know, creates the potential for unnecessary
testing and procedures to then have to chase
after the fact.

And it, you know, | think creates a
di sincentive for providers to foll ow best
practices. So at a tine when, you know,
there's already issues and chal |l enges rel ated
to quality, paying for services that aren't
clinically appropriate, and then having to
chase that and recoup over a 10-nobnth
process, you know, is not the best use of
limted heal thcare resources.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG: Al right.
Thank you very much

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Are there any other Senators? Nope --
oh, wait.

SENATOR RHOADS: Just one.
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Just a -- Steve Rhoads. Just a
guestion for M. Linzer.

The proposed budget includes
$125 mllion in state funding for 340B
providers to what they claimto offset |osses
that they' |l incur under the pharmacy
carveout. Is that an accurate figure?

MR. LINZER: You know, as | said in
our testinony, you know, the concern that we
have, in addition to all the quality issues,
the disruption to patients, particularly
i ndividuals with acute and chronic
conditions, as well as the inpact this is
going to have on the delivery system-- we,
you know, question the nunbers.

| mean, while the state's estinmate of
savings of $420 mllion that then gets
redistributed to different entities, results
in, you know, really $42 mllion in net
savings for the state. However, we had the
Wakely Consulting G oup take a |l ook at the --
do its own analysis on behalf of our industry
back in Decenber to | ook at the potenti al

cost inmpact. Their estimate was that the
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nove to carve out the benefit from managed
care would actually result in an increase in
state costs of about $235 million annually.
So while that may not directly answer
your question about individual conponents of
it, I think there is a legitinate
di sagreenent anong parties as to whether or
not this is going to truly generate
nmeani ngf ul savings while at the same tinme, as
Dr. Schwartz had indicated earlier, you
create significant disruption in the system
for patients and providers.
SENATOR RHOADS: Thank you.
CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
Assenbl y.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes, thank you.
Assenbl ynenber Pal mesano.
ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO  Good
afternoon. M question is for M. Linzer.
You touched on it a little bit in your
opening remarks, and | wanted to kind of get
into the issue of the elimnation of the
Quality pools, if | may.

What do the healthcare plans right now
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spend the Quality pool dollars on now? And
what prograns m ght be actually negatively
i npacted by cutting of these funds?

MR. LINZER: So |I'm going to probably
defer nost of this to Dr. Schwartz.

Just at a high level, those Quality
pool dollars get utilized for a nunber of
services |like preventative screenings,

i n-home wel | ness services, and others that
directly benefit patients as well as support
provi ders.

But Dr. Schwartz?

DR SCHWARTZ: Sure.

So the majority of the funds actually
are going to the providers, incentivizing the
provi ders to provi de standards of care.

Additionally, those dollars are being
used for services that are currently not
covered by Medicaid, such as assistance with
honel essness, assistance with food
i nsecurity.

Those dollars are al so used for
outreach for menbers who are not adhering to

prevent at ive care. So wonen who are not
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getting their manmograns as recomrended or
ot her preventative care, there are
significant efforts to reach out to those
menbers to nmake sure that they actually
receive the appropriate treatnent.

And so without those dollars, all of
those efforts will not have sufficient
f undi ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANG: | just have
one nore questi on.

It's my understanding -- obviously
New Yor k has ranked consistently high in
guality on a national scale. What will |oss
of this funding in health, from your
perspective, howw Il it affect those netrics
when we ook at it nationally?

DR. SCHWARTZ: Yeah, | nean, we nade
significant progress closing the gap between
t he underserved popul ati on and the commrerci al
popul ation. There was a significant gap, and
then it was closed because there was
investnment in quality.

Wth those dollars and the funding

goi ng away, there is a real concern that the
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gap will reopen. And so the services that
are currently being rendered to the

under served popul ations will be actually
reduced.

ASSEMBLYMAN PALMESANO. Thank you very
much.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Thank -- oh, no,
we have 54 seconds. Nope? Ckay. Any other
Assenbl ynmenber s?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: O course.

Assenbl ynmenber Jo Anne Si non

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: OF cour se.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

So, M. Linzer, | have a question.

You know, we've tal ked a | ot about home care
in this hearing. And as you know, there

were -- we just increased it to $30 an hour

| ast year, and it also set benchmark rates

t hat plans were supposed to pay for honme care
to pay for associated costs -- payroll taxes,
et cetera.

But the Times Union's reporting that
private insurance conpanies are offering pay

bunps as | ow as 20 cents to 50 cents an hour,
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according to two insurance conpanies.

So ny question is, in exact dollars,
how much noney did your nenbers keep this
year and how nuch did they pay to the hone
care providers?

MR. LINZER: | don't have specific
i nformati on on what the plans individually
may have kept or sent out.

What | can tell you is that the plans
have worked in good faith with various
agencies to ensure that those dollars flow
| think there is sone -- you know, sone
difference in -- and | evel of confusion as to
how t hose dol | ars have been, you know, sent
out to home care agenci es.

| think the thing to keep in mnd here
is particularly with that Times Union story,
you know, one, | think, you know, there
wasn't any kind of clarity as far as any
addi tional dollars that those plans nmay have
provi ded in advance of the m ni nrum wage bunp
at the begi nning of Cctober.

And we did have plans that prior to

that had increased the -- their paynments to
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t hose agencies out of a recognition of the
concerns we heard earlier today about
wor kf orce chal | enges. And without the -- you
know, we recognize, wthout those workers, we
don't have a network or the ability to serve
our nmenbers. So it's in the plan's interest
to make sure that those dollars flow through

| think where the chall enge cones in
is, you know, there's really a | ack of
accountability and transparency in the bulk
of the healthcare industry. As you heard
fromthe Medicaid director earlier today,
pl ans are subject to regular and routine
audits by both DOH as well as OM G to | ook,
investigate, and to ensure that those dollars
fl ow and fl ow and support nedi cal services.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  So, you know,
there is a particular benchmark rate set for
downst at e and upstate. Do you know how many
of your nenbers actually paid those benchmark
rates?

MR. LINZER: W can follow up with you
on it.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN SI MON:  Can you, please?
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MR LINZER We did -- we did ask our
menbers on the downstate provision, and nany,
you know, were significantly above the nean.
You know, the upstate data we are stil
col l ecting and hope to have that. But
certainly we'd be happy to follow up with you
in nore detail on this.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.
Because we'd | ove to have it before we get
into the budget finally.

Thank you.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay. Any ot her
Assenbl y?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes.

Assenbl ynmenber Jo Anne Sinon. Ch, she just
went. Sorry about that.

Ni kki Lucas.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: Hell 0? Ckay,
great. Thank you, Madam Chair.

So | have two parts, if | can squeeze
themin. New York Lawyers for Public
Interest, in your testinony you nmentioned
that the State of New York shoul d provide

conpr ehensi ve heal t hcare coverage to al
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residents regardl ess of immgration status,
i ncl udi ng coverage for organ and tissue
transplant. This could have a maj or
financial inpact on the state budget.

Two things. One, what will be the
total financial ask to achieve this request?
Forgive nme if it's been asked al ready. And
al so, you also nentioned that the State of
California is about to provide this,
begi nning in 2024. Can you provide us on
what the State of California did to achieve
this, and the financial inpact the state wll
be contributing to their plan?

M5. ALBI STEGU ADLER: Thank you so
much for that question. | think ny coll eague
from CSS m ght have sonme better nunbers, but
| can tell you that that was referring to the
Coverage for Al proposal, which would
essentially not be at a cost to New York
State. It would be a savings for the state
based on, you know, noving from energency
Medicaid to full coverage.

The State of California, 1'd be happy

to get you that infornmation later. W do
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cite the -- you know, that proposal, and it
shoul d be going into operation in 2024. But
| believe it is an expansion of their
stat e-funded Medi-Cal program which we can
also do in New York State

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: Ckay, great.

| want to squeeze this in. This was
for an earlier panel, but | believe soneone
can answer this, that -- delaying the
expansi on of Medicaid coverage for qualified
New Yor kers over the age of 65 who are
currently ineligible due to inmgration
st at us.

What woul d be the cost to the New York
t axpayer? Do you have a breakdown of how
this will inmpact New Yorkers financially?
And is the 65 or over your only determ ning
factor for qualifying? This was for soneone
earlier. And then what nechani sm or
nmet hodol ogy do you use in this approach? And
| ast question, how does it inmpact hone health
ai de wor kers?

MS. ALBI STEGUI ADLER: The expansion

for the people who are 65 and ol der has
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happened, but it hasn't been inplenmented. So
| don't quite understand the reasoni ng why
t hat hasn't occurred. | think there was sone
systemc -- systemic, actually, tech issues
about novi ng peopl e over.

And we'd be happy to get you nore
information on the figures as we understand
t hem

ASSEMBLYWOVMAN LUCAS: That's your
answer to all the questions?

M5. ALBI STEGUI ADLER  Pardon?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LUCAS: |Is that your
answer to all of the questions?

MS. ALBI STEGU ADLER: Um - -

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: | guess so.

MS. ALBI STEGU ADLER |'d be happy

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  You' Il have to
take that offline.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: | appreciate
that. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: Al right,
t hank you so much

Assenbl ymenber Jessica Gonzal ez- Roj as.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you, particularly to Karina and, |'msorry --

M5. DUNKER:  Amanda.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Yeah,
Amanda. Thank you to your points about
Coverage for All. This has obviously been a
priority for me, and | thank you for all your
work on this and naking the case, because it
coul d save us so nmuch and al so i nprove health
equity in the state.

However, | do want to ask the Plan
Associ ati on about wage parity. The CDPA was
added to the wage parity to address the issue
of sone hone care agencies shifting Medicaid
menbers fromtraditional home care to CDPA,
but failing to abide by the rules of CDPA,
whi ch require consuner-directed care, and
failed to support an appropriate pay scal e.

So given the wage-parity |law -- that
the wage-parity law mtigated this problem
what is the rationale for the Governor's
proposal to elimnate wage parity? And how
does the budget address the risks that wage

parity addressed?
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MR. LINZER. 1'mgoing to have to
follow up with you on what inpact. W
haven't -- you know, we haven't nodel ed or
anal yzed that issue.

| nean, again, we certainly recognize
t he i mportance of ensuring that, you know,

i ndi vidual s receive the funding that they're
owed and deserved. But certainly would have
to follow up on that because it's not an

i ssue where we've taken an active position.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  That's
all. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Assenbl ymenber Anna Kel | es.

(Di scussion off the record.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: There we go.
Can you hear ne?

MR LINZER W can.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Ckay. So
foll owi ng up on the discussion on plans, can
you talk to us about -- can you hear ne?

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Speak | ouder if
you - -

ASSEMBLYWOMAN KELLES: Okay, can you
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all hear me now? Lovely.

Can you talk to us a bit about the
br eakdown of where the noney goes, of the
noney that the managed care providers -- the
MCTs keep?

MR. LINZER: So as you heard fromthe
Medi caid director earlier today, there is a
nmedi cal loss ratio that requires right now
86 percent of the prem umdollar gets
spent --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Correct. The
remaining 14 is what I"'masking for. Wat's
t he breakdown of what that goes to?

MR LINZER® W would have to follow
up on -- you know, collectively. But to
gi ve you a general sense, you know, first
there are admi ni strative conponents. So
you' ve got, you know, things such as network
devel opnent; nenber outreach, as Dr. Schwartz
had i ndi cated; clainms paynents, |IT
operations. And, you know, so those types of
conmponents that cone into play with any
heal th plan, having to make sure that the

clainms that cone in get paid, operationa




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

324

chal I enges. (bviously --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Coul d you
provi de us -- because we have no oversi ght.
| f you could provide us a breakdown of where
t hat noney goes.

MR LINZER® Sure. So it's
certainly --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Because we pay
billions of dollars that go specifically --

t hose 14 percent, and we don't see any of
t hat breakdown. ['d love to see it,
including like salaries, maybe broken down
into sort of --

MR LINZER We'll give you what we're
able to give you. | think one of the pieces
that you m ght be, you know, | ooking to get
at as far as surplus or profit margins -- you
know, these plans operate on very, you know,
slimmargins, typically in the 1 to 2 percent
range.

And there are, you know, standards
that the departnent puts in place limting
how much plans can make. Typically a good

year for any health plan is going to be, you
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know, roughly a 1 to 2 percent profit margin.
But there are also years where plans will be
in the red and have their medical costs be in
excess of, you know, 86 percent.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: That woul d be
great to see the breakdown of that --

MR LINZER: Sure, and we'd be --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Over a few
years, just to give us a sense that --

MR. LINZER: Sure, we'd be happy to do
that and certainly would, you know, welcone
the opportunity to sit down with you face to
face and talk in nore detail about this.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

| think I"'mthe only one left, and I
j ust have two questi ons.

First, how many M.TC pl ans do you
think are needed to have statew de coverage
and nmenber choice?

MR LINZER: We haven't taken a
position, Madam Chair, as far as the nunber
or what the right nunber is.

Li ke there is a recognition, you know,




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

326

as part of last year's conversation, around
Part P and the Medicaid procurenent, and this
year with Part |, that there is consolidation
taking place in the market. | think there
needs to be a recognition of ensuring that --
as -- you know, in ensuring that there's
coverage throughout the state.

| think a | ot of discussion focuses on
t he downstate, but recognizing that there are
di fferent and uni que chall enges in the
upstate market. But al so recognition that
when a -- if a plan were to go away, either
as a result of a procurenent and not being
chosen -- you know, the state had that
experience with GuildNet just a few -- you
know, maybe about seven or eight years ago or
so, and that was a 9, 000- nenber plan. But
there was significant disruption just for,
you know, that small segnent of i ndividuals
and a lot of work that goes into coordinating
their services, noving froma new pl an.

So while I don't have -- you know,
couldn't give you what an appropriate nunber

woul d | ook |like, there is a recognition that
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there is consolidation taking place in the
mar ket al r eady.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  And finally,
you know, why the Wakely report, UCMS 64
reports from 2017 to estinmate state
suppl emental rebates they woul d recei ve under
t he carveout, versus nore recent reports that
show a nmuch hi gher suppl enental rebate
anount ?

MR LINZER |1'msorry, say that
agai n?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So in other
words, the reports that were used to estinate
state suppl enental rebates canme from 2017
And the nore recent data m ght have been nore
appropriate. | just wondered your thoughts.

MR. LINZER: | think the -- you know,
Wakely tried to utilize the nost recent
publicly available data that they were able
to access, and then made certain assunptions,
you know, extrapolating out fromthat.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Ckay, thank
you. That's it for me, and | think everyone.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUEGER: So we are cl osed.
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Thank you very nuch for your testinony;
appreciate it.

And our next panel we did ask to cone
up a little earlier: Medicaid Matters for
New York; Enpire Center; New York
Associ ation of County Health Oficials; and
Housi ng Works.

And Panel E, which will follow them
if you want to also get inalittle closer to
make your run up to the panel afterwards --
| " mjust kidding about running -- Leadi ngAge
New York; New York State Health Facilities
Associ ation; and Long Term Care Community
Coalition -- will be the follow ng panel.

And shall we start on ny left, your

right. You'll introduce yourself, you'll do
your three mnutes, and we'll keep going down
the |ine.

DR. GELMAN:  Sounds good.

Good afternoon, Chairpersons Krueger
and Paulin, Senator Rivera, and honorable
commttee nenbers. Thank you for this
opportunity to present the state budget

priorities of New York's 58 | ocal health




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

329

depart nments.

My name is Dr. Irina CGelman, and |
currently serve as president of the New York
State Association of County Health Oficials
in ny role as conm ssioner of health for
Nassau County.

Entering this budget session we see
t he Governor has prioritized several public

health policies that we support, as we

believe they will better protect New Yorkers.

However, wi thout the fiscal comm tment and
resources our |ocal public health workforce
needs to take action, these policies wll
remai n i npossible to inplenment. Strong
public health policy is policy that is
appropriately funded.

A case in point. The Executive has
provi ded for preventive lead funding in the
budget proposal. However, with only
18 million placed in the State Operations
section of the proposed Executive Budget, it
fails to account for or support the work
localities will need to conduct at the |ocal

| evel to namintain an inspection registry.
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There is no doubt that we nust shift
focus toward a prevention-based nodel.
However, due to a 2019 unfunded mandate and
an admnistrative cut to | ead fundi ng which
i mpacted 12 counties, it is inperative that
this policy -- and others we are inplenenting
to protect children -- are fully funded in
t he enacted budget.

We urgently request your support by
i ncreasing the |l ead fundi ng appropriation in
your one-house bills from18 mllion to
58 million and, further, noving appropriation
to the | ead poi soning prevention program
under the Departnent of Financial Services
budget .

The Governor al so has proposed a
strong tobacco control package that NYSACHO
encourages the Legislature to retain, with
speci fic anendnents that are outlined in our
full witten testinony.

Despite New York renoving flavored
e-cigarettes fromthe market, nenthol
cigarettes, flavored cigars, and flavored

hookah are still available for purchase.
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Fl avored products are narketed by the
i ndustry to communities of color, LGTQ+ and
| ow-i ncome communities, and flavored products
hook ki ds on nicotine.

The exi sting ban on flavors has been
chal l enging to enforce on retailers |ocally.
| want to clarify that enforcenent the
| ocalities provide is civil in nature and
only directed at retailers. In no way, shape
or formis there or should there ever be
enforcenent action agai nst consuners. This
is very sinply about protecting children from
t he harnms of exposure to these products.

Further, we respectfully request that
you i nclude | anguage in the cannabis statute
that mirrors the New York State Public Health
Law ban on fl avored tobacco products to ban
fl avored aerosolized and conbusti bl e cannabi s
products and i npose clear marketing and
packagi ng requirenments for cannabis retailers
that are specific as to what products can be
naned. This will assure a consistent
standard for aerosolized and conbustible

products throughout the state.
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Pl ease note that your |ocal health
departnments are here working tirelessly,
around the clock, to protect constituents in
your districts frompublic health threats.

Thank you for your continued
| eader shi p, support and attention.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next ?

M5. KASSEL: Good afternoon. My nane
is Lara Kassel. | amthe staff coordi nator
to Medicaid Matters New York. Medicaid
Matters is the statewi de coalition
representing the interests of people who have
Medi caid for their health insurance coverage.

| appreciate the opportunity to
address you today, and thank you for being
here. Thanks also to your staff for being
here as wel .

Medi caid Matters has been around for
20 years. W are celebrating our 20th
anni versary this year, our 20th year of
bri ngi ng the voi ces of people who are covered
by Medicaid to these tables.

| want to take a nonent to illum nate
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t he i nmportance of Medicaid by reading sone
guotes that we have collected as part of our
work. W use themw th perm ssion.

"Medi caid has been a lifeline and has
been life-altering, particularly in ternms of
my reproductive care. Not only that, but
it's al so hel ped enpower ne as a person.”

The second one: "I'manemc, and |
di scovered that | was able to get iron
i nfusi ons through Medicaid coverage. Through
these iron infusions, and then being able to

take care of ny gynecol ogical issues, | felt

that | could be a better parent and caretaker

for nmy child."

And then, lastly: "Because of
Medicaid, | was able to get single-fiber
el ectronmyography testing” -- a mouthful --

"testing performed which confirmed that | had
a rare subtype of an autoi mmune neuronuscul ar
di sease. Left undi agnosed and untreated, the
survival rate is not good. Medicaid
literally saved ny life."

This year's budget represents, as it

al ways does every year, an opportunity to
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i mprove on the Medicaid programand the |ives
of the people who are covered by the program
Sadl y, however, this year's budget does not
go nearly far enough to do that, despite the
adm nistration's stated intentions to reach
greater health equity.

| see that |'mrunning short on tine
al ready. You have ny witten testinony, and
| will just nmention a few things that you'l
find in our witten testinony.

You can play a part in making sone of
t hese changes and i nprovenents to the program
by enacting Coverage for All, by enacting
Fair Pay for Honme Care, by ensuring that
Medi caid dollars are allocated to true safety
net institutions. Wth the many di scussions
about increasing Medicaid rates for |arge
institutions, there nust al so be comensurate
focus on doing the sane for conmunity-based
provi ders that neet people where they are.

Rai se the asset limt to provide nore
equi tabl e access to the program for ol der
peopl e and people with disabilities. Provide

conti nuous coverage frombirth to age 6. And
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|astly -- but certainly not |east -- infuse
transparency into Medicaid and all of its
programs by requiring nore data collecting
and reporting.

Agai n, you have ny witten testinony,
and |''m happy to answer your questions.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Hi, Bill. Next?

MR. HAMMOND: Good afternoon. M nane
is Bill Hanmond. |'m senior fellow for
health policy at the Enpire Center.

We've heard a | ot today about the ins
and outs of the Medicaid budget and the
details, and an awful |ot of groups who feel
like they're not getting the noney that they
need or they're actually being cut. | think
it's inmportant in this context to step back
and | ook at the big picture.

New Yor k spends an extraordi nary
anount of noney on this program |It's set to
break $100 billion this year, including al
sources of revenue. Heading into the
pandem c, we were spending nore per capita

than any state. And since the start of the
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pandem c, we've increased the state's share
of the program by 20 percent, and this year's
budget woul d add anot her 9 percent on top of
that. Those are nuch faster rates of growth
t han we have been accustoned to over the
previ ous decade.

And the only reason that we' ve been
able to make that kind of spending increase
i s because of these tenporary sources of
funding -- tenporary federal aid and a surge
in state revenue, which is -- | nmean, history
teaches us is not going to | ast.

So the question -- the inportant thing
is to run the programin a sustainable way.
As we've just heard, it's an absolute
lifeline for many New Yorkers, and so it's
important to be responsible in nanaging it.
It's kind of |ike an ocean liner -- if you
get going too fast, it becones all that much
harder to steer away fromthe icebergs.

So | think in that context there are a
nunber of proposals that the Governor nade
whi ch woul d actual ly make things nore

af fordabl e, which I think deserve support.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

337

And t hose include things |ike repealing
"prescriber prevails" in the Medicaid
program reducing indigent care funding to

t he | ow need hospitals, |oosening scope of
practice limts on professionals such as
nurses and pharmaci sts, and joining the

| nterstate Medical Licensure Conpact.

There are a nunber of other proposals

that | think should be rejected or revised.
The idea that you would increase costs for

| ocal governnments, | think that should be a

red flag that those costs are out of control.

Because if the state is dramatically
increasing its spending on Medicaid and it's
asking the localities to increase their
contribution, that's a sign that costs are
out of control.

| think you should really think hard
bef ore extendi ng the HCRA surcharges. Those
are a $5 billion tax on health insurance,
6 billion in total revenue. That only makes
heal th i nsurance | ess affordable and drives
nore people into public prograns.

| would argue that you shoul d reject
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t he pharnmacy benefit on the grounds that you
don't want to nake the system nore fragmented
than it already is. The nmanaged care pl ans
shoul d have a holistic view of their clients.

And the cigarette tax | don't think is
advisable. It's going to drive nore people
into the black market. And also | would
rej ect pay and pursue.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Charl es?

MR KING Hi . Charles King,
representing Housi ng Wrks and the Ending the
Epi dem ¢ Conmunity Coalition

| want to thank Senator Krueger for
inviting nme back to testify after ny arrest
in this same space earlier today. |
understand that not everyone on this panel
appreci ated our action this norning.

However, what | would point out to you
is that this Legislature actually two years
ago approved the carveout of pharmacy from
managed care -- and, even after we nmade very

clear to you the inpact of this carveout on




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

339

t he beneficiaries of services from Federally
Qualified Health Centers and Ryan Wite care
provi ders, did nothing about it |ast year.
And that is why we are adanmant that the

Legi slature take action this year.

We strongly support the bill by
Senat or Rivera and Assenbl ynenber Paulin that
woul d address the CGovernor's concerns around
transparency and cost vari ations.

| also want to address the issue of
Health Hone. Not only is the Governor
cutting $100 mlIlion out of this program over
two years, but even nore insidiously, is
intent on rolling 70,000 participants off of
the program by putting in tine limts of nine
nmont hs and 12 nont hs, dependi ng on your
classification, wthout any clinical
assessment of your health circunstances or
your psychosoci al needs.

| also want to raise the issue of 1332
in the context of H'V by nmaki ng you aware
that right now, even though we are
dramatically decreasing the nunber of new

infections of H V across the state, what we
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are seeing is arise in people receiving
their HV diagnosis sinmultaneous with
receiving a diagnosis of AIDS. Far too nany
of these fol ks are undocunented inmm grants
who, because they have no health coverage,
only go into the energency roomwhen they're
facing a life-threatening situation which al
too often is an AIDS defining circunmstance.

| would also Iike to address the issue
of overdose prevention centers. There is a
bill introduced by Senator Rivera and al so by
Assenbl ywoman Rosent hal that woul d aut hori ze
and fund overdose prevention centers. In
2021, over 6,000 New Yorkers, nostly
| ow i ncomre and people of color, died of drug
overdose because they don't have access. The
two overdose prevention centers that
presently exist, over the last 14 nonths
saved nore than 250 |ives.

Finally, we need rest-of-state -- we
need enhanced rental assistance up to
110 percent of fair nmarket rent for people
living with HV outside of New York City.

This al ready exists for every | owincone
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person living in New York City who has H V.
Why shoul d people living outside of New York
City be treated differently and only be
allowed a rent of $480 a nonth? Which | defy
you to find anywhere in New York State.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

First Senator? Any Senator? No? Any
4? O course.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Jensen.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Yeah. W
apol ogi es, Senators.

CGetting back to -- we've heard a
coupl e of things about Medicaid fromthis
panel . You know, it's ny understandi ng that
40 other states utilize, via CM5, incone
eligibility data that is based in the nost
recent payroll data, whereas New York State
determines eligibility via tax filings. Wth
| think April 1st being the start of a
one-year process for individuals to resubmt
after the expiration of some nandates, is

there a belief that using this free service
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via CM5 woul d hel p to nake our Medicaid
system nore efficient and effective by
getting closer to the original intent of why
t he program was created?

MS. KASSEL: |'mnot aware of that
particul ar detail, although | am aware of a
ot of the activity that the state is
pursuing for the preparation for when
Medi caid renewals will resunme. They are
doi ng a tremendous anmount of work to | ook at
ot her sources of data, including SNAP
enrol | ment and ot her public assistance. |'m
not famliar with the specific question that
you' re posi ng.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Yeah, it's
40 other states utilize this. It's a free
offering fromCMs. They would cover the
cost .

MR HAMMOND: | have to admit |'m al so
not famliar with that, although |I woul d say
it does sound |ike the kind of nanagenent
i nprovenent that as a state with a Medicaid
program of our scale, we should be absolutely

up-to-date on a technological thing |ike
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that. So --

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: | mean, |'m going
to pat nyself on the back that | confounded
Bill Hamond. So fair job.

Pivoting to you, Dr. Gel man, when
we' re tal king about the oversight
prerogatives of our |ocal departnent of
heal th, would you have interest in -- with
t he proper funding, whether through counties
or fromthe state -- to oversee sone of the
oversight over things |like the cannabis
licenses for inspecting the sites, the
cultivation sites, the conmercial |icensing
that's going to be in place, |ike bakeries
and things like that?

DR. GELMAN: Thank you for that
guestion. Actually, it's a rmultiprong answer
to that question.

The O fice of Cannabi s Managenent has
been carved out from-- as a separate entity
outside of the New York State Departnent of
Health. So currently it doesn't fall under
t he auspice of the New York State Departnent

of Health. As such, there is a trenendous
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degree of overlap between the prograns that
we i nplenent at the |ocal health departnent
level in terns of enforcenent actions and in
terms of just inspection of facilities.

Having high-risk food facilities, as
you' ve nmentioned, and having that
crossover -- because a trenmendous anount of
edi bl es are actually not stand-al one
manufacturing facilities, they're
typically -- even if you go to other states
such as Col orado, Washi ngton, Oregon, they
are batch-manufactured in existing
facilities.

So we would be glad to actually have
t hat di scussion outside, seeing the tine.
But there's a tremendous issue with
enf orcenent of cannabi s altogether.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Thank you

DR. GELMAN: Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: | do have a
guestion. Thank you.

First off, Doctor, thank you for that
answer. |'malso very interested in hel ping

figure that out, because we certainly do want
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everyone i nspected appropriately. And I
t hought about the DOH OCM i ssue, but not the
| ocal DOH issue. So thank you for that.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: There's a great
bill about that if you're interested.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Tal k about it.

But I want to ask you about the
Governor's proposal to reduce FMAP nonies to
the counties specifically for nental health
services. And | know | heard fromthe
Associ ation of Counties how nortified they
were by this potential | guess $397 mllion
| oss of Medicaid or FMAP funds used for
mental heal th services.

What do you think the inpact will be
on public health from your perspective?

DR. GELMAN. So clearly there is --
thank you for that question. Cearly there
is an inpact, and we would be glad to provide
a nore detailed response in witing. Just
given the fact that we have about two
mnutes, | don't think there's sufficient
time to cover that in the detail that really

i S necessary.
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And we absol utely wel conme the
opportunity to discuss the cannabis situation
and how it inpacts our current work at the
| ocal health departnment level. So | think
that's a two-prong response and sort of a
stay tuned, we will be glad to provide a nore
detailed answer in witing from NYSACHO

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: | woul d
appreciate that. | think everybody on the
commttee woul d. Thank you.

M . Hammond, you consistently wite
about that we spend too nmuch noney on
Medicaid, all the time. So I'mcurious --
and | have great respect for you, and you
know that -- does the Enpire Center go out
and | ook in the counties and the communities
that are crying out for nore access to
heal t hcare, and so do you actually see too
much noney bei ng spent sonewhere?

| mean, is it what | used to call, as
an ant hropol ogy student, you know, actual
observational eval uation, versus you | ook at
some nunbers on a piece of paper and you say

it sounds like it's too nuch?
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MR. HAMVOND: Well, | mean, | think
it's inmportant to pay attention to nunbers
when you're tal king about a programli ke
Medicaid. | nmean, that's -- | nean, | --
you're right, | don't go door to door and
assess peopl e's heal thcare status.

| nmean, 1'Il give an exanpl e of
somet hi ng where, according to the federal
government, our per-capita hospital spending
is the highest in the country and it's been
rising the fastest in the country in the |ast
five or six years. |In 2015, we were 22
percent higher than the national average, and
in 2020 we were 43 percent higher than the
nati onal average.

So sonehow a | ot of our noney -- not
just through Medicaid, of course, but a |ot
of our noney is flowing into hospitals and
it'"s not flowing to other things. Like we
heard earlier about how prinmary care is
underfunded. Part of the reason primary care
i s underfunded is because we put so much
enphasis on institutional care.

Anot her area that | would say is
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underfunded is public health, both at the
county level and the state level. W were
very ill-prepared for the pandem c, and part
of the reason for that is that the Heal th
Departnment has prioritized Medicaid over
public health.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: No time; | can't
ask you another question. The rules apply to
me too. Thank you very much

O her Senators? No, Assenbly, sorry.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  That's al
right.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: There's al ways
anot her Assenbl ynenber.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yeah, there's
al ways anot her Assenbl ynenber.

Assenbl ymenber Ni kki Lucas.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: Okay, hi. How s
ever ybody doi ng?

This was actually sonething that was
nmenti oned earlier, and | think, M. Hanmond,
you referenced it in your testinmony as well.
But the -- as it pertains to the federal

carveout, it was nentioned that the State of




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

349

New York has yet to offer a financial plan to
backfill the potential |oss of the federal
340B revenues.

Wul d you happen to have any data that
coul d break down the inpacted |oss,
especially as it inpacts Black and brown
communities? This can really have an
enornous inpact in Black and brown districts
like mne, which is the 60th, which is East
New York, Brownsville, Canarsie, that really
rely heavily on this type of funding.

MR HAMMOND: So the information that
| have about the financial inpact of the
carveout is based on what's in the financi al
plan. | don't have any independent source of
information on that.

It unquestionably -- you know, it
affects -- it affects providers that benefit
fromthe 340B program which at least in
t heory are serving high-need, |owincome-type
areas. So that's where the inpact would be
nostly felt.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LUCAS: But no specific

dat a.
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MR HAMMOND: | don't have that at ny
fingertips, no.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: Ckay.

MR. HAMMOND: And again, | would be
referring to what's in the financial plan.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Done?

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Ch, sorry.

Lea, ah. Senator Webb. Hello.

SENATOR WEBB: Hi. Thank you.

So ny question -- well, first, thank
you to all the panelists. Most certainly,
M. King, thank you for sounding the alarm
and rai sing even nore awar eness about the
i nportant chal | enges around 340B.

My question is for Lara. | was
wondering if you could expound upon Access to
Hone. This is sonmething that |1've been doing
advocacy for for quite sone tine, and | was
hopi ng you could lift up specifically the
program as relates to Access to Hone for
seniors and people with disabilities
literally having physical access to their

honmes, and what that inpact is.
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M5. KASSEL: You know, | -- if nenory
serves, you are referring to a programthat
provi des honme nodifications and ot her things
that may not have to do with workforce or --
right.

So I"'mnot sure if there are any
changes in this year's budget to that
program |'d be happy to check and --

SENATCR WEBB: Yeah, there's not.
That's part of the problem It's renained
flat at $1 mllion for many years.

And you' re tal ki ng about individuals
who are seniors, people with disabilities,
and havi ng access to their home, and nost
certainly a good nunber of these folks are
Medi cai d- dependent. It is problematic. And
so | was hoping you could lift that up al ong
wi th your other proposals as relates to
addressing health equity for those
popul ati ons.

M5. KASSEL: Absolutely. 1 think, you
know, prograns |ike Access to Home go hand in
hand with all of the other things that cone

to the fore specifically related to Medi caid,
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such as Fair Pay for Hone Care and wages,
et cetera.

You can't -- in many cases you can't
have one wi thout the other, because if a
person can't access their hone, literally, or
use the shower or the toilet, then they wll
not be able to continue to uphold their own
right to live independently. So I firmy
believe that all of it is part of that
package.

SENATOR WEBB: Thank you.

M5. KASSEL: Sure.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y?
ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: I'mgoing to
mx it up; I'mgoing to go in the mddle, |

guess with a question for CHCANYS and al so
for Medicaid Matters -- different questions.
For Medicaid Matters, | find it
interesting, you know, the -- sitting next to
each other there. | wonder if you've taken
any position or believe that the Medicaid
investments in the budget are adequate, and

what m ght you do differently?
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M5. KASSEL: That's a very good
guesti on.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: W have a
m nute, because then | have a CHCANYS
guesti on.

M5. KASSEL: Ckay. |I'll try to make
it quick.

| nmean, | think one of the things that
we always bring to the table related to
Medi cai d and increasing rates or
rei nmbursenent or what have you, whatever is
done needs to have some commensurate | ook, as
| said earlier, about what are we doing on
the institutional side but, nore inportantly,
what are we doing for the providers that
actually reach people where they are in the
comunity.

And also, if we're increasing rates or
rei nbursenent or what have you, let's nake
sure that it also shows quality, that the
gqual ity goes up. That access to services
actual ly goes up. Because you can add noney
to the program but if you don't go far

enough to actually address the access issues,
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you won't have actual changes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

And | ead. You know, we had that --
first thank you for the last three years of
COvVID. | mean, you were really front-1line,
you know, nei ghborhood health centers. And
now the Health Departnment's proposing that
you again front-line in trying to help
resol ve, you know, lead in children and
so forth.

You know, on the Zoom we were on, you
had suggested that the departnents -- you
know, 17 of them | guess -- would need about

$58 mllion to do the right kind of job.

Which seens like a ot of nobney. It's a
little nore than 3 mllion per departnent.
And | just wondered exactly what would be --

you know, what does that |ook |ike?

DR. GELMAN. Thank you very nuch for
t hat questi on.

So NYSACHO actual Iy has provided the
breakdown in the witten testinmony, and it's
actually on page 8 of 19 pages. And

currently the New York State Departnent of
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Heal t h has designated 19 counties as --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Ni net een what ?

DR. CELMAN. N neteen counties as
having areas of high risk for lead. So zones
within 19 counti es.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  But two are
within the Health Departnent, right, and 17
are | ocal .

DR GELMAN. Correct. So you're
absolutely correct. Two are partial-service
counties, and the remaining 17 are
full -service counties, neaning that the
county picks up the entire burden of having
to correct those cases.

Now, when a | ocal health departnent
that's full-service goes out to actually have
interventions -- and typically we receive the
el evated bl ood |l ead | evel |abs, and we
follow up both with nursing and the clinica
care for the chelation of that resident and
that child, as well as an environnental
heal th assessnment determ ni ng what the
underlying etiology is. So --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

356

Maybe you could just send ne sone
information. Thank you so nuch

DR, GELMAN: W'l provide the
breakdown of what that actually entails.
Because we' ve been dealing with lead for
decades now on the local |evel. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: Do you have
anybody el se? W have two 4.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  No, | don't see
any ot her Senators raising their hand.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N Assenbl ynenber
Jessi ca Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS: |
really want to thank you all for your work.
| think we've partnered in sonme way, shape or
formover the last two years.

And Charles King, thank you for your
advocacy. | really support it, and | think
this Legislature is behind this.

My question is actually for
Dr. Gelman. Regarding the tobacco ban on
flavored products, does that include hookah?

DR GELMAN: So the Governor's

proposal is for nenthol-flavored tobacco, so
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cigarettes. And what the local inpact is
real |y what NYSACHO was advocating for as a
public health neasure, to extend the sanme and
to apply the sane rules, essentially, for any
form of conbustible, whether that's cannabis,
whet her that's anything el se.

And where hookah cones into play is
really on the local level, the health
departnments are tasked with enforcing the
flavored vape ban. And it becomes extrenely
difficult to enforce that on the |ocal |evel
when the sane rules for flavored vapes do not
apply to other flavored forns of either
conmbusti bl es or vapes, such as cannabi s,
especi ally open-cartridge cannabi s.

So that's essentially kind of the crux
of it, is the inpact to public health and
enticing -- with any flavored type of

conmbusti bl es or vapes, enticing younger --

sort of illicit use by m nors.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS: | think
the challenge I'mup against -- | in general

woul d support this kind of ban, but |

represent a district that has a |large
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Arab- Anerican community, and we have a | ot of
hookah coffee shops -- it's a cultural
practice. And | saw sone | anguage agai nst
that, but I know -- | know my conmunity, and
it's not an addiction, it's a cultural
practice. And I'mreally concerned about how
it will inpact a comunity that is already
bei ng policed and faces -- al so through
surveillance, to be further surveilled
because of these cultural practices of
snoki ng hookah.

DR. GELMAN: Thank you for that. And
we woul d be able to discuss this in greater
detail, because again, as | nentioned -- and
we have about 50 seconds, but we woul d be
glad to cone to the table and discuss the
public health inpacts of that.

And as | nentioned, the enforcenent is
not civil. Wen local Health Departnents go
out to enforce, it's under Public Health Law,
and the inpact to retailers and to really
sellers to mnors especially. So we woul d
| ove to discuss this in -- kind of as far as

outreach efforts, education around any forns
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of conbusti bl e or vape use.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  But as
you understand it, the Governor's proposal
ri ght now does not include hookah? As
witten in her budget, correct?

DR GELMAN: It does not. The current
proposal is for nenthol tobacco.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Ment hol
t obacco, okay. Thank you very rmuch.

DR. GELMAN: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Anna Kel | es,
Assenbl ynenber .

ASSEMBLYWOMAN KELLES: Thank you, al
of you, for being here.

| did want to just thank you,
M. King, for bringing up the overdose
preventi on centers.

| do want to note that that is a
hugely -- has a huge inpact on the budget and
Medi caid costs. Let me put ny public health
hat on for a second. The stigma around it
literally drives nme absolutely nuts, because
the data shows that it increases treatnent,

peopl e who seek treatnment, decreases the
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spread of H'V. It decreases the spread of

hepatitis C, it decreases the spread of al

particul ar types of diseases that we do not
want spreadi ng that cost the state a

t remendous anount of noney.

So just thank you, because it has been
around since the 1970s in other countries,
and our stigma is ridiculous.

Second, the only question | have for
you, you were tal king about the cost of
housi ng for people with HV living outside of
New York City. Do we have an estimate of how
many people that is and the differential in
anount of funds that they would get for
treatnent -- for rent?

MR KING Yes. So we estinmate that
this woul d i npact about 3500 househol ds.

And the proposal is that localities
woul d still pay their portion on the initial
480, which was legislated |ike 30 years ago,
as the rental assistance nunber for people
with HV. People with HV would pay
30 percent of any income they have above

publ i c assistance, and then OTDA woul d pick
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up the difference up to 110 percent of the
fair market rent. And this is in a bill

i ntroduced by Senator Hoyl man and

Assenbl ynmenber Bronson.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: And just to be
clear, it's 3500 households, so a very snall
i mpact on the state's cost. But it would be
a huge inpact on comrunities because being
destabilized with housing, of course --

MR KING It is such little inpact --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Correct.

MR. KING -- that you would not have
to add one dollar to the OIDA budget for OIDA
to be able to absorb this cost.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Thank you so
much.

And to Ms. Kassel -- that's how you
pronounce it, correct?

M5. KASSEL: Mm hmm

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: You were
talking a bit in your testinony about
prioritizing the interest of consunmers in
Medi cai d managed care. And | just want to

give you a little bit nore tinme to tal k about
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what you wote in your testinony.

M5. KASSEL: Sure.

So we have for many years had a
managed care workgroup that dives into these
issues all the time. And we began this work
when the original Medicaid Redesi gn Team
prescri bed that all of Medicaid be
adm ni stered through nanaged care pl ans.

That really ranmped up our work in this regard
because we thought that it would be inportant
to really exam ne very carefully how peopl e
access their services when they are covered

t hrough a nanaged care plan. |Is their access
different, et cetera.

So sone of the things that we're
| ooking at for this year have to do with,
agai n, going back to data and transparency --
we do have sone |egislative | anguage that's
been shared -- and | ooking nore deeply at
bot h consuner protections and managed
|l ong-termcare, as well as deeper data
col l ecting and reporting.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Sorry, | have to

cut you off. You' re welconme to continue
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of fline afterwards.

Al right, any other Assenbly?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N No.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Any ot her Senat e?

Well, then we want to thank this panel
very rmuch for your participation today.
Appreciate it.

And | amgoing to call up -- where am
|? Hello -- Leadi ngAge New York; New York
State Health Facilities Association; and
Long Term Care Conmunity Coalition. That's
Panel E.

And for people follow ng on the
scorecard, Panel F mght want to get ready to
come up, which will be Agencies for
Children's Therapy Services; The Children's
Agenda; Consuner Directed Personal Assistance
Associ ation; and the Center for |ndependence
of the Disabl ed.

Let's mx it up. Let's start to ny
right, your left. Hi.

MR. FOSTER. Hi. Can you hear ne?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Yes.

MR FOSTER: Beautiful.
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Thank you for inviting nme to provide
testinmony today. M nane is Stefan Foster.
| am a policy researcher for the Long Term
Care Conmunity Coalition, and forner
vol unt eer onbudsman with the New York State
Long Term Care Qrbudsman Program

The Long Term Care Conmunity Coalition
is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organi zation
dedi cated to inproving care and quality of
life for residents in nursing homes and
assisted living. Roughly 117,000 people
reside in nursing hones in New York State.
Unfortunately, these vul nerable individuals
are far too often subjected to substandard
care, abuse and neglect. Care problens
persi st not because facilities |ack
resources, but rather because we fail to
enforce the | aws protecting residents and
fail to hold accountable a powerful provider
i ndustry funded al nost entirely by New York's
t axpayers.

We have | ong known that insufficient
staffing is a widespread problemin New York

State, which consistently ranks anong the
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worst in the U S., according to federal data.
As an onmbudsman for several years, | saw
firsthand how this harns residents. Wthout
a mnimmstaffing standard, safe care in
nursing homes is essentially voluntary.

The nursing honme industry conpl ai ns
that it does not receive enough noney to
provi de sufficient staffing for residents.
However, the recent |awsuits by the New York
Attorney Ceneral against several major
nursi ng home operators indicate that ranpant
financial fraud and self-dealing are
resulting in understaffing and avoi dabl e
resident harm Too nmany nursing hones use
rel ated-party transactions to hide profits by
funneling vital public funds away from
resident care into conpani es that they
t hensel ves own -- all while claimng that
t hey are underfunded.

In just one of the AGs lawsuits, a
nursi ng home was all eged to have paid a
rel ated party over $15 million in fraudul ent
rent costs.

The inplications are clear. W need
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to take neaningful steps at every level --
fromenpowering famlies to inproving
enforcenment to strengthening financial
integrity -- to stop nursing hone operators
fromputting profits before their residents.
We rnust i nprove oversight and accountability
for nursing hone care in our state. One

resi dent who experiences i nhunane care i s one
too many. And sadly, | have observed many.

For residents to receive safe and
quality care, we rnmust fully inplenment the
| aws around sufficient staffing and financi al
accountability which the Legislature
pronul gated two years ago. Moving forward,
we nmust stand up for residents and famlies,
rat her than bow to the pressure from
New York's nursing home industry.

Thank you for your interest in the
wel | -being of residents and their caregivers
and for the opportunity to provide testinony.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Hi .

MR. HANSE: CGood afternoon. M nane

is Stephen Hanse, and | have the privil ege of
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serving as president and CEO of the New York
State Health Facilities Association, the
stat ewi de organi zation representing over
450 skilled nursing and assisted living
provi ders throughout New York
It's been said that one of the
fundanmental roles of government is to provide
care for those who are unable to care for
t hensel ves. Nowhere is this nore critical
than with New York's nursing home and
assisted living residents who rely on
Medicaid for their care.
However, as a result of the state's 15
years of disinvestnment in |ong term care,
New York unfortunately | eads the nation with
the |l argest shortfall between the anount
Medi cai d rei mburses nursing honmes and the
actual cost of providing essential care.
Specifically, New York statew de
aver age Medi cai d rei nbursenent for
around-t he-cl ock nursing hone care was $211
per resident per day. However, the statew de
average cost of caring for a Medicaid

resident in a skilled nursing facility is
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$265 per resident per day. New York's $211
st at ewi de average Medi cai d rei nbursenent,
when divided by the 24 hours of care that is
provi ded, equals $8.79 per hour.

$8.79 per hour is well bel ow New
York's m nimum age, and this nation-I|eading
under fundi ng of Medi caid has direct
correlations to our state's long-termcare
staffing crisis, the continued operation and
ability to upgrade skilled nursing and
assisted living facilities, and -- as we
heard earlier fromthe hospitals -- the
overal | operation of the healthcare
cont i nuum

The 2023-' 24 Executive Budget
acknow edges the state's history of
under f undi ng of Medicaid and proposes a
5 percent Medicaid increase for skilled
nursing and assisted living providers. Wile
NYSHFA and NYSCAL are grateful for the
5 percent increase, it falls well short of
the 43 percent increase it would take for the
state to make up for its 15 years of cuts to

nursi ng homes.
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However, we recogni ze that a
43 percent Medicaid rate increase, while
desperately needed, is a difficult increase
in one fiscal year. That is why
NYSHFA/ NYSCAL is working with our partners at
1199 SEIU and Leadi ngAge and ot her advocates
in respectfully requesting a 20 percent
Medi cai d increase for nursing hones
t hroughout New York. States throughout the
nation are providing significant double-digit
Medi cai d increases to skilled nursing
facilities.

Wthout a 20 percent Medicaid increase
in the '23-'24 state budget, New York wi ||
continue to fail inits responsibility to
provi ders, enployees and, nost inportantly,

t he vul nerabl e wonen, nmen and chil dren who
rely on essential skilled nursing care.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next ?

MR CLYNE: |I'mJimdyne, the
presi dent and CEO of Leadi ngAge New York. W

have extensive testinony because we represent
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the full continuumof care in New York State,
from nursi ng hones, honme care, assisted
Iiving and nmanaged | ong-term care.

| can't go -- get into my testinony
wi t hout addressing the first testinony. The
only thing that was correct in his testinony
was that we are largely funded by the
government. Oher than that, it was fiction.
The Long Term Care Coordinating Council is
essentially a front group for trial |awers.
Go to their website. The chair of their
board makes her |iving suing nursing hones.
So obviously they have a negative view of the
care being provided.

Wth that said, I'd like to deal with
sonme actual facts. As Stephen said, the
state has the worst Medicaid rate when you
conpare the cost of care with the Medicaid
rei nmbursenent. Fifteen years of unfunding.

I f you look at the charts on page 5 and 6 of
my testinony, you'll see that we' ve al so
gotten no investnents or nearly no

i nvestnments fromthe Medicaid wai ver programnms

or fromthe transition pools -- nothing |ike
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what the percentage of Medicaid we are in the
st at e.

Wthout this significant investnent,
you are not going to see new beds open up.
There's 6,600 cl osed nursing home beds,
closed as in not staffed. They're legally to
be open, but we can't find the staff. That's
6, 600 nore than in 2019.

That's why you're seeing backups in
hospitals. Hospital energency roons are
bei ng affected, not only because they don't
have the staff they need, but they can't get
people up into the roons because they can't
get people out of the roons to the nursing
homes. So the underinvestnment in long-term
care is now affecting the entire healthcare
system

A 20 percent increase would be hal f of
what the nursing hones shoul d be being paid
if we had had a COLA for the previously
15 years. The ultimate solution is to rebase
the system That means nove up to a year
that is closer to what's actually going on as

far as the costs of providing care and who is
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provi ding the care.

By rebasing the systemyou get a nore
accurate reflection of the costs and which
i ndividual facilities were providing the
care.

The other area | just wanted to touch
on is the proposal in the Governor's budget
for med techs that would allow CNAs to
provi de nedications. It's sonething that
goes on in the OPWDD systemright now It's
sonmet hing that could be done safely, and it
woul d really take the burden off nurses from
having to pass nmeds, and allow themto do the
nursing skills that we desperately need in
our facilities.

Be happy to take any questi ons.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

W go to Senator Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

Thank you for being here today.

So a couple of questions, Steve. So
you' ve had -- the request that you fol ks are
maki ng as far as increases in the rates, what

was t he percentage that you tal ked about?
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MR. HANSE: Ri ght now, so New York
under the prior administration, as Jim
nmenti oned - -

SENATOR RI VERA: Since | only have
3 mnutes, I'mgoing to try and get --

MR. HANSE: Ckay. Twenty percent.

Because 15 years ago the COLA was
elimnated by the prior admnistration. And
if you take -- you run the nunbers, it would
actually be 43 percent, where we are now. |If
that COLA was in place, we wouldn't be where
we are today.

SENATOR RI VERA: So you're saying --
so just to be clear, you're asking for 20,
not 43.

MR. HANSE: Correct. W are asking
for 20 percent.

SENATCR RI VERA: Gotcha. So | was
j ust confused about the --

MR. HANSE: W recognize 43 in one
fiscal year is a pretty tough lift.

SENATOR RIVERA: Right. | just wanted
to make that -- nmake sure for the record

understood that correctly.
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MR. HANSE: Correct.

SENATOR RIVERA: So -- and certainly
15 years of disinvestnent, and we've tal ked
about this many tines, there's -- it's very
hard to kind of keep up if you're
consistently trying to -- if you don't have
enough to have stability, you constantly have
to be runni ng behind.

Jim you said at the beginning of your
testinmony -- | just want to nake sure | also
understand that. So you said there was a
fiction. You were referring to the testinony
of this gentlenan before you?

MR. CLYNE: No, the Long Term Care
Coordi nati ng Council, which is the front
group for trial lawers. They're not patient
advocates. Just so you know.

SENATOR RI VERA: (kay. And -- al
right, just wanted to -- just wanted to get
t hose two things on the record.

And bottomline, 20 percent is what
you fol ks feel would be sufficient to be able
address sonme of the -- at |east sone of the

concerns subsequent --
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MR. HANSE: At least in the present.
When we | ook around other states, they're
realizing it and they're doing 27, 28, going
into 30 percent. As we heard earlier through
testinmony fromnultiple fol ks, New York | eads
the nation in underfundi ng nursing hones.
It's just one of the things we |lead the
nation in, in shortfalls in healthcare.

So again, 20 percent, while it won't
solve the problem it will really help nove
us forward. You heard in ternms of the
continuum W are not -- we are -- as Jim
menti oned, over 6500 beds are not able to be
staffed. W can't conpete agai nst Target
payi ng $22 now, based on the Medicaid rate.

SENATOR RI VERA: And anyt hi ng you want
to conment on in the [ast 32 seconds?

MR. FOSTER: | would just add that any
i ncreases in the budget nmust cone with
accountability for ensuring good care and
i ncl udi ng appropriate staffing.

| have direct experience working with
residents and famlies, not as a professional

| obbyist. W need to keep track of where the
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noney goes in nursing honmes, and this can be
achieved by fully inplenenting the safe

m ni mum st af fi ng and m ni mum spendi ng | aws
that were promul gated by the Legislature two
years ago.

SENATOR RI VERA: (Ckay. Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

W go to Assenbl ywoman Paul in.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you,
Madam Chair. Wl conme back, thank you

So | wonder if -- you nmentioned
rebasing it. Do you have any specifics, you
know, with a certain way of doing it? You
know, there's |ots of ways.

MR. CLYNE: Yeah, it's a conplicated
process, and it would be great if the
department woul d set up a workgroup to work
on it that everybody could have a chance --
right now the statute already states that the
state shoul d be rebasing periodically.
Certainly 15 years is not periodically.

We're going to work on some | anguage

that would try to put some paraneters around
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rebasing. Most other states do it every five
years in order to catch up the cost and al so
sort out where the noney goes for the
appropriate providers.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

And to your know edge, do you -- have
t here been any nursing honmes cited for |ack
of safe staffing?

MR. HANSE: Based on the 3.5 or the
new | aws that are in place? The Departnent
of Health is still promulgating the
regul ations. W're waiting for the final
regul ati ons.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  That's it for
me. Thank you.

MR. CLYNE: That's an interesting
point. | just want to give you one other
point. So the 40/70 |law already requires the
spendi ng on resident-facing care and
direct-care staff, so that's already the | aw
Ni nety-plus percent of ny nmenbers neet that
statute, yet 57 percent of them cannot get to
the 3.5 hours.

And it's because the rate is too | ow




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

378

So even when we're doing 70/40 |ike you
requested, again, 90 percent of ny nenbers,
they can't hit the 3.5 hour mark because
there's just not enough noney. Medicaid pays
for 70 percent of the care.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: | woul d just
ask one nore question as a foll ow up.

The 20 percent increase in Medicaid,
woul d that open the 6,000 beds that we're
tal ki ng about ?

MR. CLYNE: That woul d open beds.

MR. HANSE: Absolutely. Absolutely.

MR. CLYNE: That's why we -- again,
the 5 percent, it's a start, but it is not
going to have an inpact on the level -- |
nmean, there are waiting lists, | have a
menber in Westchester, 65 calls a day | ooking
for placenents.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  We did hear
today that the noney for safe staffing is
supposed to still go out the door, so that
was good news.

MR CLYNE: |If they actually do it.

Now, just -- again, renenber, trust but
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verify, or sonething |like that.

The noney that you appropriated in
'21-'22 never went out.

MR. HANSE: That's correct.

MR. CLYNE: So the noney now, they're
going to say it's going to go out, and in the
| ast 30 days --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So are you
really saying the 5 percent is |ess than
t hat ?

MR CLYNE: It's 2 percent. |If the
187 goes out, then it's not a 5 percent
increase, it's a 2 percent increase.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  Right. Thank
you.

MR. HANSE: Just for nursing hones.
It's just to expand -- there's 614 skilled
nursing facilities in the State of New York
When the data is run, 75 percent of those
cannot neet the 3.5 staffing requirenent.

MR FOSTER: | would like to add that
roughly one-quarter of the facilities in
New York State do neet the federally

recommended 4.1 HPRD requirenment. So safe
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care is possible, but with sufficient
staffing and it needs accountability.
O herwise it's essentially voluntary.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

W go to Assenbl ynan Jensen

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

For Stephen and Jim many of our
| ong-term care providers are still being
tasked with nmandatory HERDS reporting on a
daily basis. M understanding from worKking
in a nursing home before getting elected to
office is that this has trenendous
adm ni strative burden. Wat is the inpact
that this now outdated mandate has on the
ability of your nursing staff to actually
adm ni ster care to their residents?

MR. HANSE: Sure.

To the best of ny know edge, New York
is the only state requiring daily data
reporting such that -- other states have gone
to weekly, biweekly, nonthly. Wat it is
doing is taking skilled nurses away from

provi ding direct care and basically nmaking
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them report data which actually is very
volum nous. It's a daily, 365 days a year --
it takes a lot of tinme. So it's actually
taking away fromdirect care on the floor.
ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Last -- two years
ago, and then we anended it |ast year, we
created a Rei magi ni ng Long- Term Care Task
Force. That entity was supposed to -- the
ef fective date was the begi nning of Decenber
Are either of you aware of either the
cochairs -- | wish | would have had a chance
to ask the conmm ssioner earlier, whether it's
t he commi ssioner of Health or the director of
Ofice for the Aging -- an understandi ng of

when that task force may begin its statutory

wor k?

MR HANSE: |'ma nenber, | was
appoi nted a nenber of that. |'ve gone
t hrough the background check. | have not

received any information as to when the first
nmeeting wll be.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Do you think that
inlistening to the statutory stakehol ders

that are supposed to be a part of that
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task force, it's inmportant for it to begin
its work, to begin providing recommendations
to the Legislature and the Governor on the
ways to nove our |long-termcare ecosystem
forward into the 21st century?

MR. HANSE: | woul d say absolutely.

As Jimnmentioned, fromrebasing to staffing,

t he whol e spectrum of issues facing |ong-term
care in New York need to be dealt with in a
holistic way and not a siloed way. And |
think that conmittee is the vehicle to do
that. So | think that it is appropriate to
nove forward on that as soon as possible.

MR. CLYNE: And the CGovernor al so has
the Master Plan on Aging goi ng on, but they
are not |ooking at the long-termcare system
specifically. So unless there's going to
be -- unless this other group is going to
| ook at it, then nobody's going to be.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  And |'m
antici pating some nore questions on the
Medi cai d rei nbursenent rate increase. But |
do want to point out that |I think it was | ast

week the progressive bastion that is the
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Sout h Dakota State House of Representatives
did pass legislation mandating that their
state woul d have a hundred percent nursing
home rei nbursenent -- and that it would still
not cover the cost of care in that state.

So certainly while other states are
choosing to nake that investnment, certainly
we shoul d take the time in New York State to
fix the failings of a generation and ensure
that we can actually have the costs of care
covered for sonme of our nost vul nerable
resi dents.

MR CLYNE: Yes. |In the mddle of
COvVI D, renenber, we took a 1.5 percent cut.
But every other state was investing.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you bot h.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

W go to Assenbl yman Gandol f o.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFG:  Thank you,
Madam Chai r.

Thank you all for being here and
provi di ng your testinony.

So we heard a | ot about staffing

i ssues at our nursing homes and | ong-term
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care facilities. |If ned techs were

i ntroduced in nursing homes, what kind of

i mpact woul d that have on care and staffing
in these facilities?

MR CLYNE: | think it would not
i npact care at all. Again, in the OPWD
system it's been going on for 50 years.

You certainly have to train the CNAs,
and they have to work under the supervision
of a nurse. But what it does is it takes an
easi er task of passing nedications away from
the nurse and allows the nurse to spend nore
time on things |like assessnent that only a
nurse can do.

MR. HANSE: Yeah, | would actually
say, to build upon Jims point, it would
i nprove care, because the nurses will be
acting to the full extent of their license in
providing direct care. As opposed to pushing
a ned cart.

ASSEMBLYMAN GANDCLFO. Great. That's
it for me. Thank you very nuch

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to

Assenbl ywoman Jen Lunsford
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you.

This question is | guess for Stephen
and Jim

Wen we | ook at the 5 percent, there
are many ways that that's reduced, whether
it's the 187,000 for dealing with our
county-run nursing hones, the 340B issues,
the eFMAP issues will further reduce that. |
wanted to give you an opportunity to discuss
the difference in the solvency and quality of
care in our nursing homes if they receive the
5 percent versus the 20 percent Medicaid
i ncrease.

MR CLYNE: | think the 5 percent wll
certainly provide sonme stability. | still
t hink there woul d be sone cl osures of
not-for-profit homes. W've had 50 hones
close or be sold. So we're rapidly noving to
a systemw thout not-for-profit care.

But certainly the staffing, you would
have a better chance of nmaking the 3.5 hour
requirenent with that 5 percent. [|'m not
convinced the 5 percent would actually get us

there. And again, | think there's sone
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confusion -- again, Medicaid is the overal
payer. Medicare is the next biggest payer.
The governnent totally controls what we get.
There is no place to cost-shift, there is no
pl ace to get noney from sonewhere el se.
There's no ability to shut down your

services. |It's 24/7 taking care of people.
So the only thing we can go back on is taking
beds of fli ne.

MR. HANSE: And one thing we've seen
in New York City and we're seeing this in
nur si ng homes now, many of the hospitals sign
a contract with their nurses for a 19.1
i ncrease. W have |ost key nurses to the
hospitals. And we don't blame them They
are making -- one of ny nenbers yesterday was
telling nme he lost his two top key nurses:
One left for a hospital to nake 25,000 extra
dol | ars, and one 40,000. He couldn't pay.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD: So we are
certainly tal king about now just a matter of
i ncreased care, but at 20 percent we could
bri ng beds back onli ne.

MR. HANSE: Yeah.
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ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  And at 5
percent we are still going to continue to
| ose beds off the 6600 we currently | ost.

MR. CLYNE: Because the first priority
is going to be hit, the 3.5 staffing hour
requirenent.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you
very much. That's all | have.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan
But t enschon.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON:  Thank you
to all of you for the inportant testinony.

This question is for Stefan. | know
that you talked quite a bit about
accountability. If you could choose the
three top priorities for accountability, what
woul d t hey be?

MR. FOSTER: Thank you for that
guesti on.

| think the three top priorities for
accountability are financial transparency,
ensuring sufficient staffing, and where
excess nonies are spent, where profits are

spent, which is in sync with financial
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accountability. And ... yeah, | think
honestly, that's what | woul d enphasi ze.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN BUTTENSCHON:  Thank you,
Chair. M coll eagues asked ny ot her
guesti ons.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

So back to the Senate. W have no
ot her 4.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: (M c off.) No
ot her Senat ors.

So | want to thank you very much for
your participation today -- | want to thank
you very much for your participation, on nc.

And now we're going to ask the next
panel to conme down and join us, and that wll
be the Agencies for Children's Therapy
Servi ces, some guy named Steve Sanders -- |'m
sorry. Assenbl ynenber Steve Sanders, sorry.
He was ny Assenbl ynenber, to be fair. The
Children's Agenda, Brigit Hurley; Consumer
Directed Personal Assistance Association,
Bryan O Mal |l ey; and Center for |ndependence
of the Di sabl ed-CIDNY, Heidi Siegfried.

W are mixing it up; I'mgoing to
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start with Steve Sanders, to ny right, your
left, and then we'll just go down.

MR. SANDERS: Good afternoon. It's a
pl easure to be here again with all of you.

My nanme is Steven Sanders. |1'mthe
executive director of Agencies for Children's
Therapy Services. M association provides
nost of the Early Intervention services for
the 70,000 famlies and their infant and
toddl er children across the state.

I nterestingly enough, just a few hours
ago, the State Conptroller issued what
woul d refer to as a rather scathing report of
the state's oversight of the Early
I ntervention Program \Wat the Conptroller
found was that over half of the children
enrolled in the Early Intervention Program do
not receive all of the services that they
have been di agnosed and eval uated to
receive -- over half do not get the services
t hat they need.

Over a quarter have their services
del ayed beyond the state's statutory period

of tinme the services are supposed to be
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instituted after the evaluation is conpl eted
and the famly serve plan is adopted. And

t housands of children -- thousands -- don't
recei ve services at all.

So the question is why. Wy are we
failing? And the answer, sadly, is very --
is very easy to understand. |It's not
conplicated. The rates in the Early
I ntervention Program are | ower today than
they were in 2009, |ower today than they were
in 2009. This in spite of the fact of rising
costs, inflation -- we all know about that.
So what is the ram fication of these rates
t hat have renmi ned stagnant and in fact are
| oner than they were 14 years ago?

Well, not surprisingly, according to
t he Departnent of Health -- these are their
statistics, not mine -- over 1800 therapists
have left the Early Intervention Programin
the last four years. Sixty-five agencies
have closed. The ratio of children to
therapist is at an all-tinme high. The bottom
line is that there sinply is not the

wor kf orce any longer to provide all the




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

391

services to all the children who need them
And that is causing famlies an enornous
anount of msery and difficulties.

Fortunately, there is -- there is sone
good news here. And the good news here is
that there is new noney, new noney in the
budget that cones fromthe Early Intervention
Program $40 mllion -- unall ocated,
unspent -- that ought to be reinvested back
into the Early Intervention Programto
support a rate increase this year.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: (M c of f;
i naudi bl e.)

MR. SANDERS: Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Next ?

MR. O MALLEY: Hi, everyone. Thanks
for the opportunity to talk to you today.

My name is Bryan O Malley. |'m--

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Can you pull it a
little closer to you?

MR. O MALLEY: Sure. M nane is Bryan
O Malley. |1'mexecutive director of the
Consuner Directed Personal Assistance

Associ ati on of New York State. W're
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fighting for a stronger CDPAP for the
consuners who rely on it and the agencies who
adm ni ster it.

You have ny witten remarks, many of
whi ch has al ready been covered in whol e and
in part by other wi tnesses today. Wile |I'm
happy to take questions on that, | want to
use this opportunity to briefly talk about
sonme of the conpeting | evers pushing on our
| ong-term care system and how the state has
been addressing them

Nanely, the |audable desire to
increase eligibility through prograns such as
t he Medi caid buy-in expansion and | ast year's
Essential Plan expansion to cover |long-term
care, which are all too often running into a
conpeting desire to mnimze costs within the
prograns thensel ves. Wen you don't provide
the benefits in healthcare, coverage itself
i s nmeani ngl ess.

The enrol |l nent for both Medicaid and
CDPA is clearly laid out in |aw and
regul ation. The state determ nes Medicaid

eligibility, Maxinmus determnes eligibility
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for CDPA or personal care; the plan or county
determ nes the nunber of hours a person
receives. Fiscal internmediaries, or FIs,
adm ni ster services. However, for years now,
despite not having a role in enrollnment or
eligibility, the FI is continually blaned for
the increasing | evel s of service.

The fact is the state's aging rapidly,
and many who are aging are poor. Research
i ndi cates the poor will have a nuch greater
need for |ong-term supports and services, in
| arge part due to the physical inpact of
poverty. Famlies are doing what they can to
keep | oved ones at home, sonething the
Governor and DOH do clearly like. They
included LTSS in the Essential Plan, as |
said, and they're proposing to expand the
Medi cai d buy-in for working people with
disabilities.

We agree the expanded eligibility is a
good idea, but can't help but notice the
m xed messaging inplicit in expanding
coverage conmbined with cuts. [|f the Governor

wants to |l ower enrollnment, she shoul d engage




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

394

in that discussion with you all. W can then
di scuss the nerits of providing these
services. But instead, the budget cuts

provi ders and, worse, the wages of workers --
all of whomare nerely trying to ensure
peopl e have access to the services the
government has said it wants themto have.

Ret urni ng home care to m ni mum wage
just throws gasoline on a workforce crisis
that's al ready out of control. Making
wor kers and CDPAs second-cl ass hone care
wor kers by renoving them fromwage parity
woul d devastate the only program hol di ng t he
| ong-termcare systemtogether. And the
failure to require accountability to managed
care plans to adequately pay for the services
they' re supposed to provide to their nmenbers,
i nstead of stealing funds nmeant for agencies
to pay workers and further enpowering themto
make deeper cuts, is just the definition of
i rresponsi bl e.

Thank you, and |'m happy to take
guesti ons.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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Next ?

M5. SIEGFRIED: Hi. Good afternoon.
|"mHeidi Siegfried. |I'mthe health policy
director at Center for |Independence of the
Di sabled in New York, and our mssion is to
hel p people with all types of disabilities
get the benefits and services and policies
that they need to live independently in the
comunity and not in facilities.

So that would be like the nursing
facilities that were just at the |ast panel,
and psychiatric facilities, prisons, people
with disabilities are disproportionately in
pri sons and people need to |ive independently
in the conmunity. And that's their right
under the Americans with Disabilities Act,
and al so under the O nstead decision, which
Assenbl ynmenber Sinon nmentioned earlier today.

And | do have a prop here. This is a
very old bag that tal ks about the O nstead
Housi ng Subsidy. And that used to be the big
thing that we needed to get people out of
nursing facilities. This bag is so old it

had a CC Tasic {ph} flyer init.
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Now the real issue is hone care.
Right? So here we just saw, even though the
hospitals and nursing facilities wanted a
20 percent increase, they only got a
5 percent increase. W're seeing that the
battl e that we waged for hone care | ast year
has just been decinmated, in the sane budget.
That facilities get an increase and hone care
gets a renegi ng on what we thought was a
prom se to al ways be, you know, $3 above
m ni mum wage -- when it should 150 percent.

But the other issue that | wanted to
bring up that hasn't been di scussed today is
we have a coalition called the Restore Home
Care Access Coalition. And this deals with
the fact that when we finish spending our
i ncreased FMAP, which requires us not to
i mpl enent the Medi caid redesign team cut backs
on eligibility for hone care, we are going to
see a |l ot of people who are not going to be
eligible for home care, are going to go
wi thout, are going to fall, are going to be
hospitalized or may have to admt thensel ves

into nursing facilities.
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And this is really inportant to try to
get this repealed this year because it's not
been i npl emented only because the federal
government has said: You cannot i npl enent
it. And our previous governor, he tried to
sneak into a federal omibus bill the ability
to inplenent it, and our congressional
del egati on canme forward and said, No, we're
t aki ng that out.

And so it's really inportant that
peopl e be able to access hone care by having
the sane eligibility that they have now,
which is not just two or three needs for
physi cal assistance with activities of daily
living. People need |lots of other types of

care in order to stay independent in their

hones.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next .

M5. HURLEY: Good afternoon. M/ nane
is Brigit Hurley. I'mwth The Children's

Agenda, which is the anchor organi zation for
the Kids Can't Wait Canpai gn.
The Kids Can't Wait Canpaign is a
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statewi de coalition of parents, healthcare
provi ders, advocates and grandparents and

comunity nenbers who are deeply concerned
about young children with devel opnent al

del ays and disabilities.

And | cone to you today with three
nmessages that are reflected in ny testinony
that you all have. But | want to nake them
very cl ear.

Nunber one, there are too nany
children in New York State waiting too |ong
for devel opnmental services.

Nunber two, they are waiting because a
hi story of inadequate reinbursenent rates has
caused a henorrhage of providers fromthe
field.

And nunber three is that you al ready
have a partial solution to this crisis with
t he Covered Lives Amendnment, as Steven
nment i oned.

New York State is routinely failing to
conply with requirenents of the federal |DEA
| egislation, and in doing so is losing the

chance to intervene when brain devel opnent is
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nost adaptive. In a child' s early years,
nore than one -- listen to this -- nore than
1 mllion neural connections are nade every

second. So imagine the inpact this has on an
i nfant who needs services and needs to wait
nont hs.

Kids Can't Wait was in Al bany a few
weeks ago, and we nmet with some of you,
know. You m ght have net Lynn. Lynn has a
2-year-old son nanmed Ti not hy who has been
wai ting for speech therapy services for over
a year. So half of his life he's been
waiting for services that he was eval uated
for and was determ ned appropriate for his
devel opnment. So this delay is of course
going to inpact Tinothy, but it is also going
to affect New York State taxpayers likely in
speci al education services needs for the rest
of his school career.

So Tinothy and his famly are not
alone. In '21-'22, 47 percent -- simlar to
what the Conptroller found, 47 percent of
eligible infants and toddl ers experienced

del ays in receiving therapi es beyond a 30-day
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deadl i ne required under federal |law. From
2017 to 2021, there was a 27 percent drop in
t he percentage of children receiving services
on tine.

In addition to delays, we're al so
concerned about the nunber of famlies that
are now being limted to tel ehealth-only
service delivery, regardl ess of whether or
not that's best for the child.

For these reasons, The Children's
Agenda is making the recommendations that are
in ny testinony --

(Laughter.)

M5. HURLEY: -- an 11 percent increase
in rei nbursenent rates and enhancenents for
i n-person delivery.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you al | .

| know that Senator Rivera has
guesti ons.

SENATOR RI VERA: | do.

Thank you for being here, folks.

| want to ask Heidi in particular,
there's one thing that we haven't heard about

today, and it was brought up to ne kind of
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late in the whole process. But let's talk a
little bit about the health home proposal
that the Governor's putting forward. In
particular, | want you to give ne a sense of
what your organi zation's position is on it,
particularly as it relates to fol ks who are
physi cal |y di sabl ed.

M5. SIEGFRIED: |I'mnot that famliar
with the health home proposal. | have seen
that there's been difficulty with
i npl enenting the health home so far, so
peopl e haven't al ways gotten the services
that they're supposed to get in these health
homes. But --

SENATOR RIVERA: So | certainly would
suggest that you do a little digging into it.
|"'m-- | have -- Bryan?

MS. SIEGFRIED: Yeah, | was just going
t o suggest Bryan

MR. O MALLEY: | have a vague
awareness of it. | think that what we're
seeing is what is often the case. The health
homes are providing the care nanagenent that,

frankly, MTC was supposed to provide and
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never has.

The heal th homes, for providing that
care nmanagenent and havi ng successfu
results, are being punished, and the people
who rely on them are bei ng punished by
pul l'i ng peopl e who are succeedi ng because of
this care nanagenent out of the health hone
and subjecting theminto the MLTC sphere,
where they will |ose care nanagenent.

| think, you know, this is not an area
we are explicitly focusing on, but | think
t he health honme nodel is a nuch better node
for New York to be | ooking at than the M.TC
nodel .

SENATOR RI VERA: (kay. And, Heidi,
earlier you -- | figured that you were
tal ki ng about some of the changes that have
yet to be inplenented by the state as rel ates
to activities of daily living -- activities
of daily Iiving.

M5. SIEGFRIED: Ch, yeah. Right,
right.

SENATOR RIVERA: Right. So | wanted

for you to talk a little bit about that,
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since the state has yet to inplenent this.
We just have a minute, but if you could talk
about the consequences that you foresee if
this neweligibility requirenent goes into
effect.

M5. SIEGFRIED: Well, | nean, it
requires that you need physical assistance
with three -- well, nore than two activities
of daily living, and if you have a di agnosi s,
which is conpletely -- you should not have a
di agnosi s-based eligibility. But if you have
a diagnosis of Al zheiner's or denentia, that
you coul d have | ess need.

But whenever we present exanples of
people to legislative staff and we say, do
you think this person would be eligible,
everybody always thinks that they are. And
they aren't. And one of the biggest things
i s the housekeepi ng which is needed, which is
what they call | ADLs, instrunental activities
of daily living. People who just needed that
woul d be conpl etely, you know, ineligible.

Now, we try not to scare people, so we

want to | et people know that they're going to
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be grandfathered if they get it now But for
peopl e who are coming forward in the future,
they won't be eligible.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan

Paul i n.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.
So I'll give you a chance to talk
about the 40 mllion, Steve.

MR. SANDERS: This is ny chance?

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N: Yeah, you got
your chance.

MR. SANDERS: Ckay. It's alittle bit
conplicated, but we don't have tinme to get
into the conplexities, so let nme just say
this as succinctly as | can.

For the first 25 years that the Early
I ntervention Program existed, the first payor
was conmercial insurance. |If a famly was
covered by Prudential, MtLife, whatever, the
services under the Early Intervention Program

woul d be billed to comrerci al insurance.
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What we found over the years, the state
found, is that -- no surprise -- conmrercial

i nsurance was very good at denying cl ai ns.

Ei ghty-five percent of the Early Intervention
clainms that were submtted to conmerci al

i nsurance, they rejected. They paid about
$12 million -- out of a $700 million

Early Intervention Program each year they
paid $12 mllion.

So finally the Legislature a year ago

deci ded -- Assenbl ywoman Paulin was the
sponsor of the bill in the Assenbly --
decided that let's not -- let's not bil

comerci al i nsurance anynore, they're not
paying. W're not going to bill them
anynore, but we're going to assess them an
anount of noney that we believe is their fair
share. And that amount of noney is
$40 million.

So commercial insurance is assessed
$40 mllion a year. They used to pay 12.
The difference between 40 mllion and 12 is
28 million. You see, whatever commerci al

i nsurance used to pay -- $12 mllion -- would
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now be paid by the state and the counti es,
50/50. The state would pay 6 mllion nore,
because comercial's not paying for it, and
the counties would pay 6 mllion nore because
comercial insurance is not paying for it.

That | eaves $28 nmillion fromthe
assessnent, comercial insurance's fair
share, that ought to be reinvested back to
where it cane from the Early Intervention
Program That $28 mllion is unallocated, it
has never been in the budget before, it is
unspent. There is no reason in the world --
rationally, politically, economcally -- why
t hat noney ought not stay in the Early
I ntervention Programto hel p underwite what
Brigit Hurley said is the request, which is
an 11 percent rate increase.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  And | woul d
argue that was the purpose of the
| egi sl ation.

| have one question for Bryan. So --
t hank you.

CDPAP. How many wor kers woul d be

affected by the wage parity |oss?
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MR. O MALLEY: That's a great question
t hat we would know the answer to if
Assenbl ynenber Gonzal ez- Roj as' data
transparency bill were passed.

(Laughter.)

MR. O MALLEY: But right now that sits
in DOH and | have never FO Led it.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Brouk.

SENATOR BROUK: Thank you all. Thank
you for being here today. A speci al
shout-out to ny Children's Agenda
organi zati on over there holding it down in
Rochester. But obviously you all do so mnuch
work statewide. |'mproud to house the
organi zation that's housing Kids Can't Wit.

And so | do want to ask this question
and then -- you know, Brigit, | would | ove
for you to kick it off, and if we've got nore
tinme | would | ove to hear even nore.

But, you know, for me one of the
t hings that always sticks in my head when

we're tal king about the Early Intervention is
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exactly what Brigit said -- and | want to
make sure | get this right -- one mllion
neural connections per second. And | think
that's inportant because when we tal k about
chil dren devel opi ng, especially infants and
toddl ers, we can't operate in nonths or
years, we're operating in literal seconds and
days.

And, you know, one of the things
that's frustrating to nme is that we seemto
never be able to get this done, year after
year, to get these rates up. And | don't
t hi nk people are fully understandi ng when you
don't have an Early Intervention like this
for young peopl e, what happens five years,

10 years, 15 years, 35 years when they're out
in the workforce, going to school or what
have you.

And so | just want to put, you know --
| want to enphasize that, that we are talking
about these crucial, crucial tinmes in these
children's lives that we are conpletely
failing them And we don't get a redo. And

so | would love for you to -- and now |'ve
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taken half the tinme. But | would love for
you to illustrate what it does | ook |ike down
the road when we are failing these children
and unable to bring themthese services.

M5. HURLEY: So two things cone to
mnd, two stories. One is a child who had
made sone progress pre-pandem c and then
regressed because services were not avail able
during the pandem c, and he stopped saying "
| ove you" to his nother.

Second is a young famly who had a --
brought a child, an infant, a prenmature
infant hone fromthe NI CU and normally, you
know, years ago they woul d have gotten a
visit that day fromEarly Intervention to
hel p them manage their baby's feeding tube,
and they waited two weeks for that visit.
That's what | woul d say happens.

SENATOR BROUK: Thank you.

MR. SANDERS: Let nme just -- with
three seconds, let ne just add one nore
point. The Conptroller's report, which
pretty nmuch outlined the consequences of

underfunding the Early Intervention




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

410

Program -- services del ayed, services
denied -- is particularly nore acute in
mnority communities. That's what the
Conmptrol ler said

| f you are Black or you are Hispanic,
t hose nunbers rise dramatically. You are
much less likely to get services or services
ontine. So -- sothere it is.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Okay. Assenbly.

CHAl RMOVAN VEI NSTEIN:  So we go to
Assenbl ynman Jensen

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN: Thank you very
much. Thank you very nuch, Madam Chair.

| was very happy a few nonths ago to
stand besi de The Children's Agenda i n support
of increasing Early Intervention services,
and shared nmy own personal story with
Early Intervention and the journey ny son's
currently enbarki ng on.

So we're tal king about addi ng funding
to provide greater capacity for children to
receive services. But could you talk a
little bit nore about increasing the capacity

of actually the service providers, and
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ensuring that if we're able to grow the
anount of children eligible, that we actually
have the people to provide those services.

M5. HURLEY: Right. So that's the --
that is the key. You know, we're a child
advocacy organi zation. |'mnot used to
tal ki ng about service providers getting
i ncreases; |'mnot an advocate for providers.
But that is the key to this, to getting kids
and famlies services, is that.

And t he people who are currently
provi di ng services are basically, you know,
m ssionaries. They really don't break even
provi ding the services -- partly because they
don't get reinbursed for anything beyond just
the actual reinbursenment rate. So they may
travel, you know, an hour to get to a famly
and provide a service, and they get paid as
much as sonmebody who drives down the street
to provide a service.

So that's one of the reasons why we
are concerned about this tel ehealth grow h.
Not because telehealth is a bad thing --

telehealth is an amazing thing, and it's
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going to be part of our lives noving forward.
But when a child -- | nean, you can inagine a
si x-nmont h-ol d who needs physical therapy;
telehealth is probably not the best way to
del i ver that service.

So that's why we're | ooking for
enhancenents, so that if you do deliver
services in person, you will get reinbursed
for travel or for mleage. You know, we're
not in the business of deciding what those
enhancenents are. W're leaving it up to the
Depart nment of Health.

But all of those -- if you talk to
the -- we brought 12 students from
Nazareth Col | ege here when we cane, and al
of themwere here to say "I have no incentive
to go into Early Intervention" -- because
they get paid so nuch nore in other settings.

MR. SANDERS: |'d just like to
underscore the point again that since 2019,
over 1800 rendering providers, therapists,
have |l eft the Early Intervention Program
Si xty-five agenci es have closed. And the

reason for that is their costs have exceeded
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rei nmbursenents. It's very sinple econom cs.

And it's worse still in mnority
communi ti es.

ASSEMBLYMAN JENSEN:  Yeah, and |
shared the story of my own son. You know,
he's four now, he's in full-day pre-K, so he
gets services through pre-K through a | oca
provi der. But when he was in daycare, the
only reason he was actually eligible for
servi ces was because there was another child
in his daycare class that was there the sane
days that he was, and they were both eligible
for group treatnent.

So if nmy son woul d have been goi ng on
a different day or he woul d have needed
i ndi vidual i zed service, then he would have
not had an avail able provider. So we
certainly have to close that gap.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Any ot her Senators? You're not a
Senator, but | want to get everybody's
attention --

(Laughter.)

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: Wl |, you just




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

414

rai sed your hand when | said any ot her
Senators, so | was doubl e-checki ng nysel f.
It's been a | ong day.

Ckay, no other Senators, but at |east
one ot her Assenbl ywonan.

CHAl RA\OVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: W have
several .

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Ckay, fi ne.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N Severa
4. W'll start with Assenbl ywoman Lunsford.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you
very much. And thank you to ny coll eagues,
who have done a great job helping illustrate
why that 11 percent increase is so inportant
this year.

| did want to give you, Brigit --
because I'm a honer from Rochester -- an
opportunity to talk a little bit about the
need for rate add-ons or higher rates when
you're dealing with in-person services.

M5. HURLEY: Right. So this is
sonmet hing that we're seeing, honestly,
growing rapidly in the New York City area,

and then to a slower extent in other regions
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of the state where providers are choosing to
deliver services only via telehealth. And no
big surprise there, right? They can see many
nore -- as | said, you know, you get paid per
visit. And so if you can do six visits a day
i nstead of three, you're probably going to
prefer to do that.

The problemis that when you -- we're
tal king about infants and toddlers. Early
I ntervention provides services to children
frombirth through age 2. And | think we'd
be hard-pressed to say that there would be a
really great reason to provide telehealth
service delivery to an 18-nonth-ol d.

And so we're sinply saying, as is true
in many ot her services, you know, just get
rei nbursed for the additional expenses --
again, like mleage or even tine just to do
your not es.

So there's a whole ot of work --
there's no -- there's now no | onger any
rei nbursenent for providers to -- say there's
three service providers for one child. They

no | onger get reinbursed for the tinme they




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

416

spend tal king to each other about the child.
They don't get reinbursed for the planning
process for what services a child is to
receive. So it just goes on and on.

| nean, this is why | say the
provi ders are real heroes, because they are
not reinbursed for many of the things that
t hey al ready do.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  From our
provi ders, what we're hearing is that they're
not reinbursed for anything that is not the
direct visit.

MS. HURLEY: Yes, that's true.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  And if we're
going to incentivize our providers to do this
wor k, incentivizing themfor the
recordkeeping and the travel that they have
to do to provide these services seens pretty
essenti al .

| also wanted to ask you a little bit
about what happens to our kids who are nore
prof oundly di sabled. Wen they exit Early
I ntervention services and go into a school

setting and the schools can't adequately
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provi de for those services, what are you
seeing fromyour perspective of where those
children are receiving their services fron?

M5. HURLEY: So you |look like you have
a answer that you want ne to say there, Jen.
| don't know what it is, so I'll just --
unl ess you want to go ahead.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD: No, go ahead.

M5. HURLEY: Ckay. |It's just that
it's not -- so of course what happens is when
t hose kids go into preschool special
education, then they are that nmuch farther
beyond. Wen they enter the school systemif
t hey haven't gotten either, or inadequate
treatment, then they're that rnuch farther
beyond. And if the school district can't
neet their needs, then they are placed in
4410 schools, which is beyond the purview of
this coomttee because it's -- they're
governed by the Departnent of Education. But
t hey --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  And we're
seei ng a decrease when kids are getting their

Early Intervention services, between those
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that enter the 4410s and the 853s than when
they don't receive those services.

M5. HURLEY: Right, absolutely.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUNSFORD:  Thank you
very rmuch

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Any ot hers?

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER: | don't believe |
have any ot her Senators, unless sonmebody
wants to join the Senate quickly. But you
m ght have nore --

CHAl RA\OVAN VEI NSTEI' N W have.

So next, Assenbl yworman Kel | es.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Yes, we could
do this for many hours. |I'mjust trying to
get everything in at three m nutes.

So qui ck questions about the direct --
t he DPAs and home heal thcare aides first. Do
we have an estinmate of the conparabl e cost of
actually officially sufficiently supporting
DPAs and hone heal thcare ai des conpared to
what the inpact would be of how many peopl e
are going to nursing hones? The cost of
nur si ng home care versus hone heal t hcare.

MR. O MALLEY: The cost of hone
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heal thcare is substantially cheaper by tens
of thousands of dollars per year.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: So tens of
t housands of dollars per person. Do we have
a sense of what the current demand is of how
many peopl e need home heal t hcare ai des right
now t hat don't have t hem because they don't
exi st because the pay is so | ow?

MR. O MALLEY: | unfortunately don't
have that nunber off the top of ny head.

What | can say is that we have been
nmeasuring that via surveys in CDPA for the
past seven years. And |ast year when we
rel eased our | ast version of the report,

t hose nunbers were higher than they have ever
been before, and continuing to grow.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: In the
t housands.

MR. O MALLEY: Yes.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: Okay. And just
nmoving to childcare -- thank you, |
appreciate that. Actually, one other
guestion. Eligibility requirenments. MW

understanding is they're going fromcognitive
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and physical and you need at |east one, and
there's about 22 different things that can
qualify you, and it's going down to about
seven and you have to have at |east three of
them and it's only physical, no |onger
cognitive. |Is that correct?

M5. SIEGFRIED: Well, | mean, the fact
that the Al zheiner's diagnosis or the
denmentia would -- you know, that's cognitive.
So, you know, it's factored in.

But yes, there's a huge long list of
different things that you -- that woul d nake
you eligible for home care and --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: So that's our
way of saving noney, by cutting eligibility.

Moving to childcare, really
appreciated Early Intervention. | just
wanted to make sure it's on record, |I'm so
appreci ative of what you said, that it's the
first three years are so inportant because
there is, after those first three years, a
t remendous decline in how many neural -- you
know, the connections are made. Huge,

preci pi tous decline.
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So literally if we don't catch it in
those first three years, we won't catch it.
And those are very highly correlated with
heari ng | anguage, cognitive devel opnent -- we
set that stage for life.

So thank you for bringing that up, and
just a few questions. One is, how | ong does
it take for a provider to actually get paid,
an Early Intervention provider?

MR. SANDERS: It used to take a very
long tine. It used to take sonetines four,
five, six nonths.

Wth the elimnation of comerci al
i nsurance as the payor, customarily | would
say now it is sonewhere between two to four
to five weeks.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: And that's a
good thing. That's why we | ost providers.

One last really quick question --

t hank you so much

MR. SANDERS: You're wel cone.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: The no add-ons
in the budget, that's not in this budget and

we haven't had it for years, correct?




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

422

CHAI RWOVAN KRUEGER: Excuse ne.
Time's up.
CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  The tine's up.

Can't ask a question with one second on the

cl ock.
ASSEMBLYWOVAN KELLES: ['1l follow up.
Correct. The answer is yes.
(Laughter.)
CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan
Si nmon.

ASSEMBLYWOMVAN SI MON:  We're very good
at answering our own questions here.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON: So | have a
guestion -- and I want to thank all of you
for the work you're doing. This issue with
the E is huge, and the CDPAP is critically
i mportant, as you know. And it's so much of
a nore bang for our buck, and we're not using
it. And it's pretty disgraceful

| kind of want to just sort of
pi ggyback on the EI issue -- or issues. And
today a Washi ngton Post article just cane out

on -- they've been scanning brains from
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prenatal to 100 about different connections
and things, and apparently the thickness of
the cerebral cortex peaks at two years ol d.
So again -- and we know our prine |anguage

| earning years are zero to three. Do you
have any perspective -- you know, El is under
Department of Health. The Commttee on
Preschool Special Education, that becones
Depart ment of Educati on.

Do you have any sense whether EI would
be different if it was under NYSED versus
Depart nent of Health?

MR. SANDERS: Very difficult question
to answer. As a matter of fact, going way,
way, way, way back when | was sitting on your
side of this table, I was involved in the
creation of the New York State Early
I ntervention Program and there was a debate
should it go into the State Education
Departnment, does it belong in the Departnent
of Health -- because it's sort of a hybrid.
It's education, it's health-rel ated.

For whatever reason, the decision was

made to make the Departnent of Health the
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| ead agency.

| think the answer to your question
goes back to the very preni se of our concern
which is nmoney. And would -- would the
Early Intervention Program be doing better in
terms of its funding if it were under the
auspi ces of the New York State Education
Departnment? | don't know.

But what | can tell you is that under
this Governor, two budgets in a row, zero.
That foll owed her predecessor, who for
10 years provided virtually zero. And as |
said at the outset, the rates are actually
| ower in 2023 than they were in 2009. Wat
service, what business can survive with those
ki nds of netrics?

So | don't know the answer to your
guestion. I'mnot sure. But what | am sure
about is that whether it's in the Departnent
of Education or Health or Transportation or
Agriculture, it all cones down to funding,
which sinply hasn't been there in recent
years.

M5. HURLEY: Could | add sonething
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just quickly to that? Which is just that the
Early Intervention providers have not
recei ved any COVID-rel ated bonuses or
retention bonuses. So ...

ASSEMBLYWOVAN SI MON:  Thank you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N:  Thank you.

To the Senate.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER: See, | didn't
think I had a question, but | do now.
Because | went to go read that audit by the
Comptroller's office, Steve's -- and the
Senate -- sorry, the response by DOH to the
audit is that the delay and | ack of services
i s because parental consent is not avail able.

Have you ever heard that as a reason
that we're so radically not providing
services that we used to provide?

MR. SANDERS: No. No. No. | think
it's inmportant to understand the process. A
child generally enters the Early Intervention
Programwith a referral fromthe
pediatrician. So it's very often the
pedi atrician who di scovers that there is a

del ay, a possible devel opnental disability.
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The parent probably has noticed that the
child is not reaching their m|lestones.

The parent wants services. The parent
can't access services. So if what the
Departnment of Health is saying is that
because nost of the children don't receive
all the services that they have been
eval uated to need -- that nmakes no sense
what soever, because it's the parents who have
initiated trying to get help for their kids.

And this is nost profoundly inpacted
in mnority communities. That's the other
thing that the Conptroller's audit indicated,
which is that the |ack of services, the |ack
of tineliness is exacerbated if you are a
community with Black and Hi spanic residents.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAl RWOVAN VEEI NSTEIN: W go to
Assenbl ywoman Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  Thank
you all.

Today is February 28th, and | realize

13 years ago to the day, and al nost the exact




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

427

time, | broke my | eg snowboarding. | thought
| was Shaun Wiite, it was a, you know, a year

where the A ynpics were happening. It was

very inspiring. | didn't quite make it. |
couldn't walk for five nonths. | broke ny
femur. It was a hone health ai de who hel ped

feed ne, ensure | was showered, ensured |
could function while | was healing.

This fight for fair pay is profoundly
i mportant for people who are elderly, for
people with disabilities, and that includes
tenporary disabilities. | now walKk,
function, |I'm here today because of the work
of that aide.

So, Bryan, | want to give you a few
nore nonents to underscore the inportance of
this fight, why this wage -- why the proposed
i ncrease in mnimumwage, which is inportant,
undercuts all the work we've done to increase
wages for our home care workers. And just
what the shortage nmeans for the health of
New Yor kers.

MR O MALLEY: | want to -- the

proposed ni ni mum wage i ncrease is a net
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positive all round. The problemis renoving
the indexing to the m ni mum wage that just

| ast year, y'all and the Governor determ ned
home care's not a m ninum wage job. And that
is where the problemlies.

The rising tide needs to lift al
boats, and this rising tide is going to sink
horme care

When people can't get the services
t hey need, they go to hospitals, they go to
nursi ng homes. M board president wound up
sl eeping in her chair and goi ng days w t hout
f ood because she couldn't find a honme care
worker to conme feed her. She couldn't find a
home care worker to transfer her to her bed.
These are the real-1ife consequences of the
home care shortage.

And we can tal k about the fact that
t here are hundreds of thousands of home care
wor kers that have been hired, but that isn't
neeting the need of this rapidly aging state.
Mercer Consulting -- not a bastion of
liberalism-- has said we are not getting

enough home care workers to neet the need,
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and we have the worst workforce crisis in the
country. That's driving up our healthcare
costs, and it's worsening shortages in
hospital s and nursing hones who can't

di scharge to the community because the hone
care doesn't exist.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:  And
what's the ask? Wsat's the solution? | just
want you to put it on record so we can
remnd --

MR. O MALLEY: The solution is fair
pay for home care. The solution is to stop
attacking CDPA. The solution is to not do
t he Governor's wage parity cuts. And the
solution is to let FIs operate the way they
need to.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank

you.
CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Assenbl ywonan
Jackson.
(Pause; off the record.)
CHAl RAOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Ni kki
you're -- | don't know if we acknow edged you

bei ng here before. Assenbl ywoman Lucas.
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Yeah, | think you' re going to be the |ast
one, then.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: |'ve been called
a nunber of things, but never Jackson.

(Laughter.)

ASSEMBLYWOMAN LUCAS: But thank you,
Madam Chair. | appreciate it.

So first, M. Sanders, 1'd like to
t hank you for acknow edging the disparities
within Black and brown communities. Because
when t hi ngs happen ot her places, it happens
ten times, a hundred tines nore in our
communi ti es.

| do want to al so highlight sonething
that the Senator said. W' ve tal ked about a
nunber of different services for different
concerns, but there is an issue, however,
wi th some parents not wanting to acknow edge
sone needs for their children in our
communities. And just as a parent of a high
school student, and have gone through school s
and being very involved, that is an issue and
it definitely needs to be addressed.

But what |'d like to knowis -- are




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

431

two things. One, when it cones to hone care
wor kers, what is the ethnicity of nost of
t hese workers?

M5. SIEGFRIED: Well, | nean, the
popul ation is |largely people of color and
al so i mm grants, and even undocunent ed
immgrants, we've found. | don't know how
t hey get that nunber, but |'ve seen people
report that they're largely inmgrant and
peopl e of col or.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN LUCAS: | kind of asked
t he question because | knew t he answer,
because | wanted it on record that this
usual ly just happens to us. And it's a
problemthat really needs to be addressed, it
needs to stop. And Anmerica just needs to be
ashaned of itself for the treatnment of Bl ack
and brown and i mm grants because, again, it's
just not fair.

Second, is there any data that
supports the connection between the | ack of
services that are received and issues when it
conmes to honel essness, when it comes to

crine? Because | live in the 60th. I
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represent the 60th Assenbly District. W are
hi gh when it conmes to violence, we're high
when it cones to issues of honel essness.

When we | ook at the courts, like the
surrogate's courts, it's very difficult to
get representation for those folks that are
havi ng chal | enges because they can't afford
to get the services.

So I'd just like you to also take a
| ook -- you probably won't be able to
respond -- but include these ideas in what
you' re | ooking at when you're representing
and speaki ng about this issue. Thank you.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUEGER: (M c off.) --
with that one now, but if you would like to
answer it offline, you' re welcone to.

And with that, we're done with
4 and Senators with questions. So thank you
all for testifying here before us today.

MS. SI EGFRI ED: Thank you.

MR. SANDERS: Thank you.

MR. O MALLEY: Thank you

M5. HURLEY: Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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And | amgoing to call up Panel G
Medi cal Society of the State of New York;
Phar maci sts Society of the State of New York;
New York State Nurses Associ ation; CWA,
Communi cati on Workers of America; and
1199 SEI U.

And we're going to invite Panel Hto
get closer to the front, because we'll be
calling themafter. And that will be
Ameri can Cancer Society, Planned Parent hood
Enpire State Acts, Hospice and Palliative
Care Association of New York State, and the
Nat i onal Hookah Community Associ ati on.

kay. So let's start at ny right, and
we'll go down to the left. H . You are?
See if the light lights.

M5. HAYES: Hi . Good afternoon. M
name i s Debby Hayes, and the upstate New York
Area Director for the Conmuni cation Wrkers
of Anmeri ca.

Thank you for giving ne the
opportunity to testify on the need to ensure
sufficient funding to help stabilize

New York's hospital and heal t hcare workf orce.
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|"ma regi stered nurse and have been for
44 years, and |'ve worked in the healthcare
i ndustry for al nost 50 years.

CWA District 1 represents about
15, 000 heal t hcare workers across New York
State, with a heavy concentration in Western
New York, particularly in two struggling
systens right now, the Kal eida Heal thcare
System and the Catholic Health System The
nost urgent crisis facing healthcare
institutions and our nmenbers across the state
is staffing. Unsafe staffing predates the
COVI D- 19 pandem ¢ by decades, but the
pandem ¢ brought us to the tipping point.

Wil e nmuch of the world is now novi ng
on fromthe COVID 19 pandem c, and the public
attention on supporting healthcare workers
has subsi ded, our nenbers and heal thcare
wor kers across New York State continue to
carry a broken healthcare systemon their
backs every single day.

Crisis-level short staffing and
deteriorating hospital working conditions at

t he expense of patient care add relentless
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stress to an exhausted, burned-out and
overwor ked wor kforce. And unfortunately,
there is no end in sight.

The staffing enmergency in our state
requires both a short-termand | ong-term
response. Last year we were pleased to see
the state nake a major investnment in the
heal t hcare wor kforce pipeline with prograns
i ke Nurses Across New York. However, there
is much work to do. The state must continue
robust investnment and incentives to get fol ks
to join the healthcare professions, while
focusi ng on getting workforce devel opnent
progranms online and increasing capacity at
educational institutions and in clinical
pl acenent s.

In the short term the state nust
focus on supporting healthcare enployers to
i mredi ately inprove job conditions and raise
wages in order to recruit and retain the
current workforce.

Wiile there is certainly a shortage of
heal t hcare workers, the biggest threat is the

shortage of good healthcare jobs. A recent
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study fromthe Center for Health Wrkforce
Studies identified workers | eaving for
better-paying jobs, and burnout is the
bi ggest driver of difficulties in retaining
heal t hcare workers in hospitals.

Hospital s and ot her healthcare
enpl oyers nust address staffing and workforce
-- okay. And | submtted testinony, so al
of it will be there for folks to | ook at.
Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next ?

MR. MATHEW Hi. M nane is Benny
Mat hew. |'ma director at |large on the NYSNA
board of directors and a nenber of NYSNA' s
Steering Conmttee at Montefiore Medi ca
Center in the Bronx, where | work as a
full-time registered nurse in the energency
depart ment.

| want to thank the legislators for
giving us an opportunity to address the
concerns related to the health and Medicaid
proposal s in the Executive Budget. W are

supportive of many of the proposals in the
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budget to increase access to healthcare and
funding for hospitals, nursing homes and
ot her heal thcare servi ces.

We do have certain areas of concern
however, about some aspects of the budget
which are laid out in nore detail in our
witten testinony.

First, we join with our fellow unions
and advocates in calling for big increases in
funding for hospitals and nursing honmes, nmany
of which face serious financial pressures.
We urge the Legislature to: Increase
Medi cai d rei nbursenent by at | east
10 percent, with the higher increases
targeted to safety net providers; rescind or
delay the elimnation of the 340B drug
programto nake sure that all safety net
provi ders are made whole and that the federa
government approves alternative funding
sources; target the 1 billion in new
Heal t hcare Transformation Capital Funding to
make sure that the noney goes to the true
safety net providers; fix the Indigent Care

Pool funding to shift nore funding to true
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safety net providers in the formof directed
paynments or increased reinbursenent rates
end the Medicaid cap and all ocate funding for
heal t hcare based on the needs of New Yorkers
and not artificial spending caps.

Second, we support the Executive's
proposal s to expand access to care, but
believe that they do not go far enough.
NYSNA supports universal health coverage for
all New Yorkers, which will also address a
| ot of funding disparities in the current
syst em

In the absence of passage of the
New York Health Act or another plan for
uni ver sal singl e-payer coverage, we woul d
urge the Legislature to take the foll ow ng
steps to expand access to care: Expand the
Essential Plan to include all uninsured
New Yor kers, regardless of their inmmgration
status, using federal waiver authority and
exi sting Essential Plan reserves.

Rej ect the elimnation of "provider
prevails" for Medicaid participants. Mke

hospital s reopen their closed psychiatric
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cares units and restore 850 inpatient beds,
but al so increase reinbursenent rates for
equal i zed psychiatric care paynents,
especially for the safety net hospitals that
provide the lion's share of beds statew de.

| mpl ement neasures to further crack
down on insurance conpany practices that
del ay paynments and patient access to services
to maxim ze their profit.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Hi .

DR. FERRARESE: Thank you. M/ nane is
Dr. Heather Ferrarese --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Bring your mc a
little closer to you, Doctor. Thank you.

DR. FERRARESE: Sorry. Thank you.

My name is Dr. Heather Ferrarese, and
| currently serve as president of the
Phar maci sts Society of the State of New York,
better known as PSSNY.

PSSNY nenbers are united in support
for many of the Executive Budget proposals’
pharmacy-rel ated provisions. You will find

the details in our witten testinony. |
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woul d i ke to focus ny remarks on the
April 1st inplenentation of the Medicaid
phar macy carveout.

Li ke many PSSNY nenbers, | ama
second- generati on pharmacy owner. M father
opened Bartle's Pharmacy outsi de of
Bi nghant on 60 years ago, and he and | have
been providing healthcare side by side since
| earned ny doctorate 25 years ago.

Ever since fornmer Governor Cuono
i mpl enented the managed care system
phar maci es have been under constant fi nanci al
pressure due to underwater reinbursenment by
the plans and PBMs. The state finally agreed
to transition back to fee-for-service when it
realized all of the noney that PBMs and
ot hers have been siphoning off the system
But the Legislature's two-year delay in the
i npl enentation of fee-for-service has |et
t hese parasites continue to thrive.

Under state |law, we are supposed to
receive a $10. 18 fee for dispensing
prescriptions in the Medicaid program

However, we actually receive 50 cents on a
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prescription that's dispensed. As a result,

i ndependent pharmacy is currently subsidi zing
t he Medi caid programinstead of receiving
fair reinbursenment for our services.

Pharmacy deserts are growi ng across
the state. Pharmacies are closing, even
| ar ge chai ns, because the system sinply does
not work. In ny rural area, a |large
corporate chain was recently excluded from
t he Medi cai d network, which caused thousands
of Medicaid patients to | ose their pharmacy
access. Meanwhil e, independent pharnacies
across the state report |ayoffs, decreasing
store hours, cutting back on enpl oyee
benefits, and owners taking personal |oans to
stay afloat. Yet we have no capital fund, no
rate increase, and w thout fee-for-service,
we have no hope.

Recent | egislation has been introduced
and franmed as a conprom se. However, the
bill does not solve the problem because it
| eaves PBMs in the space, and it cuts the
pharmacy di spensing fee down to $8.50.

On the ot her hand, the Governor's
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proposal will nmake the 340B entities whol e by

reinvesting nearly 400 mllion into those
entities. Today you have heard themtestify
t hat carveout is a net zero; in other words,
they will not | ose noney. Make no m st ake
about it, anything but the on-tine

i mpl enentation of NYRx is a continued ask of
pharmacy to be rei nbursed negatively for the
filling of prescriptions.

PSSNY and its menbers are urging you
to support the return to fee-for-service in
t he Medi caid program

Thank you, and | | ook forward to your
guesti ons.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next ?

DR PIPIA: Yes, hi. GCood afternoon.
|"'mDr. Paul Pipia. | thank you for the
opportunity to speak.

|"'mthe chair of the Departnent of
Physi cal Medicine at Nassau University
Medi cal Center, and | am president-el ect of
the New York State Medical Society.

The Governor's proposed budget
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contai ns a nunber of neasures we support to
enhance physician-delivered care to our
patients, but it also contains concerning
itens that will adversely affect inpatient
care. Qur testinony has been submtted.

We thank the Governor for proposing to
continue a nunber of inportant programs: The
MBSNY Committee for Physicians Heal th, which
absolutely is an essential programto help
address the grow ng probl em of physician
burnout; the Excess Medical Ml practice
| nsurance Program which provides nearly
16, 000 physicians with a suppl enental |ayer
of liability insurance coverage, which
ot herwi se woul d be unaffordable in New York's
excessi ve hi gh-cost environnent; proposals to
hel p ensure access to care in underserved
areas, including the Doctors Across New York
nmedi cal student |oan repaynent program and
proposal s to increase the reinbursenent for
care received by patients insured by Medicaid
and the Essential PIan.

However, we oppose sone of the

proposed burdensonme new pri or-authorization
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requi renents on physicians witing
prescriptions for their patients insured by
the state's Medicaid program Physicians and
their staffs are already drowning in excess
paperwor k and phone calls and are taking tine
away from patient care.

We're al so very concerned with the
proposal to require the DOH approval for
private physician practices who wi sh to nerge
with other practices, which will reduce
patient choice of care setting and prevent
i nnovative ways of expanding quality care and
del i very.

However, nost inportantly, we strongly
oppose Part W which would fundanental |y
restructure New York's healthcare delivery
system by significantly expanding the scope
of healthcare services delivered by PAs,
pharmaci sts and others. W are deeply
concerned these proposal s woul d adversely
i npact patient care by conpletely renoving
t he i mportant oversi ght and coordi nation that
a physician provides, particularly as it

relates to the ordering of diagnostic tests




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

445

and eval uation of effective services.

Wth regard to proposals to permt
physi ci an assistants to practice
i ndependently after 8,000 hours of care, ny
resi dency was 16,000 hours -- but nerely
accurrul ati ng hours did not nmake ne a
physician. | had to achieve nm | estones which
were set and constantly nodified by national
certifying boards that oversee residency
training prograns. | also had to pass a
certifying exam and every 10 years nust
conpl ete continuing certification to maintain
nmy board status.

These standards are crucial to
ensuring patients receive the best possible
care, and should not be overl ooked.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next, Hel en?

M5. SCHAUB: Thank you very nuch for
allowing us to testify today. M nane is
Hel en Schaub. 1'mthe interimpolitical
director at 1199 SEIU. W represent about
350, 000 heal t hcare workers throughout New
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York State, from hone care workers, including

consuner -directed workers, to workers in
FQHCs, to nursing hones, to hospitals and
pharmaci es. So we represent the broad
spectrum of workers affected by nmany of the
policies that you' ve been discussing here

t oday.

A lot of things have been touched on;
we' ve been naned in sone other people's
testinmony, so | just wanted to make a few
poi nt s.

One, certainly people have tal ked
el oquently about the real workforce crisis
facing the healthcare industry, why people
are leaving, the trauma of the experience
during COVID. Certainly for the long-term
care sector, the noney and having to conpete
wi th Target paying a couple of dollars nore
than a nursing hone is able to pay CNAs or
t hat heal thcare workers are nmaki ng. The
conpetition with agenci es and worki ng
al ongsi de soneone who's making three tinmes
what you're maki ng and has | ess strenuous

work to do because they're not being given
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the full conplenent of responsibilities that
a staff nurse mi ght be given.

And fundanmental |y, many people are
| eavi ng just because they can't provide the
kind of care that they know their patients
and residents and clients deserve. \Wen
they' re working short-staffed, they go hone
every day, our menbers go home every day
feeling |ike they couldn't do their jobs.
And they couldn't do the kind of -- they
couldn't provide the kind of care that
brought themto be a healthcare worker in the
first place. And many people just can't do
t hat anynore.

So it's a vicious cycle that has to be
addressed by a nunber of interventions,
i ncludi ng being able to rai se wages,
especially for the | owest-paid workers. W
really have a fundanmental structural problem
which is that Medicaid rates have not been
raised for 15 years. And | don't think
anybody here can inmagine that the costs have
not gone up and particularly gone up

exponentially during that period of tine.
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What we're really hoping that the
Legislature will be able to do in this budget
is start to fundanmentally address that
structural problem Because if we don't, the
foundati ons are shaky, they're going to keep
cracking, they're going to fall. W have to
recogni ze that costs go up, paynent has to go
up. And it's the state as a payer,
particularly in the |long-termcare system but
also in the safety nets, that has to take
responsibility for actually paying for the
services that the Medicaid beneficiaries need
and deserve. Because they're not going to be
abl e to access those services. Already
they're not able to access all the services
t hey need because the payer is not paying
appropriately for those services.

We are asking you to nmake those kind
of investnents, to increase Medicaid rates
10 percent for hospitals, 20 percent for
nursi ng homes, to invest in the safety net
institutions. W also believe there are
savings to be had through the Managed

Long- Term Care Program and ot her prograns.
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So opportunities to right-size sone of the
probl ems, structural problens in the system

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Thank you.

Senat e?

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

kay. Senator Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

Two things. To the Pharnmacists
Society. So | thank you for being here
t oday; obviously you' ve been here during nost
of the conversation that we've had during the
day. So a couple of things that | just want
to kind of say off the top.

There is -- | have been pretty
consistent on the fact that | care deeply
about comrunity pharmacies in particular. |
know that there's -- if Roger's watching
somewher e, Roger Paganelli, who's a dude who
has been consistently in ny ear about this, |
actually care, even though there have been
some things said that | don't, particularly
because of the bill that | introduced.

Two things that | will say. Nunber

one, | believe that there is a good
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conprom se to be had by having an 8.50 fl oor
for a dispensing fee, as well as protections
that are in the bill. Wat | wuld say, and
| will this publicly, as | said it privately
earlier to your president, | remain open. |If
there are things you think the bill needs to
do differently to be able to better protect

pharmaci sts, | want to be able to hear about
that and | want to be able to inplenment it.

But we feel pretty strongly -- |
certainly do -- that we can't allow the
transition to happen because of the inpact
that it will have on all the providers that
we tal ked about during the day.

But | just wanted to say it to you,
and publicly again: | remain open. |If
there's things in the bill that's currently
out there, 5136, that you think don't
adequately protect folks, | believe that is a
good conpromise. It is not 50 cents. It is
not 10.18. But 8.50 is a good floor to start
from So | just wanted to say that.

And second, for -- for folks -- Helen,

you obviously ran out of time but | wanted to
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give you a little bit of tinme to talk about
-- there was a question that | posed to the
folks in the Health Departnent and the
Medicaid director earlier. There's a report,
the MLTC report that I'mnot sure -- |'m not
sure if it's even in ny enmail inbox. It
m ght be in there. But there are rea
guestions that | have, and | know that we've
got to talk about this, like: 1Is this
serving us well? 1s this M.TC system serving
us well in the State of New York?

M5. SCHAUB: We would say no. You
know, the -- it was a little nore than
10 years ago when there was a decision to
nove the entire popul ation of fol ks who need
personal care under nanaged | ong-term care.
At the nmonent, at that time, the prom se was,
A it's going to save noney, they're going to
manage utilization, and it's going to be a
step on the pathway to people being enrolled
in fully dual-eligible plans where the state
could potentially capture some of the
Medi care savings. Wich is an inportant goal

if it were to happen.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

452

It did not happen. | think 10 years
ago people started walking in this direction;
we're now over here (gesturing). Uilization
has expl oded. The state has not only not
saved noney, but spent a | ot nore noney. And
there's only a 17 percent of the popul ation
enrolled in dually capitated plans.

So we're left with this partially
capitated system W're expending a
t remendous anount of admi nistration,
al nost -- the vast mpjority of the plans and
all the largest plans are for-profit, so
we're including a lot of profit, to deliver
one service. And we think we could deliver
that much nore efficiently and effectively.

SENATCR RI VERA:  Much nore to discuss.

Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Assenbl y.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Assenbl ywonan
Paul i n.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  So just to
continue on the same thenme, what ideas do you

have for the future? | know that there are
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some that you're thinking about.

M5. SCHAUB: So we believe that if you
noved to what sone ot her states, including
Washi ngt on, including Connecticut, have done,
what's call ed a managed fee-for-service
system -- so you would need to have a care
managenment program You coul d spend about
t he sane anount of nobney you're currently
spendi ng now on care nmanagenent. But you
woul d be -- the state woul d be paying the
providers directly.

The state woul d know how nuch the
providers are getting paid, which it
currently doesn't know. It would know which
provi ders are providing the services, both on
the LHCSA and the FI side. And you would
elimnate this very large adm nistrative
structure to deliver one service. It's not
really insurance, because the vast nmgjority
of the noney being spent is to deliver just
t he hone care service.

We think, you know, parti al
capitation, it was -- there was a vision, it

did not get realized, and we ought to be
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taki ng a fundanental | ook at how best to
deliver the service. W think if you' ve nmade
that switch, we have an anal ysis that shows
the state could save about 1.5 to 3 billion
dol lars a year.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

And to NYSNA, what ideas do you have
to address sonme of the issues regarding the
wor kf orce shortage? How do you get nore
nurses into the systenf

MR. MATHEW The wor kforce shortage is
ki nd of manufactured. W have 170, 000 nurses
in New York State not working in New York
State, but they are licensed to work in
New York State.

The hospital adm nistrators and the
Legi sl ature, ask yourselves why they are not
working in New York State. Wat is
preventing them from working? Because of the
wor ki ng conditions. W nentioned earlier we
go hone with guilt, we go hone as
co-conspirators in a crime. How long can you
work like that? |If you inprove the

conditions in hospitals, nursing honmes, and
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all other healthcare facilities, yes, we wll
wor K.

And havi ng the conpact nursing
licensure, it's not an answer. W had it --
that for the last three years. D d it nmake
any difference? No. Montefiore, we had | ess
t han 300 open positions three years ago, now
we have over 700 positions. So the conpact
licensing, it doesn't work.

What works? Have a safe place for us
to work.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

That's it for ne.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or Rhoads.

SENATOR RHOADS: Thank you,
Madam Chai r wonan.

Qobvi ously the hone heal thcare -- hone
heal t hcare -- heal thcare worker shortage is
sonmet hing that has been a crisis for sone
period of tinme. The question that | have --
and it's specifically for Ms. Hayes, because
| know that you mentioned this topic first --

during the course of the pandem c, about
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33,000 heal thcare workers ended up either
retiring or being let go as a result of the
vacci ne mandates. Qur understanding is that
t he vacci ne nandates are continuing in
effect, despite the fact that as of May 2023
t he Bi den adm nistration has declared an end
to the pandemn c.

Do you see this as being problemtic,
the fact that we have qualified healthcare
wor kers who are out of work sinply because
they' ve refused to get a vacci ne?

M5. HAYES: | believe that it's
problematic in that we lost, in one of our
heal th systenms, 300 enpl oyees, 150 of which
were nurses. | have my own personal opinion
related to vaccinations, and to ne it nakes
sense and it made sense that heal thcare
provi ders working at the bedsi de be
vacci nated. But you can't deny the fact that
it pushed healthcare workers out of the
system

SENATOR RHOADS: Thank you so rmnuch

And M. Pipia -- Dr. Pipia, excuse ne,

could you -- when we're having physician
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assi stants, when we're havi ng pharnmaci sts
that are actually pharmacists that are
witing orders, for exanple, for prescription
nmedi cati ons, when we have nurse
practitioners, for exanple, that are

aut horizing tests, as has been proposed in
sonme legislation that's before the State

Legi slature -- what probl ens does that
create?

DR. PIPIA: Ckay, so nothing stops any
of these individuals to quit their profession
and go to nedical school, okay? They're also
a very valuable -- and it's in my testinony,
a very valuable, integral part of the test --
of the healthcare team They provide
essential services. So |I'mnot saying
anyt hi ng trenendously bad about them

But at the end of the day, there
shoul d be sonebody who's a physician that
shoul d be headi ng the healthcare team and
that's our position. W think that that
person shoul d be the physician. Just
accurrul ating hours, as | said earlier,

doesn't make sonebody conpetent in their




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

458

field --

SENATOR RHOADS: Are you aware of any
studies that -- |'ve read about the
South M ssissippi System s accountabl e care
organi zation --

DR. PIPIA: R ght, so there was a
study that was done by the AVMA -- | think
it's referenced in our testinony -- that says
t hat those peopl e as physician assistants and
possi bly nurse care providers, order nore
tests than physicians do. And that's a study
that was done by the AVA

SENATOR RHOADS: Thank you.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman Ra.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA: Thank you.

Dr. Pipia, also about the kind of sane
topic with Part W Do you have
suggestions -- and | think you do, because |
t hi nk we' ve spoken about this in the past --
but about other things that the state could
be doi ng, as opposed to scope of practice
changes for non-physicians, to help, you
know, address shortages of people -- of

doctors in certain specialties in parts of
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t he state?

DR PIPIA: R ght. So anong the nany
things is New York -- and it's in our
testinmony, and there's charts -- with the
hi ghest mal practice costs in the country,
okay. If you |ook at Texas, it mght be like
2.46. In New York, it's like 24. So it's
i ke, you know, 12 times what another big
state pays.

So if that could be | owered down, if
there were nmedical courts for that type of
stuff, it would be good.

Al so, the Doctors Across New York is a
programthat's funded. W probably coul d,
you know, find another way to | et other
peopl e know that that exists, and hel p make
sure that that programgets nore utilized.

And then al so, you know, there's a | ot
of burdens in this state that are negative
t owards physicians, a lot of things -- |
mean, Medicaid pays us rmuch | ower than the
Medi care ceiling, and now you're going to
have to make a call and task sonebody to cal

up and get a pre-authorization on a
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medi cati on.

So New York is not the nost friendly
envi ronnent for physicians to work in, and
peopl e are | eaving New York quite frequently.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.

And just for the Pharmaci sts Society,
| know it's mentioned about the transparency
pi ece, drug transparency piece in the budget,
saying it should be renoved fromthe budget
process. And | think I would agree, because,
you know, it's a conplex matter and we want
to get to the right result. But if you can
el aborate on how that inpacts your nenbers,
if sonething were to go forward that maybe
doesn't fully treat each of the entities in
that chain appropriately.

DR FERRARESE: So the return to NYRx
woul d have one preferred drug |ist, versus
many separate drug lists for each Medicaid
managed care plan. It would cover
100 percent of FDA-approved drugs. It would
streanline the prior authorization process
for these patients. It would return

oversight to the Departnent of Health and
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New York State, which would allow for
transparency into these paynents and renove
PBMs fromthe m x.

ASSEMBLYMAN RA:  Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Senat or John Li u.

SENATOR LI U Thank you, Madam Chair.

| want to thank the panel for your
pati ence today, and testifying.

| just have a question for Dr. Pipia
whi ch actually Assenbl ynmenber Ra started
tal king -- asking you about it. | think one
of your responses was New York State makes it
too difficult to be a doctor, and therefore
we don't have enough doctors?

DR PIPIA: Let ne clarify what | nean
by that.

The standards are the sane in every
state. However, the anmount of hoops and
| oops and hurdl es that --

SENATOR LI U.  And the paperwork.

DR. PIPIA: The paperwork and all of
that kind of things, yes. | nmean, like to

get approval for sonething, | have to cal
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up -- and |I'mthe physician, and sonebody
el se who's not a physician is nmaking the
deci si on.

SENATCOR LIU:  On, | understand. |
understand it's a pain in the neck.
Dr. Pipia, | tend to agree with you. You
know? | nean, you go to nedical school, you
spend a huge anount of your life studying to
beconme a physician, and physicians are highly
skilled, highly qualified. And we don't want
to take anything away fromthem So | tend
to agree with your statenents and your
witten testinony.

But we are approached over and over
and over again by nurse practitioners and
ot her participants in the nmedical field about
expandi ng their scope of practice. And one
of the main reasons that they offer, which
have always found it hard to refute, is that
they're just -- there are lots of comunities
wher e physicians are not avail abl e.

And, you know, you cite the difficulty
or the hassl e or paperwork of being a doctor

in the State of New York. | don't think
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there are any shortages of doctors in the
New York netropolitan area. But there are
parts of the state where it's much nore
difficult.

So in order to nmake sure that those
fell ow New Yorkers have adequate care, to the
extent that physicians just are not avail able
for whatever reason, don't we need to deliver
the care in sone other manner?

DR PIPIA: Ckay, so you're right when
it cones to that. The thing is we're asking
for a physician to be oversight on them

In preparation for this testinmony, we
had -- | had a PA that worked for us when
was in Brooklyn at Downstate. And this was
the best PAl ever sawin ny life. He
deci ded to beconme a physician. He quit, he
went and becane a physician. | called him
up, and I go, "Can PAs practice
i ndependently?" And this is one person's
opi nion, obviously. He said -- he said, "I
| earned so nuch nore in nedical school to
hel p synthesize what | did when | made a care

plan.” So | think that that's the way to do




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

464

t hat .

And for those of you who are
| awyers -- and this m ght not be the best
anal ogy, but you have paral egal s that work
for you. Are you going to |let paral egals go
to court and do cases? And the answer is
probabl y not.

SENATCOR LIU:  And |ikew se, a nother
who is |looking for healthcare for her child
may not be so inclined to go to a nurse
practitioner or a physician assistant -- not
to take anything away fromthem But if
there are no doctors avail able --

DR. PIPIA: They're an essenti al
group. | kid you not, they're an essenti al
group and we value themand they' re part of
the allied health team But we just think
t hat the doctor should be the one that's in
charge of all of that stuff. He can't have
five different people driving the car at the
sane tinmne.

SENATOR LI U.  Thank you very nuch

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.
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| believe the Assenbly is closed, and
| just have one nore question for the Senate.

So since three of you represent
nurses -- so help ne understand. They gave
the nunbers | think earlier today that there
are something |ike 355,000 |icensed nurses in
New York State, 188,000 of them working as
nurses. W all seemto agree there's a
nurses shortage. And yet we also have this
paral | el phenonenon where we have hospitals
filled wwth what's called traveling nurses
who are also New York State residents, but
they're nmaking three tines the anount as the
nurses that | think are nmenbers of your
uni ons working in our hospitals.

So sonething's very wong with this
pi cture, and | need hel p under st andi ng.
asked the hospitals; they agreed there was
somet hi ng wong, but they didn't give ne an
answer what we can be doi ng.

M5. SCHAUB: So can | -- | nean, |'lI
maybe start off and -- the agency phenonmenon
is also very significant in the nursing

homes, so we're dealing with it in a nunber
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of pl aces.
And, you know, it's a beautiful

busi ness nodel for the agencies, right?

They're essentially getting paid to fill the
holes that they create. |If you -- you know,
you can recruit someone. |If you're offering

that kind of salary bunp, of course even
peopl e m ght take | eave from a pernmanent job
to be able to go pay off their nortgage if
they work six nmonths at that kind of prem um
Ri ght ?

So if you offer enough, people wll
come work for you. And then of course the
institution where they were working has to
mai ntai n a m ni mum conpl enent, and you can
then bargain with themto bid up the price.
It's been very inflationary, and it was
funded -- it was funded in part by a |ot of
federal noney during COVID that subsidized
t hese very high traveling agency rates.

We have to figure out how to interrupt
the cycle because otherwise it is a
sel f - perpetuating cycl e where, you know,

again, they are doing well|l because they are
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getting paid to fill the holes that they
create by recruiting staff to work for
t enporary agenci es.

We do think -- you know, of all the
things we regulate in New York, nursing
staffing agencies are very underregul at ed.

We don't know who they are, we don't know how
much noney they nake. So the CGovernor's
proposal s to regul ate staffing agencies we do
support, and we think that that is a start.

O her states -- there's a nunber of
ot her states that have passed laws related to
tenporary staffing agencies, especially since
COvVID. Two other states allow for a cap in
t he amount of noney that staffing agencies
can charge. That's sonmething that we could
| ook at and maybe give authority to
institute, certainly with the financi al
information that comes fromregistration

O her states have regul ated what they
can put in contracts. For exanple, Illinois
said a staffing agency can't prohibit a
traveling nurse fromtaking a permanent job

at the institution where he or she is placed,
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which in sone cases is part of the staffing
agency contract.

And then we think there ought to be
ways to | ook at incentivizing enployers to
invest in full-time jobs so that the
financial calculation gets a little bit
different.

The only other thing 1'd say, you
know, for many years we were fighting agai nst
staffi ng agenci es because they' ve al ways been
terrible for the union workers, and the
enpl oyers have liked the flexibility. W're
at a nonment when the enpl oyers are not happy
with the staffing agenci es because of how
much they're getting charged, and so we
actually have a nonent to | think cone
t oget her with some neani ngful approaches to
try to invest in permanent jobs.

CHAl RWOVMAN KRUEGER:  So | know this
isn't a three-m nute question, so thank you
for trying to answer it in three m nutes.

MS. SCHAUB: Sorry.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: But | hope that

we can all continue the conversation, because
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we all know we need our nurses. W all know
we need nore nurses. W have nurses, but
it's not working out right. So thank you.

And | believe | was the | ast one on
t he panel, so thank you all for being here
today and for the work you do. Geatly
appr eci at ed.

And I'"mgoing to call up our next and
actually our last panel for the day, the
Ameri can Cancer Society, Planned Parent hood
Enpire State Acts, Hospice and Palliative
Care Association of New York State, and the
Nat i onal Hookah Community Associ ati on.

Ckay, good afternoon. Fromny right,
frommnmy left -- let's start with ny right,
your left. H , CGeorgana.

M5. HANSON: Good norning -- or good
afternoon. Good eveni ng.

CHAIl RWOVAN KRUEGER: Good nor ni ng?

(Laughter.)

M5. HANSON: | know, you've all been
here much |l onger than | have.

CHAIl R\MOVAN KRUECER:  It's stil

af t er noon.
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M5. HANSON. Good evening. M/ nane is
Ceorgana Hanson. | use she/ her pronouns.
|"mthe interimpresident and CEO of Pl anned
Parent hood Enpire State Acts. And |'m
honored to be providing testinony to you
t oday.

Pl anned Parent hood Enpire State Acts
represents the five New York Planned
Par ent hood affiliates who provide prinmary and
preventive sexual and reproductive heal thcare
services to nore than 200, 000 i ndivi dual s
each year.

| know it's been a long day; | wll
work to be brief. | believe everyone here is
aware of the devastating inpact of the |oss
of our federal constitutional right to
abortion this past sumrer. |In this pivotal
monment in the fight for reproductive freedom
we mnmust continue to respond in bold and
i nnovative ways, building a system of
policies and care that is anchored in equity,
where everyone who needs an abortion can
truly access it.

Wil e a proactive policy environment
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is inmportant, it is no |longer enough on its
own. There nust be a significant financial
investment in access to care. It is in that
frame that | want to uplift three key issues
for your consideration in the enacted budget.

First, we strongly support the
provision in the Executive Budget that
i ncl udes increased Medicaid funding for
fam ly planning and procedural abortion care.
However, this critical investment mnust al so
i nclude an increased rei nmbursenent for
medi cati on abortion. Medication abortion
conpri ses over 60 percent of abortions
provi ded in New York Planned Parenthood --
and 60 percent of the abortions provided in
New Yor k Pl anned parenthood affiliates are
nmedi cati on aborti ons.

Over the past several years many
states have raised Medicaid rates for
abortion services. As a result, New York's
rei nbursenent |levels are significantly out of
alignnent with other access states, including
II'linois and California. This is especially

the case for nedication abortion.
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During testinony earlier today the
Medi caid director stated that rei nbursenent
for the nedication used in nedication
abortion would not be increased. W
understand current policy requires that
nmedi cation is reinmbursed at acquisition cost.
But to be clear, diagnostic and treatnent
centers al so receive reinbursenent for a
visit in conjunction with the medication.
The cost of this visit is reinbursed hundreds
of dollars |ess than what other states
rei mburse, and nust be increased.

Upstate providers receive
approxi mately $143 for the visit and $99 for
an ultrasound if provided. |In comparison,
California, Illinois, and Vernont each
rei mburse over $530 for a medication abortion
visit. Therefore, we urge that the enacted
budget buil ds upon the Executive Budget
proposal to also include a rate increase for
provi di ng nmedi cati on abortion care to no |ess
t han $550.

Additionally, we ask that the enacted

budget include $25 mllion in grant funding
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for abortion providers and $1 million for
abortion funds to increase access. Prior to
the Governor's conmmtnent to invest

$35 mllion in access and security funding

for providers this past sumrer, there's been

no i ntentional investnent in abortion access.

We strongly support the $25 million
i nvest ment proposed by the Governor to
continue these critical grant funds.

Further, we ask that the Legislature
include an additional $1 mllion to be
directed to organi zati ons addressing the
practical support needs of people seeking
abortion care in New York and ensure passage
of the Reproductive Freedom and Equity
Program Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next ?

M5. CHRICO Ckay. | think I'mon.
There we go.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUEGER:  Yes.

M5. CHIRICO Good evening. Thank
you, Chairs Krueger and Wi nstein for

allowing nme to speak to the commttee today.
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My nanme is Jeanne Chirico. 1'mthe

presi dent of the Hospice and Palliative Care

Associ ati on of New York State, and | have the

privilege of representing the men and wonen

who are working to ensure that the transition

fromthis |ife to the next is a peaceful and
cel estial experience, as our acting
comi ssi oner mentioned this norning that he
want ed the experience of childbirth to be a
cel estial experience.

And that word seens extrenely apropos
for the work that we do. And I'mgoing to
use that in reference to the fact that |
believe it's time again to call upon you to
hel p our hospice and palliative care
provi ders, our workforce, who has been
wor ki ng wi t hout the support of their state,
except for the fact that |ast year you, the
Assenbly and the Senate, supported hospice
wor kers by passing three bills that were
nmeant to support access, quality and
wor kforce. And | just would like to draw

your attention to what's happened with those

bills since, because there's still work to be
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done.

In response to the | ack of Departnent
of Health representation and support, you
passed unaninmously a bill to create an office
for hospice and palliative access and
quality. This bill was then vetoed by the
Governor, for reasonings that it was not
i ncluded in the budget and that was the place
to address it. So we're asking you to
address this issue in this budget with a
$400, 000 al | ocati on.

The second bill passed unani nously
al | owed hospices to provide care to
i ndividuals residing in adult living
programs. Then, just days before the
Governor signed that bill into law, the
Department of Health rel eased a "Dear
Adm ni strator” letter that confused and
of fered conflicting information. So right
now no individual living in an assisted
living programis being offered hospice
servi ces.

W' re asking al so that you consi der

the fact that you passed legislation and a
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bill was signed to create a statew de
advanced care planning canpaign. The
Governor then signed that |aw this past
summer, and yet delivered an Executive Budget
wi t hout any funding to hel p support that
canpaign. So we're asking for $2 mllion to
begin this advanced care pl anni ng canpai gn
that we hope can help lift New York State
fromlast place in the country in hospice
utilization, so that people begin to have the
conversations that they need to have to help
plan for their end of life, to nake that a
nmeani ngf ul experience for themand their
entire famly.

| thank you for your tine.

CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Good afternoon.

MR DAVOLI: Good afternoon, Senators,
4. Thank you so nuch for the opportunity to
testify today. M nane is M chael Davoli.
amthe senior director of governnent
relations for the American Cancer Society
Cancer Action Network, ACS CAN

On behalf of the 1.6 mllion cancer
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survivors in New York State, |'mhere to
testify on behalf of two issues -- (1)
related to cancer screening and (2) rel ated
to the tobacco issues included in the budget.

First, on cancer screening, | want to
speak about the New York State Cancer
Services Program Every single year in
New York State over 30,000 nmen and wonmen will
be di agnosed with just three cancers:

Breast, cervical and colorectal cancer. Al
three of those cancers can be di agnosed at an
early age through basic screening, and
therefore |lives can be saved.

Unfortunately, despite the incredible
work of the CSP, it barely can scratch the
surface of the need in New York State,
serving only 18 percent of the eligible
popul ati on. Wen Governor Cuonp cut the
budget by 20 percent in 2017, nore than 6, 000
New Yorkers lost their ability to get
screening the followi ng year. W nust
restore those cuts from 2017 and bring the
CSP' s budget back up to $26.8 million in
' 23-' 24.
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Pivoting very briefly to tobacco, |I'm
just going to highlight a couple of
statistics that sone of you may or may not be
famliar with. 28,200 -- that's the nunber
of New Yorkers that will die this year alone
fromtobacco-related illness. That's nore
than the capacity of Madi son Square Garden.
That's like 10 tines the size of The Egg j ust
across the street.

26.7 percent of all cancer deaths in
New York State are tobacco-related. Just
think about that. |If anything else -- guns,
car crashes, suicide, anything el se was
causi ng 28,000 New Yorkers to die, it would
be front-page news of the New York Post every
single day until you act. W nust act to
curb tobacco use. W nust stand up to the
lies of Big Tobacco. W nust address,
advocat es nust address the questions that you
have about these proposals. And we nust work
together to end the sale of flavored tobacco
products, which are proven to hook kids
generation after generation and drive

i nequities and health disparities, and drive
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snoking rates within communities of color and
| ead to huge health disparities and deat hs
from cancer, snoking-related cancers within
peopl e of color, comunities of color.

We nust increase the tax on cigarettes
because there has never been a nore
definitive way to drive down snoking rates
and to keep youth fromstarting.

And finally, we nust increase funding
for the Tobacco Control Program The TCP is
how we hel p people quit and how we keep kids
fromstarting in the first place.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Thank you.

Next .

MR HUDANS: Hi . Thank you. M nane
is Christopher Hudgins. | report mnmy comnpany,
Al Fakher, on the board of --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Can you pul | your
mc alittle closer? Thank you.

MR HUDA@NS: Better? Thank you

My name is Christopher Hudgins. |
represent ny conpany, Al Fakher, on the board

of the National Hookah Conmunity Associ ati on,
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or NHCA. Appreciate the opportunity to share
their views here today.

Founded in 2019, NHCA brings together
hookah producers, distributors, sellers,
hookah | ounges, consuners -- really, the
whol e supply chain -- and conmunity nenbers
to support the preservation of hookah's rich
cultural traditions.

Hookah, al so known as shisha, is a
conmbi nati on of a tobacco and a sugar
substance such as honey or nolasses, and it's
conprised of only 15 to 20 percent tobacco.

It is a heavy, wet, sticky substance that can
only be snoked in a hookah pipe.

As has been the practice for hundreds
of years, hookah is by nature a flavored
product. As a result, a ban, the Governor's
suggested ban on all flavored tobacco, would
result in the ban of all hookah.

We ask that you exenpt hookah fromthe
flavor ban. You woul d be joining numerous
jurisdictions that have done so for many of
t he reasons |' mabout to discuss. Most

recently, California made history and passed
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a statewi de flavored ban on -- a statew de
fl avored-tobacco ban, but they exenpted
hookah. And that's because the NHCA wor ked
with legislators there to help them
understand that the product has a cul tural
significance and it has a | ow youth usage
rate.

We've worked with many other cities
and states, including Col orado; Col unbus,
Chi o; Denver; San Diego; San Jose;

Los Angeles. All of these cities have
consi dered or passed flavored bans with
hookah exenptions in them

Hookah is a very small category in the
t obacco space. It nakes up only roughly
0. 005 percent of nicotine sales here in the
US., but it is a very inportant cultural
practice that has existed for centuries.

M ddl e Eastern, Arnenian, Turkish, East
African, Indian, Persian, |Indonesian and many
other immgrant citizens in the U S. today
enj oy hookah as a centerpiece for a cultural
busi ness and soci al gat heri ng.

It has a very |l arge popul ati on of use
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here in New York, considering that many
immgrants fromthese countries reside here.
There are hookah | ounges all over certainly
the New York City area, but Buffalo,
Rochest er, Syracuse, Bi nghamton, Al bany,
Watertown -- all over. And these |ounges
serve as safe gathering spaces for many

di verse ethnic and religi ous communities,
each of themrepresented by snall

m nority-owned busi nesses owned by i mm grant
or first-generation Anericans with ties to
regi ons where hookah originated or is
practiced.

Hookah pi pes are unlikely to be used
by youth. They are several feet tall, they
are expensive, they can take anywhere from 20
to 30 mnutes to set up. [It's not sonething
you can hide in a backpack and snoke in
school

Federal data supports this. Each year
the CDC and FDA put out youth usage rates for
t obacco. The nobst recent one showed that
just 1 percent of m ddle and hi gh school

students had tried hookah in the past
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30 days -- and that's 10 tines | ess than the
nunber of those who vape.

For these reasons we ask that you
exenpt hookah fromthe flavored-tobacco ban.

Thank you.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUECGER: Custavo Rivera.

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you,
Madam Chair. | just have a few

Ms. Chirico, good to see you again. |
wanted you to talk a little bit -- so we
obvi ously passed this bill last year; | was
very proud to do so. But you -- which you
referred to earlier. But you said that no
hospi ce and assisted living -- could you
clarify what you said? Because | want to
make sure if the bill in its inplenmentation
is not doing what we want it to do, then
certainly want to look into it nore deeply.

M5. CHHRICO Sure. Thank you for the
guesti on.

SENATCOR RI VERA: Cl oser on the mc,
pl ease.

M5. CHHRICO Ch, sorry.

| just want to clarify. Hospice is
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provided in assisted living facilities, but
we have a classification specific, as you
know, to assisted |iving prograns that have
Medi cai d fundi ng, backing. And it required
| egi slation that we receive to all ow hospice
in.

Unfortunately, the day before or two
days before the Governor signed the bill into
law, the Department of Health rel eased a
"Dear Administrator" |letter that confounded
t he del i neati on between the hospice
responsi bilities and the Assisted Living
Program responsibilities, to the point that
it created a bureaucratic nightnmare that it's
t aken nont hs of questioning of the Departnent
of Health. Now they have set a neeting for
m d- March to begin the conversation of howto
weed t hrough the confusion that the DAL
cr eat ed.

SENATOR RIVERA: | want to be hel pfu
with that, because we certainly want this
bill to be inplenented correctly.

M5. CHI RICO Thank you.

SENATCR RIVERA: So let's make sure
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that we follow up on that.

M. Davoli. Good to see you again
sir. Do you have a response to the gentl eman
at the end that tal ked about the hookahs? |
share sone of the concerns that were
expressed. Certainly in ny district in the
Bronx there's certain conmunities that
certainly --

(Overtal k.)

MR. DAVOLI: Wth all due respect, |
woul d question the statenent about the
hi storical use of flavored hookah products.

Fl avorings -- the tobacco industry, the
manuf acturers thensel ves only talk about this

in the past 60 years, sone of the different

flavors that hookah -- | mean, hookah has
been -- for a thousand years. | mean, hookah
has been sonething around -- | -- you know, |

don't know if flavored hookah was bei ng used
for a thousand years. So | do question that
st at ement .

But in New York City, the only hookah
that is allowed is tobacco -- is hookah that

does not have tobacco. So you could have
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hookah that does not have tobacco in it, and
that's a key distinction.

But, you know, fromthe Anmerican
Cancer Society's perspective, our greater
concern really is focusing on the broader use
of tobacco use and focusi ng on whatever way
t obacco i s being delivered, we nust be
working torid it of. So --

SENATOR RI VERA: Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ywonan
Paul i n.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULI N:  Thank you.

Hospi ce, do you believe that we should
elimnate the for-profit hospice?

M5. CHHRICO W supported a bill that
was passed in the Assenbly and the Senate
that woul d prohibit the establishnment of
additional for-profit hospices. R ght now
that bill helped to solidify the CON that is
in place for hospices.

And unfortunately in the
Executive Budget there were CON nodifications

to the hospice rules, and we're asking those
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to be rejected as well, because it does open
New York State to becone proliferated with
for-profit and venture capitalist hospices,
i ke other states, |ike California.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  And we are a
state that is -- underutilizes hospice
services, to say the least. Ildeas on howto
make that better?

M5. CHRICO M first idea would be
fund the advanced care planni ng canpai gn so
that we can start --

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN:  We're trying.

M5. CHRICO -- talking as a culture
about these issues that are hidden too far -
deep in our famlies and cul tures.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN PAULIN: | think that's
it for me. Thank you.

M5. CHI RICO Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN VEI NSTEI'N: Senat e?

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Any ot her
Senat or s?

| have a question. Just follow ng up
on the Anmerican Cancer Society's comments

that -- so in New York City where |I cone




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

488

from the hookah bars are not providing

t obacco products, they're a different

product .

MR DAVOLI: It's -- they cannot
serve -- so flavored hookah is prohibited,
unless it is -- does not contain tobacco.

And that's -- there's the key. You can have
hookah t hat does not actually have tobacco in
it.

Now, | will fully admt, this is a
little bit out of ny expertise. |'mhappy to
get back to you with nore information. But |
just -- | don't want to mi sspeak here, so --

CHAIl RMOVAN KRUEGER: So assumi ng
you're correct, the Governor's proposal
woul dn't change the story in New York City.

MR. DAVOLI: No, it would expand -- it
woul d not change what's happening i n New York
Cty. It would expand this statew de and
create the clarity.

CHAl RWOMAN KRUEGER: So then | want to
ask the gentleman fromthe National Hookah
Communi ty Associ ation, so do you really think

this is going to be a big issue in New York
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State, since | think the majority of the
comuni ties using hookah are New York
City-based. And if |ife's been going on okay
wi t hout flavored tobacco there, why should we
worry it's a real problem outside of New York
City and the rest of the state?

MR HUDG NS: Well, | don't think
t hi ngs have been goi ng okay, and | would say
t hat --

CHAI RMOVAN KRUEGER: Try and get
closer to the mc.

MR HUDA NS: Ch, yeah, sure.

CHAIl RAMOVAN KRUEGER:  Sorry.

MR HUDG NS: | don't think that
t hi ngs have been goi ng okay. | think
certainly with that ban, which frankly
happened before we were -- we existed --
partly why we existed, because nany of these
fol ks cone fromcomunities where interacting
wi th governnent is not a good thing to do.
So they're reluctant to speak up.

Hookah has been flavored for thousands
of years. It was originally called nu' assel

which translates to "with honey." There is a
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flavor presence. One of the nobst popul ar
flavors today, and has been for hundreds of
years, is "two apple,” and that's because
they originally would add slices of apple to
it.

It's very popular, the flavored
product, for people who practice this, and
this is what they practice in foreign
countries, and this is what they bring here.

It is true that flavored tobacco is

banned in New York City. Lounges cl osed

because of that. There are still |ounges
there. | question the enforcenent there as
wel I, which I think exposes sone of the

probl enms of taking this statew de.

The real fact is this is not sonething
that is used by youth.

CHAI RAMOVAN KRUEGER: And do you have
any evidence that snoki ng hookah does not
cause cancer?

MR HUDA@NS: | do not. | agree that
hookah does contain tobacco. Hookah contai ns
about 15 to 20 percent tobacco. A cigarette

or vape cones up -- contains 100 percent
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t obacco.

| f you are looking -- if you're
addicted to nicotine, you're trying to get a
nicotine fix, a hookah is a terrible way to
do it because it takes 20 or 30 mnutes to
snoke sonething this big.

Federal data al so shows that hookah
users only use it once or twi ce a nonth,
predom nantly. Over 90 percent only use it
once or twice a nonth. 1It's not sonething
you're going to go to for that nicotine fix.

It does contain tobacco; we're not
hi di ng that.

CHAl RWOVAN KRUECER: | once told a
t obacco conpany that they should really think
about comng up with products that don't Kill
their clients, because it's not that easy to
replace them So | m ght encourage people to
use ot her products.

And ny tinme is up. Thank you very
much.

Any ot her questions?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N:  Ch, yeah, we

have - -
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CHAl RMOVAN KRUEGER:  Ch, Assenbly.

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Bl unencr anz.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUMENCRANZ: (M c off.)
Thank you.

Ms. Chirico, with Hospice, thank you
so nuch for coming. | appreciate it, |
appreci ate everything that you do.

One thing that | find pretty
interesting --

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: | 'm sorry, is
your mc on?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUVENCRANZ:  Sorry.

One thing that | find pretty
interesting is that it's conmonpl ace that we
don't separate palliative and hospice care.
So what efforts do you think we should be
taking as a body or in the budget to increase
palliative care in other fields of nedicine,
including geriatrics, but across the field?

M5. CHIRICO Thank you for that
guesti on.

One of the things | didn't have an

opportunity to tal k about was our request for
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wor kf orce funding. And contained wthin that
i s education about hospice and palliative
care. And follow ng up on the Hospice and
Pal li ati ve Care Education Training
Council that Governor Cuono actually had put
into place, which would include training even
provi ders on the difference between hospice
and palliative care and how to identify
patients who woul d be appropriate for either,
so that we can assure whenever sonebody's
seeing their primary care physician or an NP
or a PA that they understand the difference
between the two and nmake referrals sooner in
the trajectory of sonmeone's ill ness.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLUMENCRANZ: Thank you so
much.

CHAl R\MOVAN KRUEGER:  Assenbl y?

CHAI RAWOVAN VEEI NSTEI' N: Assenbl ynman
Sayegh.

ASSEMBLYMAN SAYEGH: Thank you very
much, Madam Chair.

On the hookah products and on cancer
in general, as an educator, we've -- all of

us as a society have al ways preached, you
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know, to avoid the snoking and the inpact on
cancer, and al cohol and ganbli ng.

But we go ahead and we foll ow and
agree on policies and procedures to allow us
to snoke cigarettes in general and allow us
to snoke pot in New York, but to say you
can't snmoke a hookah.

| just want to show a testanent that

with nmy Mddle Eastern background, for nearly

25 years, as was said, | probably snoke a
hookah once, twice a nonth. Never sawit to
be addictive. It is cultural for me. And
fromwhat | understand of the science, a |ot
| ess harm than cigarettes.

And I'ma little concerned because it
really looks to a large community of M ddle
Easterners and South Asians and a broad
spectrum around the world that snoke and
enj oy hookah, that it's an unfair burden to
say you can't snoke a hookah but you can
snoke ot her products.

| f you told nme you had | egi sl ation
where we agreed to ban all forns of snoking,

| would say, well, this is a policy and this
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is a procedure. But | really see this as
unfair and it targets certain groups.

And nore inportant, people | spoke to
said, "You know what, even if you banned it,
we know how to buy it, because it's available
all over." So you |lose the tax base. You
have unnonitored products, and it becones
even nore dangerous.

Sol really think it's alittle bit
unfair to tiein the risk -- and | agree with
you -- of cancer and the ills and cancer and
really target one conponent of it.

MR. DAVOLI: Wuld you like nme to
respond or --

ASSEMBLYMAN SAYEGH: If | can have
remarks from both --

MR. DAVOLI: Yes, yes, of course.
Thank you so much

Vell, in-- listen, | want to
enphasi ze this, this is why -- we're not
tal ki ng about one group of people or another,
we're tal king about a product. And we're not
tal ki ng about one specific product or

anot her, we're tal king about flavors.
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Whet her they are nenthol cigarettes,
flavored, you know, marketed towards wonen,
using Virginia Slins to attract wonen and
hook them on nmenthol cigarettes -- which, you
know, woren snoke nenthol cigarettes nearly
three tines as nuch as nen do.

Whether it's nenthol cigarettes being
given out all across conmunities of color in
New York City and around the country, free,
for decades, and advertisenents in Black
magazines to try to ingratiate thensel ves,

t he tobacco industry, with the Bl ack
community and trying to hook the community.

Whether it's, you know, the direct
targeting of LGBT comunity populations in
New York City with nmenthol cigarettes. These
products are used to hook peopl e.

So | am not advocating for any one
specific type of tobacco. |1'mtalking
specifically about saying that flavors are
used to hook people, and we rnust do anything
in our power -- and for all the comrunities
in New York State.

We are the American Cancer Society.
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My office is in the fourth floor of the Hope
Lodge in Manhattan. There are cancer
patients that cone in there frommany of your
districts. | neet themin ny office, comng
in and out of the office every single day.
They're fromall over the State of New York
And they're dying, nmany of them because of

t obacco.

CHAl RAOVAN VEEI NSTEI'N: Thank -- thank
you. Thank you. Assenbl ywonan
Gonzal ez- Roj as.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJIAS:  Thank
you all so nuch

| do want to say for the record that |
have -- | represent a district that has a
| arge Arab community that -- and quite a
nunber of hookah bars and | ounges. So |
conpl etely support a ban on flavored tobacco,
but I would support also an exenption for
hookah because of the cultural significance
in ny comunity.

My question, though, is for Georgana.
Thank you so much for being here.

| want to ask -- probe on the
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Governor's proposal directly. 1Is there
anything in this proposal that does provide
for logistical support for people who need
and are seeking abortion care, including
travel, |odging, childcare, translation?

M5. HANSON: Are you speaking to the
25 mllion? The way in which the | anguage
reads in Aid to Localities connects that to
providers. | think we -- which is part of
t he reason why we want to ensure that there's
clarity that we could see grant noney being
used, not just to support providers in this
nmoment i ncreasing access, but to also be
supporting the nonprofit entities that are
delivering practical support to patients who
need to seek -- you know, who are seeking
abortion care in New York

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQJIAS:  Can you
expound on like the lack of investnent in
t hese very practical supports? How does it
i mpact the ability for us to provide abortion
care for those who seek it?

M5. HANSON: Yeah, | think it's

i nportant to, you know, anchor ourselves in
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the reality that even prior to the

Suprene Court overturning Roe v. Wade this
sumer, that there were already barriers that
prevent ed people from accessi ng abortion
care, whether it was having to take tine off
of work, arrange chil dcare.

There are -- even in the great work
we' ve done in New York to expand insurance
coverage for abortion care, there are still
i ndi vi dual s who | ack coverage. And those
barriers can push care out of reach. That's
certainly the reality now, too, where we live
in a country where 18 states have severely
banned or restricted access to abortion.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- RQIAS:  In the
| ast coupl e of seconds, can you speak to the
capacity needs of providers? Wat do
appoi ntnments | ook Iike? How are you all
doing in terns of providing that care?

M5. HANSON. | appreciate the
guestion. | mean, | think we are living in a
space where it's pretty dynamc, as states
work to enact bans and restrictions.

But to be honest, care was chall engi ng
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before. | think you' ve heard from pl enty of
ot her providers today, and organi zations
representing providers, the cost of
delivering care is increasing. It is hard to
attract and retain staff. That is true
especially for small safety-net providers

l'i ke Pl anned Parent hood.

And so, you know, when we've seen
underi nvestnent in care and, you know, that
has throttled our ability to grow and expand
to just neet current need, you can -- as you
can hire providers and train them and bring
themto capacity, you can increase access to
care. Wen you can't do that, that inpacts
directly New Yorkers and ot hers.

ASSEMBLYWOVAN GONZALEZ- ROJAS:  Thank
you so rmuch

CHAl RAMOVAN KRUEGER: (M c off.) Okay.
Any ot her Assenbly or Senators, speak now or
forever hold your peace.

| want to thank you all very nuch for
com ng and testifying today. | believe this
now concl udes the public hearing on the

heal t h budget for New York State.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N OO 01 B W N +— O©O

501

Come back tonorrow nmorning at 9: 30,
and the topic will be housing. And then I
believe there is a second hearing tonorrow,
on wor kf orce devel opnent, starting at
2 o'clock or later.

So thank you all very much.

(Wher eupon, the budget hearing
concluded at 6:16 p.m)




